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THIRTY-SEVENTH DAY 

St. Paul, Minnesota, Friday, April 16, 1993 

The Senate met at 11:45 a.m. and was called to order by the President. 

CALL OF THE SENATE 

Mr. Luther imposed a call of the Senate. The Sergeant at Arms was 
instructed to bring in the absent members. 

Prayer was offered by Senator Pat Piper. 

The roll was called, and the following Senators answered to their names: 

Adkins 
Anderson 
Belanger 
Benson, J.E. 
Berg 
Berglin 
Bertram 
Betzold 
Chandler 
Chmielewski 
Dille 
Finn 

Flynn 
Frederickson 
Hanson 
Hottinger 
Janezich 
Johnson, J.B. 
Johnston 
Kiscaden 
Knut,;on 
Krentz 
Kroening 
Laidig 

Langseth 
Larson 
Lesewski 
Lessard 
Luther 
Mru-ty 
Merriam 
Metzen 
Mondale 
Morse 
Murphy 
Novak 

The President declared a quorum present. 

Oliver 
Olson 
Pappas 
Pariseau 
Piper 
Pogemiller 
Price 
Ranum 
Reichgott 
Riveness 
Robertson 
Runbeck 

Sams 
Samuelson 
Spear 
Stevens 
Stumpf 
Terwilliger 
Vickennan 
Wiener 

The reading of the Journal was dispensed with and the Journal, as printed 
and corrected, was approved. 

EXECUTIVE AND OFFICIAL COMMUNICATIONS 

The following communications were received and referred to the committee 
indicated. 

The Honorable Allan H. Spear 
President of the Senate 

Dear Sir: 

April 7, 1993 

The following appointment is hereby respectfully submitted to the Senate for 
confirmation as required by law: 
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Lyle G. Mehrkens, 1505 Woodland Dr., Red Wing, Goodhue County, has been 
appointed by me, effective April 7, 1993, for a term expiring on the first 
Monday in January, 1999. 

(Referred to the Committee on Transportation and Public Transit.) 

Warmestregards, 

The Honorable Allan H. Spear 
President of the Senate 

Dear President Spear: 

Arne H. Carlson, Governor 

April 13, 1993 

It is my honor to inform you that I have received, approved, signed and 
deposited iii the Office of the Secretary of State, S.F. Nos. 98, 99, 313 and 
434. 

Warmest regards, 
Arne H. Carlson, Governor 

April 14, 1993 

The Honorable Dee Long 
Speaker of the House of Representatives 

The Honorable Allan H. Spear 
President of the Senate 

I have the honor to inform you that the following enrolled Acts. of the J 993 
Session of the State Legislature have been received from the Office of the 
Governor and are deposited in the Office of the Secretary of State for 
preservation, pursuant to the State Constitution, Article IV, Section 23: 

Time and 
S.F. H.F. Session Laws Date Approved Date Filed 
No. No. Chapter No. 1993 1993 

313 23 5:02 p.m. April 13 April 14 
99 24 5:05 p.m. April 13 April 14 
98 25 5:08 p.m. April 13 April 14 

434 26 5:10 p.m. April 13 · April 14 
233 27 5:12 p.m. April 13 April 14 

Sincerely, 
Joan Anderson Growe 
Secretary of State 
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The Honorable Allan H. Spear 
President of the Senate 

Dear President Spear: 

[37111 DAY 

April 15, 1993 

It is my honor to inform you that I have received, approved, signed and 
deposited in the Office of the Secretary of State, S.F. Nos. 215 and 729. 

Warmest regards, 
Arne H. Carlson, Governor 

April 15, 1993 

The Honorable Dee Long 
Speaker of the House of Representatives 

The Honorable Allan H. Spear 
President of the Senate 

I have the honor to inform you that the following enrolled Acts of the 1993 
Session of the State Legislature have been received from the Office of _the 
Governor and are deposited in the Office of the Secretary of State for 
preservation, pursuant to the State Constitution, Article IV. Section 23: 

S.F. 
No. 

215 
729 

H.F. 
No. 

399 
254 

Mr. President: 

Session Laws 
Chapter No. 

29 
30 
31 
32 

Time and 
Date Approved 

1993 . 

11: 12 a.m. April 15 
11: 13 a.m. April 15 
11: 15 a.m. April 15 
11: 18 a.m. April 15 

Sincerely, 
Joan Anderson Growe 
Secretary of State 

MESSAGES FROM THE HOUSE 

Date Filed 
1993 

April 15 
April 15 
April 15 
April 15 

I have the honor to announce the passage by the House of the following 
House Files, herewith transmitted: H.F. Nos. 592, 1523, 690, 768 and 1424. 

Edward A. Burdick, Chief Clerk, House of Representatives 

Transmitted April 15, 1993 

FIRST READING OF HOUSE BILLS 

The following bills Were read the first time and referred to the committees 
indicated. 

H.F. No. 592: A bill for an act relating to creditors' remedies; limiting the 
value of the homestead exemption; providing for the exemption of homestead 
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insurance proceeds; amending Minnesota Statutes ,1992, sections 510.01; 
510.02; 510.07; 510.08; and 550.175, subdivisions 3 and 4. . ~ . 

Referred to.- the Coniinittee on Rules and Administration for comparison 
with S,F. No. 576, now on General Orders. 

H.F. No. '1523: A bill for an act relating to insurance; establishing and 
regulating the life and health guaranty association; providing for its powers 
and duties; amending Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 61A.02, subdivisions 
2 and 3; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 61B; 
repealing Minnesota Statutes 1992, sections 61B.01; 61B.02; 61B.03; 
61B.04; 61B.05; 61B.06; 61B.07; 61B.08; 61B.09; 61B.10;. 61B.ll; 
61B.12; 61B.I3; 61B:14; 61B.15; and 61B.16. 

Referred to ..the Committee on Commerce and Consumer Protection. 

H.F. No. 690: A bin for an act reiating to retiremeni; public employees 
retirement association; disability benefits; re,duci_ng th~ reduction in benefits to 
coordinate them with amounts received under workers' compensation laW for 
certain former employees.· · 

Referred to the Committee on Rules and Adn.iinistration for cqmparison 
with S.F. No, 557, now on General Orders. 

H.F.
00

1'/o. 768,° A bill for an actfelating to retiremeni; Min~esota state 
retirement system; authorizing a purchase of service credit by a former irain 
inspector. 

Referred to the Committee on Rules and Administration for comparison 
with S.F. No. 617, now on General Orders. · 

H.F. No. 1424: A bill for an act relating ·to pollution control; exempting 
certain storage tanks from notification,. environmerital protection; arid tank 
installer training and certification requirements; amending Minnesota, Statutes 
1992, section 116.47. 

Referred to the Committee on Rules and Administration for comparison 
with S.F. No . .975,: now on General Orders. 

REPORTS OF COMMITTEES 

Mr. Luther moved that the Committee Reports at ihe J)esk be now adopted, 
wiih ihe exception ofihe reports on S:F. Nos.,891, 53, 1185, 184 and 1241. 
The motion prevailed. 

Mr. Metzen from the Committee on Govermnental Operations and Reform, 
to v..:hich w~s ·re-referred 

S.F. No. 240: A bill for an act relating to healih; changing the membership 
requirements of the board of nursing; amending Minnesota Statutes 1992, 
section l 4!\.181, subdivision. I. 

Reports ihe same back with the recommendation that the bill be amended 
· as follows: 

Page I, lines 9 and IO, strike "shall consist''. and insert "consists" 

·Page 1, line 11, strike the -first "shall" and insert ''rllust" 

Page 1, lines 12,13, 14, 17, 20, and 25, strike "shall" and insert "must" 
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Page 1, line 24, delete "shall" and insert "must" 

Page 2, lines I, 2, 3, and 5, strike "shall" and_ insert "must" 

Page 2, lines 9 and 12, strike "shall be" and insert "are" 

And when so amended the bill do pass. Amendments adopted, Report 
adopted. 

Mr. Novak from the Committee on Jobs, Energy and Community Devel­
opment, to which was referred 

S.F. No. 891: A bill for an act relating to labor; requiring arbitration in 
certain circumstances; establishing proredures; providing penalties; amending 
Minnesota Statutes 1992, sections 179.06, by adding a subdivision; and 
179A.16, subdivision 3, and by adding a subdivision. 

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill be amended 
as follows:-

Page 5, line 17, delete "the board" and insert "be ready for binding 
arbitration'' 

And when so amended the bill do pass. Ms. Runbeck questioned the 
reference thereon and, under Rule 35, the bill was referred to the Committee 
on Rules and Administration. 

Mr. Novak from the Committee on Jobs, Energy and Community Devel­
opment, to which was referred 

S.F. No. 785: A bill for an act relating to labor; establishing rights and 
duties in relation to union organization; providing that certain. acts are an 
unfair labor practice; proposing penalties; amending Minnesota Statutes 1992, 
sections 179.12; 179A.07, by adding a subdivision; and]79A.13, subdivision 
2. 

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill do pass. 
Report adopted. 

Mr. Novak from the Committee on Jobs, Energy and Community Devel­
opment, to.which _wa:s referred 

S.F. No. 1193: A bill for an act relating to employment; requiring wage 
payments at certain times; amending Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 
181.101. 

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill do pass. 
Report adopted. 

Mr. Novak from the Committee on Jobs, Energy and Community Devel­
opment, to which was referred 

S.F. No. 1487: A bill for an act relating to public finance; changing· 
procedures for allocating bonding authority; amending Minnesota Statutes 
1992, sections 474A.047, subdivision I; and 474A.061, subdivision 2a. 

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill be amended 
as follows: 
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Page 1, after.line 6, insert: 

"Section I. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 462A.221, is'amendecl by 
adding a subdivisiQn to read: 

Subd. 4. [METROPOLITAN AREA.] "Metropolitan area" has the mean­
ing given it in sect{on 473.121._ subdivision 2. 

Sec. 
0

2. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 462A.221, is amended by'adding 
a subdivision to read: · · 

Subd. 5. [SUBSTANTIAL REHABILITATION.] "Substantial .rehabilita­
tion'' means rehabilitaiion of ~t least ~5,000 per unit. 

Sec. 3. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 462A.222, subdivision 3, is· 
amended to read: · · 

Subd. 3. [ALLOCATION PROCEDURE.] (a) Projects will be awarded tax 
credits in •three competitive' rounds on an annual basis. The date for 
applications for each ronnd must be detennined by the agency. No allocating 
agency may award tax credits prior to the application dates established by the 
agency. 

(b) Each allocating agency must meet the requirements of section 42(m) of 
the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended through December 31, 1989, 

. for the allocation of tax credits and the selection of projects. 

(c) For applications submitted for the first round, an allocating agency may · 
allocate tax credits only to the following types of projects: 

( 1) in the metropolitan area: 

(i) new construction· or substantial rehabilitatiolt single-foom .occupancy 
projects which are affordable by households whose income does not exceed 30 
percent of the. median income; 

~ (ii) new construction or ·substantial rehabilitation family housing 
projects in which at ieast 75 percent ofthe nnits contain two or more bedrooms 
and at least one-third of the 75 percent contain three or more bedrooms; or 

(iii) substantial rehabilitation projects in neighborhoods targeted by the 
city for revitalization; 

(2) outside the metropolitan area, projects which meet a locally identified 
housing need and which are in short supply in the local housing market as 
evidenced by credible data submitted with the application; 

(3) projects in.which a percentage of the units are set aside and rented to 
persons: 

(i) with a serious and persistent mental illness as defined in section 
245.462, subdivision 20, paragraph (c); 

(ii) with a developmental disability as defined in United States Code, title 
42, section 6001, paragraph (5), as amended through December 31, 1990; 

(iii) w_ho have been assessed as drug dependent persons as defined in 
section 254A.02, subdivision 5, and are receiving or will receive care and 
treatment services provided by an approved treatment program as defined in 
section 254A.02, subdivision 2; 



1840 JOURNAL OF THE SENATE [37TH DAY 

(iv) with a brain injury as defined in section 256B.093, subdivision· 4, 
paragraph (a); or 

(v) with physical disabilities if at least 50 percent of the .• units are accessilJle 
as provided under Minnesota Rules, chapter 1,340; 

( 4) projects which preserve existing ,subsidized housing which is subject to 
prepayment if the use of tax credits is necessary to prevent conversion to 
market rate use; or · · · 

(5) projects financed by the Farmers Home Administration which meet 
statewide distribution goals. 

(d) Before the dat~ f~r applications fo~ th~ second round, the allocating 
agencies other than the agency shall return all uncommitted and unallocated 
tax credits to the pool from which they were allocated, along with copies of 
any.allocation or commitment. In the second round,.the agency shall allocate 
the remaining credits from the regional pools to projects from the respec~ye 
regions:-

( e) In the third round, all unallocated tax Cfl'dits niust be transferred to a 
unified pool for allocation by the agency on a statewide basis. 

(f) Unused portions of the state ceiling for low•inconie housing tax credits 
reserved to cities and counties for allocation may be returned at any time to 
the agency for alloc8.tion;,. 

Page 8, delete section 5 and insert: 

"Sec. 8. [EFFECTIVE DATE.] 

Sections I to 3, 5, and 7 are effective the day following final enactment. 
Section 5 applies to mortgage bonds allocated on or after April I, 1993." 

Renumber the sections in sequence 

Amend the title as follows: 

Page I, line 4, after "sections" insert "462A.221, by adding subdivisions; 
462A.222, subdivision 3;" · 

And when so amended the bill do pass and be re-referred to _the Committee 
on Taxes and Tax Laws. Amendments adopted. Report adopted. 

Mr. Novak from the Committee on Jobs; Energy and Community Devel­
opment, to which was referred 

S.F. No. 53: A bill for an act relating to labor; regulating employment of 
children; establishing a child labor curfew; providing penalties; amending 
Minnesota Statutes 1992, sections 181A.04, by adding a subdivision; and· 
181A.12, subdivision I. 

l.leports the same back with the _recommendation that th_e bill be amended 
as follows: · 

Page\, line 11, after "p.m." insert "unless the student has. supplied the 
. employer with.a note from a parent or guardian of the student authorizing the 

student to work until 11 :30 p.m." 

Page 2, line 20, after "p.m." insert "unless the student has supplied the 
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employer with a note from a parent or guardian· of the student auihorizing the 
student to work until 11 :30 p.m.» 

Page 2, line 28. delete "50'' and insert "JOOH 

Page 3, line 8, strike "5". and insert "25" 

Page 3, lines 13 and 14, delete "181A.12, subdivision 1, clause (e/" and 
insert" 181A.04, subdivision 6" · · 

Page 3, line 15, :delete "181A.12, subdivision 1, clause (e)" and insert 
"18JA.04, subdivision 6" · · 

Page 3, after line 16, insert: 

"An employer who knowingly employs a child- in · violation_ of section 
18JA.04. is guilty of a gross misde.meanor if the violation results in the death 
of the child or substantia/'or greater bodily harm to the child. For the 
purposes of this subdivision, « substantial bodily harm" has the meaning 
given it in section 609.02, subdivision 7a." 

And when so amended the bill do pass. Mrs. Benso~. J:E. questioned the 
reference thereon· and, under Rule 35, the bill was referred to the Committee 
on Rules and Administration. 

Mr. Solon from the Committee on Commerce and Consumer Protection, to 
which was referred 

S.E No. 1226: A bill for an act relating to insurance; the comprehensive 
health association; clarifying the duties of the association and the authority of 
the commissioner of commerce_; iricreasing the cigarette and tobacco product 
taxes to defray. the cost of claims made under coverages provided 'by the 
association; repealing obsolete language; appropriating inoney; amending· 
Minnesota Statutes 1992, sections 62E.08; 62E.09; 62E . .IO, subdivision. 9; 
297.02, subdivision I; 297.13, by adding a subdivision; and 297.32, 
subdivisions I and 2; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, 
chapter 62E; repealing Laws 1992, chapter 549, article 9; section 17. 

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill be amended 
as follows: 

Page 1, line ~O, before "adjusted" insert"; ot<lre" _ 

Page 2, lines I and 17, after "be" insert a comma 

Page 2, lines 5, 16, and.21, before·· ·'adjusted'' insert'', Of" are~• 

Page 2, line 6, after "be" inse~t' a co~a and after "one" insert 
''individuaC' 

Page 2, line 22, after "be" insert a comma and after "two" insert 
''individual'' 

Page 2. line 35,_ before "adjusted" insert". or are" and after "be", in~rt 
a comma 

Page 3, lin.e 4, before "adjusted" .. insert ", or-are" and after "br/' insert 
a comma 

Page 5, line 36, delete "60'' and inseit "45" 
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Page 6, line 3, delete "solely" 

Page 6, delete lines 22 and 23 

Page 6, line 24, delete "(1 )" and insert "(f)" 

Page 6, line 27, delete "(2)" and insert "(g)" 

Page 6, line 28, delete ''and" 

Page 6, line 29, delete "(3)" and insert "(h)" 

[37TH DAY 

Page 6, line 32, delete "(g)" and insert "(i)" and.delete the period and 
insert ''; and 

·(j) other criteria relevant to the criteria contained in clauses (f), (g), (h), 
and (i) of this section." 

Page 7~ line 2, after "approve"· inSert ", modify," 

Page 7,·line 6, delete "60" and insert "45" 

Page 7, line 18, strike. the second "and" and insert "62C," and after 
'·'62i:>" insert ", arui'62E" 

And when so amended the bill do pass and be re-referred to the Committee 
on Taxes and Tax Laws. Amendments adopted. Report adopted. 

Mr. Solon from the Committee on Commerce and Consumer Protection, to 
which was referred 

S.E No. 1232: A resolution memorializing Congress to consider the impact 
of the North American Free Trade Agreement on state sovereignty, the need for 
full legislative deliberation, and the withdrawal of NAFTA from the curre.nt 
fast-track procedures. 

Reports the same b.ack with the recommendation that the resolution be 
amended as follows: 

Page 1, lines 9- and 10, -delete ''would'' ·and insert ''could'' 

Page. I, line 26, delete "places" and insert "may place" 

Page 2, line 7, after "governments" insert "may" 

Page 2, line 3, delete "is secre(and provides no" and insert "may provide 
inadequate" 

Page 2, line ~. after "has" insert "adequateJy" 

Page 2, line 14, after "that" insert '"may" 

• And when so amended the resolution do pass. Amendments adopted. 
Report adopted. 

Mr. Solon from the Committee on Commerce and Consumer Proiection, to 
Which was referred 

S.E No. 1528: A bill for an act relating to insurance; Medicare supplement; 
regulating coverages; conforming state law to federal requirements; making 
technical changes; amending Minnesota Statutes 1992, sections 62A.31, 
subdivisions I, 4, and by adding a subdivision; 62A315; 62A.316; 62A.318; 
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62A.36, subdivision I; 62A.39; 62A.436; and 62A.44, subdivision 2; Laws 
1992, chapter 554, article I, section 18. 

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill be amended 
as follows: 

Page 10, line 11, after the period, insert: 

"Subtf. It. [NOTICE OF LACK OF DRUG COVERAGE.)" and after 
"Each" insert "policy or" · 

Page 10, line- 30, before the period, insert ", except as permitted under 
subdivision lb'' 

Page II, line 19, delete "subject to" and insert "and"· 

Page 11, line 23_, after '"progf'am" insert "or state law" 

Page 14, line 20, reinstate the,stricken "copayment" 

Page 15, _delete lines 4 to IO and-.insert: 

"(2) a minimum of 80 percent of .......i and e11stema,y eligible medical 
expense~ Bet .te ~ ~ ehafge Jimitatiee estal:llishet4 by Hle ~4e_disB.Fe 
preg,am, and supplies not covered by Medicare part B~ +l!is <less Be< i11e1u<1e 
ouq,aliset J)FeSSAJJhBR tHilg&, ·not to exceed any charge limitation establisfzed 
by the Medic9re program Or state law;" . · 

Page 34, line 20, after "date" insert ", except that subdivision I, 
paragraph (r), of section I applies to policies or certificates issued before or 
after that date" 

Page 34, after line 21, insert: 

"Sec. 12. [REVISOR INSTRUCTION.] 

The revisor of statutes shall renumber Minnes~ta Staiufes_ 1992;· section 
62A.31, subdivision la, as subtfivision _6 of that section." 

Renumber the sections in sequence 

Arid when so amended the bill do pass. Amendments adopted. Report 
adopted. 

Ms. Reichgott from the Committee on Judiciary, to which was referred 

S .F. No. 1229: A bill for an act relating to guardianship; providing for 
delegation of certain duties under the pµblic guardianship for persons with_ 
mental retardation act; appropriating money; amending Minnesota Statutes 
1992, section 252A. II 1, subdivision 5. 

Reports the same back witli the recommendation tl\at the bill do pass and 
be re-referred to the Committee on Finance. Report adopted. 

Mrs. Adkins from the Committee on Metropolitan and Local Gove~erit, 
to which was referred -

H.F. No. 74: A bill for an act relating to local government; authorizing the 
city of Minneapolis, special school district No. 1, the city library board, and 
the city park and re,reation_ board to impose residency requirements. 
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Reports the same back with the recoiilmendation that the bill do pass. 
Report adopted. 

Mrs. Adkins from the Committee on Metropolitan and Local Govemment, 
to which was referred 

H.F. No. 237: A bill for an act relating to counties; providing procedures for 
the combination 0f the offices of auditor.zmd treasurer; amending Minnesota 
Statutes 1992, section 375A.10, subdivision 5. 

Reports the same _ back with the recommendation that the bill do pass. 
Report adopted. · 

Mrs. Adkins from the .Committee on Metropolitan and Local Government, 
to which was referred 

H.F. No. 498: A bill for an act relating to St. Louis county; solid waste 
· management; clarifying St. Louis county contracting authority to include 

management operations; modifying contracting procedure; amending Minne­
sota Statutes 1992, section 383C.807, subdivision I. . 

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill do pass. 
Report adopted. 

Mr. Lessard from the Committee on Environment and Natural Resources, to 
which was referred 

S.F. No, 869: A bill for an act relating to natural resources; providing for the 
prevention and suppression of wildfires in forest areas; providing penalties; 
amending Minnesota Statutes 1992, sections 88.01, subdivisions 2, 6, 8, 15, 
and by adding subdivisions; 88.02; 88.03; 88.04; 88.041; 88.05; 88.06; 
88.065; 88.067; 88.08; 88.09, subdivision 2; 88.10; 88.11, subdivision 2; 
88.12; 8,8.14; 88.15; 88.16; 88.17, subdivision I, and by adding a subdivi­
sion; 88:18; 88.22; and 88.76; proposing ·coding for new law in Minnesota 
Statutes, chapter 88; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1992, sections 88.01, 
subdivision 23; 88.17, subdivision 2; and 88.19; and Laws 1992, chapter 556, 
sections 10 and II; and Minnesota Rules, parts 7005.0705; 7005.0715; 
7005.0725; 7005.0735; and 7005.0745. . 

Reports the. same back with the recommendation that the bill be amended 
as follows: 

Delete ·everything after the enacting clause and insert: 

. •. "Section I. Minnesota Statutes 1992, -section 88.01, subdivision 2, is 
· amended to read: 

- ' . . 

Subd. 2. [DIVISION.] "Division" or "the division". means the division of 
laBds aH<I forestry in .the department of natural resources. 

Sec. 2. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 88.0f, subdivision 6, is amended 
to read: 

Subd. 6. [POREST WIWFIRE AREAS.] llvef:)' A county oow er hereafter 
h_aving within its boundaries aay traa 0f-~ ef 1,0()(), or more, contiguous 
acres• -of slan~ing er g,awing limbeF 0f ef unbreken l'flli,ie land 0f ef eute¥eF 
timbef kmd.Bet slearea 0f sther\vise EleBl¾deEI. af eombusti01@ 0f iHfilamfflaele 
,gmwth trees, brush,._ grasslands; dr other vegetative material Where -the 
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polential for wildfire exisrs, is herel,y eeelafell lo be a fe<esf -, aB<I e,;e,y 
elRef eeaaty is hereby Eleel&£e!I R8! te be su€h fefesl_ wildfire· area. · 

Sec. 3. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 88.01, subdivision ·8, is amended 
to r'ead: · · 

. . 
Subd, 8. [BACKFIRE.] "Backfrre" means a frre intentionally started 

ahead of, or in the path of, an approaching fe<esf 0f Jlf'Hl'ff' fire w,ildfire for the 
purpose of burning back toward thal fe<esf 0f Jlf'Hl'ff' fire rhe wildfire so that 
when the two fires meet both will die for lack of fuel. 

Sec. 4. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 88.01, subdivision 15, is 
amended to read: · · · 

Subd. 15. [IMPROVEMENT.] .'-'Improvement" includes any act or thing 
done, or which may be done, and any construction made or structure erected 
or which may be made or erected, and any removal from any land of trees, 
brush, _stumps, or other debris, which rea_sonably tend to prevent or abate 
fefes! fires wildfires. · · 

Sec. 5. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 88.01, subdivision 23, is 
amended to read: 

Subd. ·2_3. [OPEN FIRE; OPEN BUKNING.] "Open fire'' or "open 
burning" means a fire burning in matter, whether concentrated or dispersed, 
which is not contained within a fully enclosed firebox, structure or vehicle and 
from which the products of combustion are emitted directly. to the open 
atmosphere without passing through a stack; duct or chimney. · 

Sec. 6. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 88.01,.is amended by adding ii 
·subdivisicm to read: · ' ·, · ' · . ' 

Subd. 24. [WILDFIRE.] "Wildfire" means a fire requiring suppression 
action, bU;rning any forest, brush, grassland, cropland,' or other Vegetative 
marerial. · · · · 

Sec. 7. Minnesota Statutes 1992; section 88.01, is amended by adding a 
subdivision to read: 

Subd. _25. [CAMPFIRE.] ''Campfire" means a fire _set for cooking, 
warming, Or_ceremo.nial purposes, that is not more than ihrl!'efeet.in <fiCl!neter 
by rhre,e feet high, and.around which the ground is reasonably clear of all 
combusrible material within.five feet of the base of the fire. 

Sec. 8. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 88.01, is amended by adding a 
subdivi_sion to read: 

Subd. 26. [SNOW-COVERED.] "Snow-covered" means that rhe ground 
has a continuous, unbroken cover of snow, to a depth of three inc he$ or more, 
surrounding the immediare area of a fire sufficient /0 keep the·fire from 
spreading. · 

Sec, 9. Minnesota Statutes 1992, ,;ection 88.02, is amend~ 10 read: 

88.02 [CITATION, l'OR!lSTRY WiWFIRE ACT.] 

Sections 88.02 to ~ 88.22 may be cited as the fe•••lry wildfire act. 

Sec. 10. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 88.03, is amended to read:. 

88.03 [CODIFICATION.] 
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Sections 88.03 to ~ 88.22 shall be deemed and construed as a 
codification, revision,and expansion of, and '!8 supplementary to, and taking 
the place of, the laws which existed at the time of the passage of Laws 1925, 
chapter 407, relating to forestry and to ferest aR<I ~· fifes wildfires, 
including Laws 19 l1 , chapter 125, and acts amendatory thereof and supple­
mental thereto; Laws 1913, chapter 159; Laws. 1915, chapter 325; Extra 
Session Laws 1919, chapters 32 and 33, but without abridging or destroying 
any rights, obligations, liabilities, or penalties from, or under, any of such 
laws prior to the. taking effect of Laws 1925, chapter 407. Sections 88.03 to 
~ sl!all 88.22 apply eely to the ferest wildfire areas of this state. In the 
fW0S@eetion et: ~ a civil or criminal prosecution action commenced under 
sections 88.03 to 88.22, or a proceeding thereunder, it sl!all is not ee 
necessary to prove that aey a county eemes willliB the pH<uiew thefeef is a 
wildfire area, but the contrary may be proven by any party to sl!flh the action 
or proceeding. · 

Sec. II. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 88.04, is amended to read: 

88.04 [FIREBREAKS; PREVENTION OF FIRES.] 

Subdivision I. The commissioner shall cooperate with the state highway 
authorities and with the supervising officers of the various towns and. cities in 
the construction of. firebreaks along section lines and public highways. 

Subd. 2. All cities in the state situated in aey fefe6I a wildfire area are 
hereby authorized to clear off all combustible material and debris and create 
at least. two good and sufficient firebreaks of not less than· ten feet in width 
each, which shall completely encircle such. municipalities at a distance of not 
less than 20 rods apart, between which backfires may be set or a stand made 
to fight ferest fifes wildfires in cases of emergency. 

Subd. 3. All towns and cities shall take necessary precautions to prevent the 
starting and spreading of ferest e, ·~ fifes wildfires and to extinguish 
them. They may levy a tax not more than 0.08059 percent of taxable market 
value annually. The tax in any municipality shall not exceed $3,000 in any 
year. The tax when collected shall be known as the fire fund and kept separate 
from all other funds and used only to pay all necessary and incidental 
expenses incurred in enforcing the provisions of sections 88 .03 to ~ 
88.22. Upto $500 shall be expended in any one year from any such fire fund 
for the support of any municipal fire department. No municipality shall make 
any levy for its fire fund at any time when the fund contains $5,000 ot more, 
including cash •OD hand and uncollected taxes that are not delinquent. 

Subd. 4. In all towns .constituted within any of the fefe6I Wildfire protection 
districts which may be established by the commissioner, the respective town 
and city officers and employees shall cooperate with, and be under the general 
supervision and direction of, the commissioner. 

Sec. 12. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 88.041, is amended to read: 

88.041 [~mlRSTJ\'.l'I! l'ORllST FIRE WILDFIRE PREVENTION AND 
SUPPRESSION AGREEMENTS.] 

The commissioner may enter into agreements with other states and the 
Canadian and provincial governments to cooperatively prevent and suppress 
ferest fifes wildfires. 

Sec. 13. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 88.05, is amended to read: 
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. 88.05 [ROADSIDES, CLEARING; FIREBREAKS.] 

All highways, roads, and irails within fefes! wildfire areas a~e declared to 
be established firebreaks and for that purpose the state, through the depart­
µient of natural resources,-_·is,authoriied to clean.up all dead and down timber; 
all underbrush, rotting logs, stumps, _and all other inflaRIB1aele combustible 
refuse and debris along each side of these highways, roads, and trails for a 
distance of 200 feet on each side from the center thereof, all of this material 
to be burned or disposed of under the supervision of a ferestry forest officer 
in such manner as· ~ot- to injure the .growing timber. . . ' ,:-, 

All dead and usable timber taken out of these roadsides shall be piled for the 
immediate removal thereof by the owners of the land from which the same was 
removed. · · 

Sec. 14. Minnesota Statutes 1992, ~ection 88.06, is amended to read: 

88.06 [DEAD OR DOWN TIMBER; REMOVAL.] 

The commissioner may permit, under the commissioner's direct supervi­
sion and cont~l, any civilian Conserva,tion corps, __ works progress admi11-istr~­
tion, or other state or federal relief agency actually engaged in the 
improvement and conservation Of state trust fund lands within the boundaries 
of any state forest to clean Up and remove aH dead or down timber, 
underbrush, rotting logs, stumps, and all. other inflamraable combustible 
refuse and debris which is deemed to be a fire hazard, or the removal of any 
trees in forest stand improvement arid cultural operations whkh is advisable 
in the interesi of. good forest ITil\llagement; and to use so much of these 
cuttings for firewood and other forest development needs while these camps 
are th1,1s actively engaged- in the improvement and care of. these forests. 

Sec. 15. Minnesota Statu(es 1992, section 88_.065, is arnended-10 read: 

88.065 [EQUIPMENT FURMSHED.] 

Subjecl to applicable provisions of state laws respecting purchases, the 
commissioner of natural reso_urces may purchase for , and furnish to iiriy 
governmental subdivisions of the state authorized- to engage in fet:est fire 
wildfire prevention or suppression materials or equipment therefor, .and may 
transport, repair, alld renovate fefest fife- wildfire prevention and· suppression 
materials and equipment for governmental subdivisions of the state. The 
commissioner may use any funds available for the purchase of fares! fiFe 
wildfire prevention or suppression equipment or for its repair, transportation, 
and renovation under federal ,grants, if pernritted by the lerms thereof, or 
under state appropriations, unless otherwise expressly provided:, Except as 
olherwise au\horized or permitted by federal or state laws or regulalions, the 
governmental .. subdivision rec~iving any such materials ·or services shall 
reimburse the slate for the cost. All moneys received in reimbursement shall 
be credited. to .the fund from which the purchase, transportation, repair, or 
renovation was made, and are hereby reappropriated annually and shall be 
available for the same purpose as the original appropriation. 

Sec. 16., Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 88.067, is amended to read: 

88.067 [TRAINING OF LOCAL FIRE DEPARTMENTS.] 

The commissioner may make grants for training of velunteer fire depart­
ments in techniques of fire control that will enable them to assist !he state 
more effeclively in controlling ferest fifes wildfires. The commissioner may 
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require a local match for any grant. Training shall be provided to the.extent 
practicable in coordination with other public . agencies with training and 
educational responsibilities. · 

Sec. 17. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 88.08, is amended to•read: 

88.08 [PQRBST ~ WIWFIRE PROTECTION DISTRICTS.] 

The commissione; may create and establish fefest fire· wildfire protection 
districts, including all lands of both state and private ownership, upon which 
there is a probability of fefest aD<I e,ysJ, fffe6 wildfires starting, and establish 
forest officers over these districts. All such fefe,;t l'•eloetiee wildfire districts 
heretofore established and now in existence are hereby continued until and 
unless hereafter abolished by the commissioner. 

Sec. 18. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 88.09, subdivision 2, is 
amended to read: 

Subd. 2. [PURCHASE, LEASE, OR CONDEMNATION.] The commis­
sioner may on behalf of the state, where no suitable state lands are available, 
purchase, lease or acquire easements on srn.aH tracts or parcels of lands, not 

. exceeding 40 acres in area, e, eestiRg fB0fe t1iaB ~ fe, aey siRgle !fa<+, 
to be used as locations fodire lookout towers, warehouses, or other buildings 
of any kind, or as locations for firebreaks, or for any other use which the 
commis_sioner may deem suitable; also acqu,ire by condemnation any tract of. 
land, not exceeding 40 acres, for these purposes; also acquire, by gift, 
pur~hase, or condemnation, any . easement or right of way that may be 
necessary to provide access to any tract of land so acquired. 

Sec. 19. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 88.10, is amended to read: 

88.10 [FIGHTING fORilST ARB&, WILDFIRES; PERFORMANCE OF· 
DUTY; AUTHORITY OF STATE FOREST OFFICERS.] 

. Subdivision I. Under the direction of the commissioner, forest officers are 
charged with preventing and extinguishing fefost fffe6 wildfires in their · 
respective districts and the performance of such other duties as may be 
required by the commissioner. They may arrest without warrant any person 
found violating any provisions of section~ 88.03 to 88.22, take the person 
before a court of competent jurisdiction in the county charging the person so 
arrested, and the person so charged shaHbe arraigned and given a hearing on 
the complaint. The forest officers shall not be liable in civil action for trespass 
committed in the discharge of their duties. All authorized state forest officers, 
ioslHEiing FangeFs, guai:ds;, iewnshif) fire wardens, - conservation officers, 
smoke chasers, fire supervisors or individuals legally employed as firefight-

. ers, may in the performance of their duties of fire •fighting go onto the 
property of any person, company, or corporation and in so doing may set 
backfires, dig or plow trenches, cut timber for clearing fire lines, dig water 
holes, rerriove fence wires to· provide access to the fire or carry on all other 
customary activities necessary for the fighting of feresl, J'f"""' 0f i,,ysl, fffe6 
wildfires without incurring a liability to anyone, except for damages arising 
out of willful or gross negligence. 

Subd. 2. Any forest officer may serve any warrant for the arrest of any 
person violating any provision of sections 88.03 to 88.22 aD<I f0f that l""'I'"'" 
all ·fefost effieefs """ Heftlby ¥eSted will½ tile same l"'wefS an eeeslables 0f 

elhsf siHHlaf effieefs ef the - iss!HBg 5llffi .".'aHaft!S. 
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Sec. 20. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 88. JI, subdivision 2, is 
amended .to read: 

Subd. 2. Any able.bodied perso~ so summoned who refusiis or negl~ts~r 
otherwise fails to assist in extinguishing such fire or who fails to make all 
reasonable efforts to that end; · until released · by the sunimoning state 
employee, shall be guilty of a misdemeanor a,ia f!YBishea l,y a ~ ef B<>I less 
dlaB $IQ. am! oot -,e dlaB $311 am! Ille eests ef l'Feseemiae, e, ey 
im),Fisanmeat iB Ille eeaely jllil f0f oot less dlaB W, H0f Bl0fe dlaB JO, days. 
The forest officer shall have po:,ver to commandeer, for the time being, 
equipment, tools, appliances, or other property.· in ,the possession, of any 
person either summoned to assist in extinguishing the fire or· in the vicinity 
thereof, and . io use, and to require the persons summoned to use, the 
commandeered property in the fighting and extinguishing of the fire. The 
owner of any property so commandeered shall be promptly paid just 
compensation for the use thereof and all damages done to the commandeered 
property while in this .use by the forest officer from any money available for 
these expenses under sections 88.03 to~ 88.22. 

Sec. 21. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 88.12, is amended to read: 

88.12 [COMPENSATION OF FIGHTERS OF PQ&llST FIRES WII.D• 
FIRES; EMERGENCY EXPENSES.]· 

· Subdivision I . [LIMITATION. J The compensation and expenses of persons 
temporarily employed in emergencies in suppression or control of fefest. fires 
wildfires shall be fixed by the commissioner of natural resources or an 
authorized agent arid. paid as provided by law. Such compensation shall not 
exceed the maximum ra\e for comparable labor established as provided by law 
or rules, .but shall not be subject to any minimum rate so establish.ed. The 
commissioner is aµthorized to draw and expend from money .. appropriated for 
the purposes i>f sections 88.03 to~ 88 .. 22 a reasonable sum, oot te ~ 
~ al aey 0RE> time, am! through ferestry forest officers or other 
authorized ageat he ""84 iB agenis, for paying emergency expel)ses, including 
just compensation for services rendered by persons summoned and for ptivate 
property used, damaged, or appropriated under sections 88.03 to~ 88.22. 
Jbe cornnrissioner of ·fi,nartce is .authorized to dra~ a warrant .for this · sum 
when duly approved by the commissioner. The commissioner or agent in 
charge shall take proper subvouchers or receipts from all persons to whom 
these moneys are paid, and after these subvouchers have been approved they 
shall be filed with the commissioner ·of finance. Authorized funds as herein 
provided at any lime shall be deposited, subject to withdraw.al or disbursement 
by check or othe.rwise for the purposes herein prescribed, in a bank authorized · 
and bonded to receive state deposits; and the bond of this bank to the state 
shail cover and indude this deposit. · 

Subd. 2. [CONTRACTS FOR SERVICES FOR FORESTRY OR l'IRE 
WlLDflRE PREVENTION WORK; COMMISSIONS TO PERSONS EM• 
PLOYED.] The commissioner . is hereby authorized and empowered to 
contract for or accept the services of any and all persons whose aid is 
available, temporarily or otherwi_se, -ill' forestry_ or ·fit:@ 'wildfire ·prevention 
work, either gratuitously or for compensation not' .in ·exc.ess of the limits 
provided by law with respect·to the employment oflabor by the commissioner. 
The commissioner: may ·issue a commission, or other written evidence of 
authority, to any such person whose services ·are so arranged for; and may 
thereby empower such person to act, temporarily or otherwise, as-fire warden, 



1850 JOURNAL OF THE SENATE [37THDAY 

or in any other capacity, with such powers and duties as may be specified in 
the commission or other written evidence of authority, but not in excess of the 
powers conferred by law on forest officers . 

. Sec. 22. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 88.14, is amended to read: 

88.14 [DISPOSAL OF SLASHINGS_ AND DEBRIS.] 

Subdivision I: Where and whenever in the judgment of the commissioner 
or any forest officer there is or may be danger of starting and spreading of fues 
wildfires from slashings and debris from the cutting of timber of any kind and 
for any purpose, or from any accumulation of sawdust, shavings, chips, bark, 
edgings, slabs, or other inflammal,le combustible refuse from the manufacture 
of lumber or other timber products the .. commissioner,. or forest officer, shall 
order the person by or for whom the timber or timber products have been or 
are being cut or manufactured to dispose of such slashings, debris, or refuse 
as the state employee may direct. Where conditions do not pennit the burning 
of the slashings, debris, or refuse over the entire area so, covered, the 

· commissioner may require Sll€ft the person to dispose of the same materials in 
such a way as to establish a· safe fire line around the area requiring such 
protection, the fire line to be of a width and character satisfactory to the 
commissioner~ or otherwise to dispose of the same materials so as to eliminate 
the fire wildfire hazard therefrom. · 

Subd. 2. When any a persori who has been directed by the commissioner, 
or a forest effieefs officer to dispose of such slashings, debris, or refuse fails 
to comply with these directions . the person skall be ~ is guilty of a 
misdemeanor i and, en e0n¥ie1ion lhe,esf, J'Hnishea by a fine ef BO! less than 
~ aad set e*eeediRg $IQQ;. aad oosts ef fFOsesutioe; eF ~ impFisoBment iH 
Ille ~ jail _fef BOI less than ten an<I BOI oi<eeeaing 9ll <lays, an<I eaeh day 
<kwing whiffi Ille fat!..... I<> €8HIJ'ly w;m Ille Fe~uiremenls of Ille esmmissisne• 
soRtlR1:1es shall be deeR1ed a &l!f}amte aREl Elis4:ma vialatioe ef se€tioes -88-.-0a 
10 ~ oot any fllHH9ef ef ·th@sc sffenses may ho !)•sseeulea as sepa.ale 
eeHflts ef ene <al!a£ge er infeRHalisn. 

Subd. 3. When any such slashings, debris, or refuse are not disposed of or 
are left unattended for more than 30 days, contrary to the instructions of the 
commissioner; or forest officer~ the commissioner, or aay a· fot-est Officer or 
fire warden, may go upon the premises· with as many workers as may be 
necessary and burn or otherwise dispose of the same materials and the 
expense thereof skall be is a lien "I""' on the land on which they are situated 
and "I""' all on contiguous lands of the same owner, and also upon all logs 
and other timber products cut or manufactured "I""' all lhese on the lands. 
This lien skall ha¥s has the same effect and may be enforced in the same 
manner as a judgment in favor of the state for money. An itemized statement 
verified by the oath of the commissioner, or forest officer, of the amount of the 
costs and . expenses incurred in burning or otherwise disposing of these 
slashings, debris, or refuse skall must be filed, within 90 days from the time 
the disposal lheFeef is completed, in the office of the county recorder of the 
county in which the timber or timber products were cut.or manufactured; and 
the amount of the lien skall ee is a valid claim that may be collected in a civil 
action from the person who cut or manufactured the wood, timber, or timber 
products from which the slashings, debris, or refuse were produced. Any 
moneys so collected skall must be paid into the state treasury and credited to 
the general ·fund. 
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Subd. 4. Aey A .person who mis or fells trees or bushes efaey laR<I in 
clearing land for aey a roadbed or right-of-way for aey a railroad, highway, 
or trail shall, in the manner and at the time as above prescribed, Imm the 
slashings an<! properly dispose of all combustible material, ""68jll fool an<! 
meoohantable timlleF,- whi6h shall be pFBmptly •oms, ed . 

. ,· 
Sulxl:,5. Aey A person who cuts or fells trees or bushes ef aey laR<I in 

clearing land feF aey pu,psse is he£<!l,y prehibited fFem Betting may ,wt set fire 
to any slashings, brush, roots, or excavated stumps or other combustible 
material on sueh the land an<l lelting the fife ftllr, wt, and the same materials 
ITI.ust be disposed. of ·f)uFSuant ~ too in {lccordance_ with rules or directions of 
the. commissioner~ 

Subd. 6. Aar A contractor. who enters into -a conti-'aCt for th·e construction 
of a public road or other work, whi6h that involves the cutting or grubbing of 
woods, standing timber, or brush, shall J>iie. iB th@ middle. ef the Fight ef way 
all the slashings an<i <iel>Fis se eut er gA1bbed ihe•efFBm an<! !mm an<lproperly. 
dispose of SUffi the slashings and debris without damage to adjoining timber 
or woods, whidl burning Gltall be dene iB a marmeF an<l,at a time satisfaet0Fy 
te the sormnissionBF. The foregoing provisions shall do not prevent the leaving 
of such trees along roads as will be useful for ornamental and shade purposes 
and whiGh that will not · interfere with travel. 

Subd. 7. ~ A contract inade by or on behalfof aey a irmnicip~lity or 
political subdivisi9n of this state whi€h that involves the cutting of~ timber 
on the Fight ef way right-of-way of a public highway shall must provide iB 
l0mls for compliance with the foregoing provisions, but the failure to include' 
this provision in the contract shall does hot re,ieve the _contracto_r from the dtity 
to .Imm an<! properly dispose of these slashings. ' 

Subd. 8. In all'cases not heoom provided· for ·in subdivisions 1 to 7. where 
timber is cllt in, upon, or adjoining aey forest land and· no specific directions 
are given by the commissioner, ·or forest officer, for the disposal of slashings 
and debris resulting therefrom, all sueh slashings and.debris within .200 feet 
of aey adjoining tipiber land or any a public highway, railroad, portage, or 
lake shore, shall neve,theless be .pile<! iB sepaFate and· eempaet p;ies ,eady feF 
burning, whiGh f)iling shall be dene mu.st be properly dispo,sed of by the 
person· by or for whom the timber was, cut within +.5 days afteF sueh timbeF 
was .€HI an<! sueh peF60R shall the,eafte, make sueh fuFth& aispesitisn ef sueh 
slashings and <iel>Fis as the eemmissisneF, 0f ferest effi€@f, may aifea. 

Subd. 9. Ne Sawdust, shavings, chips, bark, edgings, slabs, or other 
inflammable combustible refuse H0ffl the manufacrare ef ~ 0f ethet= 
timbsf t3F0ffilcls shall that the commissioner or an agent of th{! commissioner 
dete_rmines to be a wildfire hazard may not be made or deposited upon any 
public' highway, portage, railroad, or lake shore, or within 100 feet thereof. 

Sec. 23. J\1inne~ta StatulfS 1992, section 88.15, is amended to read: 

88.15 [GAMI> f'llRliS CAMPFIRES.] 

Subdivision 1. [EXTJNGUISHMENT.] Aey read ene,see• or assistant ef a 
read s• 'SFSeer or ether lesal effieer ha¥ing €ha,g,, ef any highway, 0f aey state 
~ Aforest officer, conservation officer, or othe·r peaCe officer who{inds 
that aey a person has left a eanlJ' fife campfire burning iB the effise,'s distfiet 
shall take measures tO e'xtinguish the same fire: 3rid iake f)f0ffilH m.~asuf85 te 
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pt.=e_sesHte action against the person_whe se left the fire or persons respotisible 
for leaving the campfire burning. 

Subd. 2. [NOTTO BE LEFT BURNING.] E¥s,y A person who wheR the 
g,etlR{i is net ea,.,red Vl<ilh SHeW starts a fi,e ift the -¥i€iRily ef fares! eF l'f"iFie 
land campfire shall exercise every reasonable precaution to prevent t_hc fire 
campfire from spreading and shall before lighting the same campfire clear the 
ground of all braachss, brnshwaad, <lry lea¥0s, aad ether combustible 
material within a radius of five feet from the fire, aad ke8f! the fi,e WHief 
if8f8odiate fJOFSaaal sufJ••"isiaa aad sealffil at all limes, aad earefulli 
e"liaguish loo fi,e laefur@ 'l'"lliag the fllac<, base of the campfire. The person 
lighting the campfire shall remain with the campfire at all times and shall 
completely exti_nguish the campfire before Leaving the site. 

Sec. 24. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 88.16, is amended to read: 

88.16 [STARTING FIRES; CAMPFIR!lS; Il'!CINllRATORS; BURNING 
BAN BURNERS; FAILURE TO REPORT A FIRE.] . . ' ' ' 

Subdivision 1.- Except as provided in subdivision 2, it shall be is unlawful-, 
wheR !hs g,etlR{i is oot SHeW ea, ered, ift arty jlffl€8 where !hsre are staadiag 
er grawiag aative seaiferaus lroos;- e, ia areas ef g,etlR{i f£em whi€h aatural 
eeRifereus tree& haw 0000 61ft, eF where there are slashiags ef &u€h troos;- eF 

Rati-¥e bmsh-;- timeer; slashings thereef, 0F e*ea1,•ated stum13s, 0F where the£e 
iS peal 0F fM'3l- ffl0ts ex,c;avaleB 81' g=Fa•.vHlg, to start or have aey an open fire 
without the written permission of the commissioner 0f etheF authori~ee, a 
fore~t .officer, Or an. authorized fire warden. 

Subd. 2. Ne A permit is not required for the following 0fl"ll fires: 

WA seeking or warn,;ng fire eeataiaed ift a firSfJlaee, fireriag, ehareeal 
grill-, fJertable gas <>F li<juid fooled €arRfJ ste¥e er ether similar eaataiaer er 
de¥iee desigaed f<>F the puffJese ef eaeleiRg er heatiilg, eF if !hs area wilhia a 
radius ef fi"8 feet ef !hs fi,e is ftlaseaably eloor ef all eambustible mateFial. 

fbi: The 8llflliag ef graSS; leaves-, rubbish, garbage, braaehes, aad similar 
eomlntslible material Ht an 3f PF0,•e8 in6Hlei:afoF. AD 8fJfJFB~8 ieeinei:aler shall 
he eanstrueted ef fir-e rssistaat mateFial, have a eafJasity of at least lhroo 
bushels, ·be maintained. with a. "FninimlHll burning 63faeity ef al least twe 
bushels, and have a 60¥ef whi€1! is slese<I wheR ift tiStl aad efJeRiags ia ths 10fJ 
eF si<les ef eae iftsh ma,amulft dialfteter. Ne eembus.tible 1HateFial shall he 
...,.... thaa lhroo feet te ths 8Uffl8f eF insiaeratar wheR ift use-c (]) a fire 
started when the ground is snow-covered, except as provided in sectiOn 88.J 7, 
subdivision 3; 

(2) a campfire; 

(3) a fire contained in a charcoal grill, camp stove, or ot~er device 
: designed for the purpose of cooking or heating; or 

(4) afire to burn dried vegetative maierials dnd,other niaterials allowed by 
law or rule in a bur1J,er Of a design that has been approved by -the 
col1lm~SSioner if: · · 

(i/ the area within five feet of the base of the burner is reasonably clear of 
combustible material; and 

(ii) the burner is in use only between the hours of 6:00 p.m. and 8:00 a.m. 
of the following day. 
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Subd. 3, l'ile ee011J3ant ef any· (!R!mises Hl"'R whieh any A person with 
klww/.edge that an unauthorized.fire is burning HI lhe -Yieilltly effersst laa<ls 
on property occupied by the person, whether the .fire was started, by the 
<?CCupant i;>r otherwise,. shall Promptly report the fire to the eetftflHSsioHeF; eF · 

te the nearest feFest e#i€@f 0f fi£@ .. """""8 nearest forestry office, fire 
department, or.other proper.authority. Failure to make this report sball be. 
ileelfltla a dalatiao ef seetieos 88.W te ~ a miSdemeanor and the 
o.ccupant of the premises shall be deemed prima facie guilty of negligence. if 
the unreported fire spreads from the !'••mises le the property or causes 
damage, loss, or injury ef the 6!ats 0f any Jl0fS0R to another person, that 
person's propei-ty, or the.state. ''· 

Sec. 25. Minnesota Statutes 1992, ~ciion 88.17; subdivision I, is 
amen4e<f. to read: · 

. Subdivision. J. Pefmissieo A permit to set start a fire to any grass,• slllllllle, 
jl0at, hmsh, "'1<iRg ef leave&, ,uellish, gamage, llranehes, slashiogs e, weoos 
feF !ha 1'"'!'9So ef elo8BUJ3, eleariog and ilHJlrn,·i1tg Jana e, pre•>'enling e!heF 
fifeskall burn vegetative materials and'other materials al/o~ed by law or rule 
may be givef!,_ v •Ren_e• •ei= t-1:te same_ may bs ~ l:Jl½FBeel.,. upeR sa€h reilSemtble 
eendit-ieflB &EKI_ FeB~Fi.etioRs as too- sommissieser ~ J1reseribe, .. ,t9 ~ 
......., H0fR ·sJ3,eacJ;og aoa ge!ling llsyeoa eeR!Fel bj;.the commissioner or the 
commissioner'.s agent. +his permissioe shall-Thepe·rmit must be·lft the fm:m 
ef a WFilteo l"'fl'lff signed by a reg"1aF forest officerJire warden, authorized 
agent of the pollution control agency, or S0FRO other 6llitallle person te Ile 
aesigoat0'1 authorized by the forest officer, as - fire wa,aen, !hese i,e,mits 
te Ile en feHos furnisl,ea 1,y the eaHHRissian~•- Aey Jl0fS0R S<!lting any fire 0f 

Imming anylhing llllaeF Slleh l"'fl'lff shall 1'eej3 µnd must set the time and 
conditions •under which the fire may be started and burned. The permit must. 
also specifically list the materials that may be burned. The permittee must 
have the permit iB: im,nocJ;ate pessessien while so.engagea on ,the permittee's 
person and shall produce and ""1lillil the permit for inspection when requested 
to aay do so by a forest officer, Wft8ft 1;equss~eEl ffi ~-~ conservation officer, 
or other peace officer; The permltree shall remain With the fire at 4[1 times 4nd 
before leaving the site shall completely extinguish the fire. A person mai not 
Sf art or cause ·a fire 'to_· be. started· On land that" is. not _owned _by or -.Under· the 
l~gaf con.trot of the_'person w_i_thOut the written _j,irmi~sio_n of the owner or 
lessee of the land or an agent of the owner or lessee. Violation· of the permit 
conditions is a m_isdenJ-eilnor an4 is _fmise_f<!r the permit ti, be r_eVo,ked. 

Sec. 26. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 88.17, is amended by addinta 
subdivision to read: 

Subd. 3. [SPfCIAL PE~ITS.] (a) The special permits described in 
paragraphs (b) and (c) are required for the specified activities, even when the 
ground is sn.ow-coVered. · 

(b) The._ cOmmissionef or an authorized agent ·of the commissioner may issµ,e 
a permit tO s_tatt · a· fire for ··rh1; in{truction and tra~ning of firefighte.rs, 
including liquid fuels training . .Except fOr ownerS or oJJt!rators cqnducting fire 
training in specialized industrial settings under gpplicable federal, state, or 
local.standards, owners or operators conducting open burriingfor the purpose 
of instruction and training of firefighters with regard to structures mustfollow 
the techniques describ.e<! in "StrUCtural Burn Training Procedures for the 
Minnesota Technical College Systerii, " issued by the Minnesota technical 
col/.ege system (Saint Paul, 1992). 
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( c) The commissioner or an authorized agent of the commissioner may issue 
a permitfdr the operation of a permanent open burning site. Applicants for a 
perman12flt open burning site permit shall submit a complete application on a 
form provided by the commissioner. The owner or operator of a permanent 
open burning site in existence on August J-, 1993, must submit an application 
for a permit by November J, 1993,·Applicationsfor new open burning sites 
must be submitted at kast 90 days before the date of the proposed operation 
of the site. The application must be submitted to the commissioner and inust 
contain: 

(1) the name, address," and telephone number of all owners _of the site 
proposed for use as the permanent open burning site; · 

(2) if the oper~tor for the proposed permanemopen burning site is different 
from the owner, the name, address, and telephone number of the operator; 

( 3) ·a ieneral description of the material.s to.be bUrned,. including the source 
and ·es![mated quantity; and 

( 4) a topographic or similarly detailed map of the site and surrounding area 
within a one-mile circumference showing all structures that might be affected 
by the operati/Jn of the site. 

Only. ,;~e~· .. tre~ trimmings, or brush that ~fflln'ai be dis'io_se4' OJ by an 
· alternative ·method-such as chipping, composting, or-arwther fflethod may be 

burne4 at a permanent open burning site. A permanent open burning site must 
be located so as not.to create a nuisance_or endanger water quality. 

For the purposes of this paragraph, "pirmanent open burning site" means 
a site G:t which open burning occurs continually for two or ,rwT'e weeks or_ at 

·which there is rei:urri"ng 'intermittr,nt open burning iJf large .volumes of 
vegetative niaterial. · 

Sec: i1. [88.171] [OPEN BURNING PROHIBffiONS.J -

Subdivision 1. [CONfl!'IUALJ The prohibitions in this section are in effect 
at all times of the year. · 

Subif. 2. [PROHIBITED MATERIALS.] A person may not conduct, cause, 
or permit open· burning of oils, rubber, plastics, chCmically-treiited ma.terials, 
or other_materii.lls· that produce excessive Or twxioUS smoke, including .tires, 
railroad ties, chemically-treated lumber; composite shingles, tar paper, 
insulatio'!, composition_ board, sheetrock, wiring, paint, or paint filters. 

Subd. 3. [HAZARDOUS WASTES.] A person may not conduct, cause, or 
permit- open burning of hazardous waste as defined insection 116.06, 
subdivision 11, and applicable rules, of the pollution control agency. 

Subd. 4. [INDUSTRIAL SOLID WASTE.] A person may not conduct, 
cause, or permit open burning- of solid waste generated from an industrial or 
manufacturing process or from a service or commercial structure. 

Subd. 5. [DEMOLiTi:ON DEBRIS.]-A person may not conduct, cause, _or 
permit open burning of burnable building material generatedfrom demolition -
of conirnerdal or institutional structures. Afarm buildi,ig is not a commerctal 
Structure fOr t~e purposes of this subdivision.. · · · · 

·- Subd. 6. [SALVAGEOPERATIONS.]Aperson may not conduct, cause, or 
permit salvage operqtions by open burning. : · 
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Subd. 7. [MOTOR VEHICLES.] A person may not condu~t, cause, or 
permit the processing of motor vehicles by open burning. 

Subd. 8. [GARBAGE.] A person may rwt-conduct, cause, o·r permit open 
burning. of discarded material rfsulting from the handling, processing, 
storage, preparation, serving, or consumption of food, unless specifically 
allowed under section 17.135. 

Subd. 9. [BURNING BAN.] A person may not conduct, cause, or permit 
open burning duTing a burning ban put into effect b)l .a county or other local 
authority or a state department or agency. 

Subd. JO. [SMOLDERING FIRES.] A person may not allow a fire to 
smolder with no flame present, except when the fire is conducted for the 
purpose of managing forests, prairies, or wildlife habitats. · 

Sec. 28. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 88.18, is ·amended to read: 

88.18 [FIRE WARDENS.] 

The commissioner may appoint ss13erYisers, essstaBles, ·aaa €lefk-s ef 
~ ~ ef atie&; aaG 13resi£1e0ts 0F f1F0si£1i0g effieeffi ef aty eeuneils 
local government officials, authorized agents of the pollution control agency, 
fire chiefs, or other responsible persons to be fire wardens fef in their 
respective districts;. a .. ,h!iey !ihall <le all !hmgs ,easanably .. ••••• .. )' te j3f0!eet 
!lio fFOfeFI)' of su€li muni•ifalitie• f..,,.. fiF@ ....a .te el<!iHguisli the same. 

Sec. 29. [88.195] [PENALTIES.] 

Subdivision 1. [FAILURE TO EXTINGUISH A FIRE.] A person who starts 
and fails to control or extinguish a fire, whether on property owned by the 
person or On the· property of another, before the fire endangers or causes 
damage to the property of another person or the state is guilty of a 
misdemeanor. 

Subd. 2. [FAILURE TO CONTROL A PERMIT FIRE.] A person who has 
a burning permit and fails to keep the permitted fire contained within the area 
described in the burning permit or who fails to keep the fire restricted to the 
materials listed in the burning permit is guilty of a misdemeanor. 

Subd. 3. [CARELESS OR NEGLIGENT ACTS.] (a) A person who. 
carelessly or negligently starts a.fire that endangers of causes damage to the 
property of another person or the state is guilty of a misdemeanor. 

(b)Aperson who participates in an act involving careless or negligenruse 
of a motor vehicle, other internal combustion engines, firearms .with tracers 
or combustible wads, fireworks, smoking materials, electric fenees, torches, 
flares, or.other burning or smoldering substances whereby a fire is started 
and is not immediately extinguished before the fire endangers or causes 
damage to the property of. another person or the state is guilty of a 
misdemeanor. 

Sec. 30. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 88.22, is amended to read: 

88.22 [fQRllST HR,e WIWFIRE PREVENTION; CLOSING FOREST 
ROADS AND TRAILS: PROHIBffiNG OPEN FIRES AND SMOKING; 
REGULATING PRIVATE AND PUBLIC DUMPING AREAS: PENAL­
TIES.] 
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Subdivision I. (a) When the commissiones· of natural resources shall 
determine that conditions conducive to ferest Hf8 wildfire hazards exist in the 
fefeSt wildfire areas of the state and that the presence of persons in the ferest 
wildfire areas tends to aggravate ferest fife wildfire hazards; render forest 
trails impassable by driving thereon during wet seasons and hampers the 
effective enforcement of state timber trespass and game laws, the commis­
sioner may by written order, close any road or trail leading into any land used 
for .any conservation _purposes, to all-modes of travel except that considered 
essential such as residents traveling to and from their hom~s or in other Cases 
to be determined by the authorized forest officers assigned to guard the area. 

(b)The commissioner may also, upon such determination, by written order, 
suspend the issuance of permits for open fires, revoke or suspend the 
operati'on of a permit previously issued and, to the extent the commissioner 
deems necessary, prohibit the building of all or some kinds of open fires in all 
or any part of a f8fe6t wildfire area regardless of whether a permit is qtherwise 
required; and the commissioner also may, by written order, prohibit smoking 
except at places of habitation or automobiles or other enclosed vehicles 
properly equipped with an efficient ash tray. 

Subd. 2. The commissioner may close any public or private dumping area, 
by posting such area as closed to dumping, whenever the commissioner deems 
it necessary for._the prevention of fefest fiFes wildfirt:?s. Thereafter no person 
shall deposit refuse of any kind within of adjacent to such closed area, or 
along the road leading thereto. 

The commissioner shall establish such minimum standards governing 
public and private dumping areas as the commissioner deems necessary _for 
the prevention of feFest Hf8S wildfires. 

Subd. 3. Aay vielatieas .1 violation of this section s!,a,11 eeastiM• is a 
misdemeanor. 

Sec. 31. [REPEALER.] 

Minnesota Statutes 1992, sections 88.17, subdivision 2; and 88.19; and 
Laws 1992, chapter 556, sections IO and 11, are repealed." 

Delete the title and insert: 

. ''A bill for an act relating to natural resources; providing for the prevention 
and suppression of wildfires; providing penalties; amending Minnesota 
Statutes 1992, sect.ions 88.01, subdivisions 2, 6, 8, 15, 23, and by adding 
subdivisions; 88.02; 88.03; 88.04; 88.041; 88.05; 88.06; 88.065; 88.067; 
88.08; 88.09, subdivision 2; 88.10; 88.11, subdivision 2; 88.12; 88.14; 
88.15; 88.16; 88.17, subdivision 1, and by adding a subdivision; 88.18; and 
88.22; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 88; 
repealing Minnesota·Statutes 1992, sections 88. 17, subdivision 2; and 88.19; 
and Laws 1992, chapter 556, sections IO and II." 

And when so amendeo the bill do pass. Amendments adopted. Report 
adopted: 

Ms .. Berglin from th~ Committee on Health Care, to which was referred 

. S.F. No. 832: A bill for an act relating to occupations and professions; 
regulating athletic trainers; establishing an advisory council; providing for 
registration; requiring fees; providing for rulemaking; imposing penalties; 
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appropriating money; amending Minnesota Statutes 1992, section II 6J .70, 
subdivision 2a; proposing coding for new law· in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 
148. . 

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill do pass and 
be re-referred to the Committee on Governmental Operations and Reform. 
Report adopted. · · · 

Mr. Metzen from the Committee on GoVernmental Operations and-Reform, 
to which was referred 

S.E No. 685: A bill for an act relating to retirement; the Minneapolis fire 
department relief association; setting service pension rates; repealing Laws 
1971, chapter 542. 

Reports the same. back with the recommendation that the bill be amended 
as follows: 

Page I , after line 5, insert: 

"ARTICLE I 

MINNEAPOLIS ARE BENEAT INCREASE" 

Page I, line 8, delete "1972" and insert "1971" and after the third 
comma, insert '' section 1, • • 

Pagel, line 9, after "9" insert", to the contrary" and delete "of' and 
insert "payable by the" 

Page 1, line _10, delete ''retiring'' and insert ''terminat(ng active service as 
a Minneapolis firefighter" 

Page I, line II, delete "will" and insert "must" 

Page I , after line 11, insert: 

"length of service 
credited service pension payable'' 

Page 2, line 11, delete "Section 1 is" and insert "Sec.tions 1 and.2 are". 

Page 2, line 13, delete "is" and insert "does" 

Page 2, line 14, delete "retroactive for members retiring" and insert 
'' apply to members of the Minneapolis fire department relief association who 
terminated active service as a Minneapolis firefighter" 

Page 2, after line 14, insert: 

"ARTICLE 2 

CONFORMING CHANGES 

Section I. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 353B.07, subdivision 3, is 
amended to read: 

Subd. 3. [FORMULA PERCENTAGE RATE.] (a) The formula percentage 
rate shall be 2.333 percent per year of allowable service for each of the first 
20 years of allowable Service, 1.333 percent per year of allowable service for 
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each year of allowable service in excess of 20 years but not in excess of 27 
years, and .5 percent for each year of allowable service in excess of 25 years 
for the former members of the following consolidating relief associations: 

(I) Rochester fire department relief association; 

(2) Rochester police relief association; 

(3) St. Cloud fire department relief association; 

(4) St. Cloud police relief association; 

(5) St. Louis Park police relief association; and 

( 6) Winona police relief association. 

(b) The formula percentage rate shall be 2.5 percent per year of allowable 
service for each of the first 20 years of allowable service for the former 
members of the following consolidating relief associations: 

(I) Albert Lea police relief association; 

(2) Anoka police relief association; 

(3) Faribault fire department relief association; 

(4) Faribault police benefit association; 

(5) Mankato police benefit association; 

(6) Red Wing police relief association; and 

(7) West St. Paul police relief association. 

(c) The formula percentage rate shall be 2.5 percent per year of allowable 
service for each of the first 20 years of allowable service and .5 percent per 
year of allowable service for each year. of service-• in excess of 25 years of 
allowable service for the former members of the following consolidating relief 
associations: 

(I) Austin firefighters relief association; 

(2) Austin police relief association; 

(3) South St. Paul firefighters relief association; 

( 4) South St. Paul police relief association; and 

(5) Virginia police relief association. 

(d) The formula percentage rate shall be 2. 1875 percent per year of 
allowable service for each of the first 20 years of allowable service and 1.25 
percent per year of allowable service for each year of allowable service in 
exc_ess of 20 years of allowable service but not in excess of 27 years of 
allowable service for the former members of the following consolidating relief 
associations: 

(I) Bloomington police relief associations; and 

(2) Columbia Heights police relief association. 

(e) The formula percentage rate shall be 2.65 percent per year of allowable 
service for each of the first 20 years of allowable. service and an additional 
annual benefit of $120 per year of allowable service in excess of 20 years of 
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allowable service but not in excess of 25 years of allowable service for the 
former members of the following consolidating rel_ief associations: 

(I) Hibbing firefighters relief association; and 

(2) Hibbing police relief association. 

(t) The formula percentage rate or rates shall be the following for the former 
members of the consolidating relief associations as indicated: 

(I) 2. 5 percent per year of allowable service for each of the first 20 year's 
of allowable service, one percent per year of allowable service ip. excess of 20 
years of allowable service but not more than 25 years of allowable service, 
and LS percent per year of allowable service in excess of 25 years of 
allowable service, Albert Lea firefighters relief association; 

(2) the greater of 2.5 percent per year of allowable service for each of the 
first 20 years _of allowable service applied to the final salary base, or two 
percent per year of allowable service for each of the first 20 years of allowable 
service applied to top grade patrol officer's salary base, Brainerd police relief 
association; 

(3) 4 .. 25 percent per year of allowable service for each of the first 20 years 
of allowable .service and an additional.benefit of $10 per month. per year of 
·a11owab]e service in excess of 20 years.Of allowable service but not more than 
25 years of allowable service, Buhl police relief association; 

(4) 2.5 percent per year of allowable service for each of the first 20 years. 
of allowable service and an aµditional benefit of $5 per month per year of 
allowable service in excess of 20 years·of allowable service.but not more than 
25 years of allowable service, Chisholm firefighters relief association; 

(5) 2.5 percent per year of allowable service for each of the first 20 years 
of allowable service and an additional benefit of $5 per month per year of 
allowable service in excess of 20 years of allowable servic~ but not more than 
25 years of allowable service and .5 percent per year of allo.wable service in 
excess of 25 years of allow3.ble service, ChisJ:iolm police i-elief association; 

(6) 2. 1875 percent per year of allowable servb, for each yea~ of the first 20 
years of allowable service, 1.25 · percent per year of allowable service in 
excess of 20 years of allowable service but not more .than 25 years of 
a110wable service and l. 75 percent per year ·of allowable service _in excess of 
25 years of allowable service, Columbia Heights fire department relief 
association, paid division; · 

0) 2.5 percent per year of allowable service for each year of the first 20 
years· of allowable Service and 1.5 percent per ye~ of allowable ~ervice 
rendered after attaining the age of 60 years, Crook_Sloi.t 'fire dep~rtment relief 
association; · · · C • , 

(8) 2.5 percent per year of allowable service for each year of the first 30 
)'ears of allOWable service, Crookston· police relief ·a·ssociation; , 

(9) 2.25 percent per year of allowable ser~ice for each year of the first 20 
years of allowab_Ie service and J .25 percent per year of allowable service in 
excess of 20 years of allowable service, but not more than 27 years of service, 
Crystal police relief association; · 
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( 10) I. 99063 percent per year of allowable service for each year of the first 
20 years of allowable service,· l.25 percent for the 21st year of allowable 
service, and 2.5 percent per year of allowable service in excess of 21 years of 
allowable service but not more than 25 years of allowable service, Duluth 
firefighters relief association; 

(11) 1.9875 percent per year of allowable service for each year of the first 
20 years of allowable service, 1.25 percent for the 21st year of allowable 
service,. and 2.5 percent per year of allowable service in excess of 21 years of 
allowable service but not more than 25 years of allowable service, Duluth 
police relief association; 

(12) 2.5 percent per year of allowable service for each year of the first 20 
years of allowable service, and two percent pei: year of allowable service in 
excess of 20 years but not more than 25 years of allowable service and not to 
include any year of allowable service rendered after attaining the age of 55 
years, Fairmc:,nt police benefit association; 

( 13) two percent per year of allowable service for each year of the first ten 
years of allowable service, 2.67 percent per year of allowable service in 
excess of ten years of allowable service but not . more than 20 years of 
allowable service and 1.3333 percent per year of allowable service in excess 
of 20 years of serVice but not more than 27 years of allowable service, Fridley 
police penSion association; 

(14) 2.5 percent per year of allowable service for each year of the first 20 
years of allowable· service and an additional annual amount of $30 per year of 
allowable service in excess of 20 years of allowable service but not more than 
30 year.s of allOwable service, -Ma!1kato fire departmerit relief association; 

(15) for members who terminated active service as a Minneapolis fire­
fighter before June 1, 1993, 2.0625 percent per year of allowable service for 
each year of the first'20 years of allowable service, 1.25 percent per year of 
allowable service in excess of 20 years of allowable service but not more than 
24 years of allowable service and five percent for the 25th year of allowable 
service, and for members who terminated active service as a Minneapolis 
firefighter after May 31, 1993, two percent/qr each year of the first 19 years 
of allowable service, 3.25 percent for the 20th year of allowable service, and 
two percent per year of allowable service in excess of 20 years of seryice, but 
not more than- 25 years of allowable· service, Minneapolis fire department 
relief association; 

(16) 2.125 percent per year of allowable service for each year of the first 20 
years of allowable service, 1.25 percent per year .of allowable service in 
excess of 20 years of allowable service but not more than 24 years of 
allowable. service, and five percent for the 25th year of allowable service, 
·Minneapolis police relief association; 

( 17) the greater of 2. 5 percent per year· of allowable service for each of the 
first 20 years of allowable service applied. to the final salary base, or two 
percent per year of allowable service for each of the first 20 years of allowable 
service applied to highest patrol officer's salary base plus .5 percent of the 
final salary base per year of allowable service for each of the first three years 
of allowable service in excess of 20 years of allowable service, New Ulm 
police relief association; 
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{18) two percent per year of allowable service for each of the first 25 years 
of allowable service and 1.5 percent per year of allowable service in excess of 
25 years of allowable service, Red Wing fire department relief association; 

(19) 2.55 percent per year of allowable service for each of the first 20 years 
of allowable service, Richfield fire department relief association; · 

(20) 2 .4 percent per year of allowable service for each of the first 20 years 
of allowable service and l.3333 percent per year of allowable service in 
excess of 20 years of allowable service but not more than 27 years of 
allowable service, Richfield police relief association; 

(21) for a former member with less than 20 years of allowable service on 
June 16, 1985, 2.6 percent, and for a former member with 20 or more years 
of allowable service on June 16, 1985, 2.6175 percent for each of the first 20 
years of allowable service and,: for each'fotmer member, one percent for each 
year of allowable service in excess of 20 years, but no more than 30 years, St. 
Louis Park fire department relief association; 

(22) l.9375 percent per year of allowable service for each of the first 20 
years of allowable service, 2 .. 25 percent per, year of allowable service in 
excess of 20 years of allowable service but not more than 25 years of 
allowable service, and .5 percent per year of allowable service in excess of 25 
years of allowable service, St. Paul fire department relief association; 

(23) two percent per year of allowable service for each of the first 25 years 
of allowable service and .5 percent per year of allowable service in excess of 
25 years of allowable service, St. Paul police relief association; 

(24) 2.25 percent per year of allowable service for each of the first 20 years 
of allowable service and one percent per year of allowable service _in excess 
of 20 years but not more than 25 years of allowable service and .5 percent per 
year of allowable service in excess of 25 years, Virginia fire department relief 
association; 

(25) two percent per year of allowable service for each of the first 20 years 
of allowable service, one percent per year of allowable service in excess of 20 
years but not more than 24 years of allowable service, three percent for the 
25th year of allowable service and one percent per year of allowable service 
in excess of 25 years of allowable service but not more than 30 years of 
allowable service, West SL Paul firefighters relief association; and 

(26) 2.333 percent for each of the first 20 years of allowable service, 1.333 
percent for each year of allowable service in excess of 20 years but no more 
than 28 years, and .5 percent for each year of allowable service in excess of 
25 years, Winona fire department relief association. 

Sec. 2. [EFFECTIVE DATE.] 

Section 1 is effective on the effective date of article 1, section 1:" 

Amend the title as follows: 

Page 1, line 4, after the semicolon, insert ''amending Minnesota Starutes 
1992, sec_tion 352B.07, su_bdivision 3;" 

And when so amended the bill do pass. Amendments adopted. Report 
adopted. 
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Mr. Moe, R. D. from the Committee on Rules and Administration, to which 
was referred 

H.F. No. 477 for comparison with companion Senate File, reports the 
following House File was found identical and recommends the House File be 
given its second reading and substituted for its companion Senate File as 
follows: 

GENERAL ORDERS 
· H.F. No. S.F. No. 

477 76 

CONSENT CALENDAR 
H.F. No. S.F. No. 

CALENDAR 
H.F. No. S.F. No. 

and that the above Senate File be indefmitely postponed. 

· Pursuant to Rule 49, this report was prepared and submitted by the . 
Secretary of the Senate on behalf of the Committee on Rules and Adminis-

. tration. Report adopted. 

Mr. Moe, R.D. from the Committee on Rules and Administration, to which 
was referred 

··. H.F. No. 783 for comparison with c01:npanion Senate File, reports the 
following House File was found identical and recommends the House File be 
given its second reading and substituted for its companion Senate File as 
follows: · 

GENERAL ORDERS 
H.F. No. S.F. No. 

783. 656 

CONSENT CALENDAR 
H.F. No. S.F. No. 

CALENDAR 
H.F. No. S.F. No. 

and that the above Senate File be indefinitely postponed. 

Pursuant to Rule 49, this report was prepared and submitted by the 
Secretary of the Senate on behalf of the Committee on Rules and Adminis­
tration. Report adopted. 

Mr._ Moe, R.D. from the Committee on Rules and Administration, to which 
was referred 

H.F. No. 520 for comparison with companion Senate File, reports the 
following House File was found identical and recommends the House File be 
given its second reading and substituted for its companion· Senate file as 
follows: 

GENERAL ORDERS 
H.F. No. S.F. No. 

520 528 . 

CONSENT CALENDAR 
H.F. No. S.F. No. 

CALENDAR 
H.F. No. S.F. No. 

and that the above Senate File be indefinitely postponed. 

Pursuant to Rule 49, this report was prepared and submitted by the 
Secretary of the Senate on behalf of the Committee on Rules and Adminis­
tration. Report adopted. 
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Mr. Moe, R.D. from the Committee on Rules and Administtation, to which 
was referred 

H.F. No. 1153 for comparison with companion Senate File, re]X>rtS the 
following House File was found identical and recommends the House File be 
given its second reading and substituted for its companion Senate File as follows: 

GENERAL ORDERS 
H.F. No. S.F. No. 

1153 984 

CONSENT CALENDAR 
H.F. No. S.F. No. 

CALENDAR 
H.F. No. S .F. No. 

and that the above Senate File _be indefinitely ]X>Stponed. 

Pursuant to Rule 49, .this report was prepared and submitted by the 
Secretary of the Senate on behalf of the Committee on Rules and Adminis­
tration. Re]X>rt adopted. 

Mr. Moe, R.D. from the Committee on Ruies and Administration, to which 
was referred 

H.F. No. 1404 for comparison with companion Senate File, re]X>rts the. 
following House File was found not identical ·with companion Senate File as 
follows: 

GENERAL ORDERS 
H.F. No. S.F. No. 

1404 1005 

CONSENT CALENDAR 
H.F. No. S.F. No. 

CALENDAR 
H.F. No. S.F. No. 

Pursuant to Rule 49, the Committee on Rule·s and Administration recom­
mends that H.F. No. 1404 be amended as follows: 

Delete all the language after the enacting clause of H.F. No. 1404 and insert 
the language after the enacting clause of S.F. No. 1005, the first engrossment; 
further, delete the title of H.F. No. 1404 and insert the title of S.F. No. 1005, 
the first engrossment. . 

And when so amended H.F. No. 1404 will be identical to S.F. No. 1005, 
and further recommends that H.F. No. 1404 be given its second reading and 
substituted for S.F. No. 1005, and that the Senate File be indefinitely 
]X>Stponed. 

Pursuant to Rule 49, this report was prepared and submitted by the 
Secretary of the Senate on behalf of the Committe_e on Rules and Adminis­
tration. Amendments adopted. Re]X>rt adopted. 

Mr. Moe, R. D. from the Committee on Rules and- Administration, to which 
Was referred 

H.F. No. 945 for comparison with companion Senate File, re]X>rts the 
following House File was found not identical with companion Senate File as 
follows: 

GENERAL ORDERS 
H.F. No. S.F. No. 

945 991 

CONSENT CALENDAR 
H.F. No. S.F. No .. 

CALENDAR 
H.F. No. S.F. No. 
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Pursuant to Rule 49, the Committee on Rules and Administration recom­
mends that H.F. No. 945 be amended as follows: 

Delete all the language after the enacting clause of H.F. No. 945 and insert 
the language after the enacting clause of S.F. No. 991, the first engrossment; 
further, delete the title of H.F. No. 945 and insert the title of S.F. No. 991, the 
first engrossment. 

And when so amended H.F. No. 945 will be identical to S.F. No. 991, and 
further recommends that H.F. No. 945 be given its second reading and 
substituted for S.F. No. 991, and that the Senate File be indefinitely 
postponed. 

Pursuant to Rule 49, this report was prepared and submitted by the 
Secretary of the Senate on behalf of the Committee on Rules and Adminis­
tration. Amendments adopted. Report adopted. 

Mr. Moe, R.D. from the Committee on Rules and Administration, to which 
was referred 

H.F. No. 806 for comparison with companion Senate File, reports the 
following House File was found identical and recommends the House File be 
given its second reading and substituted for its companion Senate File as 
follows: 

GENERAL ORDERS 
H.F. No. S.F. No. 

806 666 

CONSENT CALENDAR 
H.F. No. S.F. No. 

CALENDAR 
H.F. No. S.F. No. 

and that the above Senate File be indefinitely postponed. 

Pursuant to Rule 49, this report was prepared and submitted by the 
Secretary of the Senate on behalf of the Committee on Rules and Adminis­
tration. Report adopted. 

Mr. Moe, R.D. from the Committee on Rules and Administration, to which 
was referred 

H.F. No. 670 for comparison with companion Senate File, reports the 
following House File was found not identic;al with companion Senate File as 
follows: 

GENERAL ORDERS 
H.F. No. S.F. No. 

670 769 

CONSENT CALENDAR 
H.F. No. S.F. No. 

CALENDAR 
H.F. No. S.F. No. 

Pursuant to Rule 49, the Committee on Rules and Administration recom­
mends that H.F. No. 670 be amended as follows: 

Delete all the language after the enacting clause of H.F. No. 670 and insert 
the language after the enacting clause of S:F. No. 769, the first engrossment; 
further, delete the title of H.F. No. 670 and insert the title of S.F. No. 769, the 
first engrossment. 
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And when so amended H.F. No. 670 will be identical to S.F. No. 769, and 
further recommends that H.F. .No. 670 be given its second reading and. 
substituted for S.F. No. 769, and that the Senate File be indefinitely 
postponed. 

Pursuant to Rule 49, this. report was prepared and submitted by the 
Secretary of the Senate on behalf of the Committee on Rules and Adminis-
tration. Amendments adopted. Report adopted. · 

Mr. Moe, R.D. from the Committee on Rules and Administration, to which 
was referred 

H.F. No. 667 for comparison with companion Senate File, reports the 
following House File was· found not identicahvith companion· Senate File as 
follows: -

GENERAL ORDERS CONSENT CALENDAR 
H.F. No. S.F. No. H.F. No. S.F. No. 

667 587 

CALENDAR 
H.F. No. S.F. No. 

Pursuant lo Rule 49, the Committee on Rules and Administration recom­
mends that H.F. No. 667 be amended as follows: 

Delete all the language after the enacting clause. of H.F. No. 667 and insert 
the language after the enacting clause of S.F. No, 5~7, the first engrossment; 

. further, delete the title of H.F. No. 667 and insert the title of S.F. No. 587, the 
first engrossment. 

And when so amended H.F. No. 667 will be identical to S.F. No: 587, arid 
further recommends that H.F. No. 667 be given its second reading and 
substituted for S.F. No. 587, and that the Senate File be indefinitely 
postponed. 

Pursuant to Rule 49, this report was prepared and submitted by the 
Secretary of the Senate on behalf of the Committee on Rules and Admittls­
tration. Amendments adopted. Report adopted. 

Ms. Piper from the Committee on Family Services, to which was referred 

. S.F. No. 1361: A bill for an act relating to the legislative commission on 
children, youth, and theirJamilies; authorizing· the commission to hire staff; 
prescribing duties of other state officers; changing certain reporting require­
ments; directing the ·governor to consult with the commission when making 
Certain program transfers; providing grants for community-based programs; 
appropriating money; amending Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 3.873, 
subdivisions 4, 5, 6, 7, and 9; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota 
Statutes, chapter 4. 

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill be amended 
as follows: 

Page I, lines 1510 17, delete the new language and insert" The legislative 
Coordinating cominission shall supply the commission with the necessary 
staff, office space, and administrative services.•• 

Page 1, lines 23 and 24, reinstate the stricken language and delete the new 
language 
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Page 2, lines 2 to 6, delete the new language 

Page 2, line 15, reinstate the stricken "(d)" and delete "(e)" 

Page 2, line 21, reinstate the stricken "(e)" and delete "(f)" 

Page 2, line 24, delete "at least four times per year" 

Pages 5 to 7, delete sections 6 to 8 and insert: 

"Sec. 6. [121.834] [CITATION; PURPOSE.] 

Subdivision 1. [CITATION.] Sections 6 to 9 may be cited as the "family 
services collaboratives act." 

Subd. 2. [PURPOSE.] The purposes of family services collaborative,· are 
to: 

( 1) ensure inclusive and effective support for young children and their 
families that will result in: 

(i) reduced numbers of low birthweight infants; 

(ii) increased numbers of children who are adequately immunized and 
healthy; . 

(iii) improved child and family nutrition; 

(iv) decreased numbers of young children requiring out-of-home placement; 

(v) improved family functioning to promote and support healthy child 
~evelopment; 

(vi) improved prospects for high academic, achievement for all children 
entering school; 

(vii) improved early identification of childr:en with learning difficulties; 

(viii)'decreased numbers.of children requiring long-term specia[ educatlon 
services; and · 

(ix) increased parental knowledge of child development and parenting 
skills; 

(2) provide for the most'effective and efficient delivery of services necessary 
to meet the needs of young children and their families through: 

(i) seamless coordination of education services, social services, and health 
services for pregnant wqmen and young children, birth io age six, and their 
families; · 

(ii) greater flexibility for local decision-makers to provide family support in 
their communities; 

(iii) improved efficiency in the use of existing available resources; 

(iv) increased incentives for earlier identification and intervention; 

(v) utilization of culturally specific services for children and families of 
color; · 

(vi) increased utilization of the strengths and resources of local communi­
ties, neighborhoods, and families; and 
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(vii) pooling of state, local, and private fends to provide integrated 
services, supplemental service·s, lind to procure additiqnal federal or priv~te 
fends. 

Sec. 7. [121.835] [FAMILY SERVICES COLLABORATIVES.] 

Subdivision 1. [ESTABLISHMENT.] in order to qualify as a family 
services c.ollaborative, a minimum of one school district and one county must 
enter into an agreement to provide coordinated family services and to co11lmit 
resources to an integrated fund. Collaboratives are strongly encouraged to 
include other local providers, induding additional. school districts and 
countils, other municipalities, local health organizations, private and non-. 
profit service providers, c;hi/d care providers, localfoun,dations; businesses, 
local transit authorities or other ~ranspOrtatiori providers, community actiofl 
agencie.s under section 268.53, senior citizen volun'teer organizations, and. 
churches which provide nonse~tarian services.-

Subd. 2. [DUTIES.] Each family services collaborative shall: 

(I) design and implement an integrated local service delivery system for 
young children and their families which coordinates services across agencies 
and is client centered. The delivery system shall provide a continuum of 
services for children through the age of 18, but the greatest emphasis shall be 
placed on support for pregnant women and for children from birth to age Six; 

(2) encourage coordination through co-location. of services, shared staff, 
and integrated data processil'lg systems; 

(3) identify a service delivery area; 

( 4) identify federal, state, and local institutiona(barriers to coordination of 
services and sUggest ways to remove. these barriers; 

/5) establish an integrated fend from federal, state, local, and private 
sources. to provide integrated and supplemental services; 

(6) seek to maximize federal and private fends by designating local 
expenditures for services that can be matched with federal or private grant 
dollars and by designing services -to meet the requirements for state and 
federal reimbursement; 

(7) develop mechanisms to identify outcomes and develop assessments to 
measure the effectiveness of the services provided by- the family services 
collaborative; 

(8) negotiate contracts with state agencies and other fending sources to 
receive additional fends to help meet the goals of the local family services 
collaborative; and 

(9) _establish management (lnd information systerits to ensure fiscal acco~nt­
ability. 

Subd: 3. [INTEGRATED LOCAL SERVICE DELIVERY SYSTEM.] A 
family services collaborative shall design an integrated local service delivery 
system that coordinates sefvices between existing agencies and funding 
streams .. -The local service delivery system must include an extensive home­
visit component. The integrated local service delivery system must provide 
for: 
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.( 1) improved outreach, early identification, and intervention across sys­
te!tfS,' 

(2) a system of inclusion to provide access for support to all families within 
a community; 

( 3) coordinated services that eliminate the need to match clients with 
multiple pr.ovid,ers, funding streams, and provider eligibilities; 

(4) improved access to services through coordinated transportation ser­
vices; 

(5) a home-visit component that provides a support system to new mothers 
that includes one visit in the hospital at birth and at least one follow-up home 
visit within one week of birth. for all children, and continuous visits to the 
_homes of.children. who are potentially at risk; 

(6) coordinated assessment across systems that determines which children 
and families need multiagency service coordination and supplemental ser­
vices; 

(7) multiagency service plans and unitary case management coordination; 
and · 

(8) integrated funding. 

Subd. 4. [INTEGRATED FUND.] A family services collaborative must 
establish an integrated fund to help provide an integrated service system and 
to fund additional supplemental services. The integrated fund may consist of 
federal, state, local, and private resources. The family services collaborative 
agreement mu.St specify a minimum financial commitment by the participants 
to an integrated fund. Participants may not reduce their financial commitment 
except as specified in the agreement. 

Se.c. 8. [121.836] [IMPLEMENTATION.] 

Subdivision I. [INTERAGENCY FAMILY SERVICES TEAM.] The inter­
agency family services team shall consist of the commissioners, or their 
designees, of education, human services, jobs and training, public safety, 
corrections, finance, health, transportation, and the director of the office of 
strategic and. long•range planning or designee. The members of the inter· 
agency family services team shall designate one member to serve as chair. No 
member may serve as chair for more than one year. consecutively. The chair 
is responsible for ensuring that the duties of the interagency family services 
team are carried out. 

Subd. 2. [APPLICATIONS FOR PLANNING AND START-UP GRANTS 
FOR FAMILY SERVICES COLLABORATIVES.] By• July I, 1993, the 
interagency family services team shall publish the procedures for awarding 
planning and start-up grants. Applications for local family services collabo­
ratives shall be obtained through the commissioner of education, human 
services, or health and must be submitted to the family services interagency 
team. The application must provide the amOunt of the start•up grant requested 
by the family services collaborative and how the collaborative will use these 
funds. 

Subd. 3. [DISTRIBUTION OF PLANNING START-UP GRANTS.] By 
October 1, 1993, the interagency family Services team. must ensure the 
distribution of one-half of the appropriation of planning and start-up grants 
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to family serv/9es collaboratives that meet the requirements under section 7 
andwhich have been approved by. the inieragency family services team. The 
remaining appropriation for planning ant:! start-up grants fiiUst be distributed 
by December 31, 1993. If the number of applications received exceeds the 
number of local family services collaboratives that can be funded, the funds 
must be geographiciillydistributed across the staie and balanced between the 
seven-county metropolitan area and the rest of the state. 

Subii. 4. [FAMILY SERVICES COLLABORATIVE PROGRAM. 
GRANTS.] A family services collaborative that received a planning and 
start-up grant may .be eligible to receive a family ·services collaborative 
program grant. To apply for a family services collaborative program grant, a 
family services collaborative must .S1+bmit a }Jlan to the interagency family 
services team by either December 1, '1993, or July T, 1994. The plan must 
meet the teqUirements under subdivision 5 and specify the amount ·of .the 
program grant requested and how the funds will be used. The program grant 
money may not be used for ,administrative expenses. One-half of the 
appropriation avail4ble for family services collaborative program grants must 
_be awarded to family services collaboratives with approved plans received by 
December 31, 1993. The remaining appropriation is available for grants-to 
family services collaboratives with plans approved after July 1, 1994. The 
interagency family services team shall review a proposal and notify the family 
services c_olla_borative as to whether or not a plan has been approved within 
60 days ofreceiving a plan. 

Subd. 5. [LOCAL PLANS.] The family services collabora1ive plan· shall 
describe how the family services collaborative will carry out the duties ·and 
implement the integrated local services delivi!ry system re{j_uired under sectfo_n 
7. The plan shall include a list of the participants in the collaborative, a ,copy 
of the agreement required under section 7; subdivision 1, the amount and 
source of resources each participant will commit to the integrated fand, 
methods for increasing local participation in the collaborative, methods Jot 
involving parents and other members .of the community in the· implementation 
and operation of ihe collaborative, and methods for providing effectiye 
outreach services to all families with young children in the community., The 
plan· shall also include specific goals that the collaborative intends to achieve 
and methods for objectively measuring progress toward meeting the goals, 
which aJ a minimum must address the purposes established in section 6. 

Subd. 6. [PLAN APPROVAL BY THE INTERAGENc:Y FAMILY SER­
VICES TEAM.] (a) The inieragency family services team shall approve local 
plans for family services collaboratives. In approving local plans, the 
inieragency family services team shall give. highest priority to a plan which 
provides for: 

(]) effective service coordination; 

(2) milximum inclusion of jurisdictions and vari~Us local, County, and state 
fanding sources;· · · · 

(3) ,;;,,__,imum iniegration of existing community service providers and local 
resources; 

(4) integration of transportation services; 

(5) early intervention and family outreach; 

( 6) home visitation services; 
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/7) a· continuum of setvicesfor children from birth to age 18; 

I 8) culturally aware service delivery approaches and utilization of cultur­
ally specific organizations; 

/9) clearly defined outcomes and methods of assessment; and 

(10) coordination with other local services collaboratives authorized by 
law. · 

(b) The interagency family services team shall ensure that the family 
services collaboratives established are not in contradiction with any state or 
federal policy or program and that they are not implemented in such a manner 
as to have negative impact on the state budget. 

Subd. 7. [REPORTS. BY FAMILY SERVICES COLLABORATIVES.] 
Family services collaboratives receiving family services collaborative pro­
gram grant~ must submit a report to the .interagency family services team. The 

. report shall ,include a description of the progress made by the family services 
collaborative toward implementing the local plan, the use of funds received. 
through a family services collaborative program grant, the number and type 
of clients served, and the types of services provided. The report shall be 
submitted to the interageney family services team by December 31, 1994, by 
family services collaboratives whose local plan was approved no _later than 
December 31, 1993, and by July 1, 1995, for those family services 
collaboratives whose local plan was approved no later than July 1, 1994. 
Within two years of the date on which a family services collaborative received 
a family services collaborative program grant, a family services collaborative 
shall _submit a report to the family services intefagency team describing the 
results of assessments measuring the extent to which the family services 
collaborative has achieved the outcomes developed under section 7, subdivi­
sion 2, clause /7). 

· Sec. 9. [121.837) [FEDERAL REVENUE ENHANCEMENT.] 

Subdivision 1. [DUTIES OF THE COMMISSIONER OF HUMAN SER­
VICES.] The commissioner of human services may enter into an agreement 
with one· or more family services collaboratives to enhance federal. reimburse­
ment under Title TV-E of the Social Security Act and federal administrative 
reimbursement under Title XIX of the Social Security Act. The commissioner 
shall have the following authority and responsibilities regarding family 
services collaboratives: 

(1) the commissioner shall submit amendments to state plans and seek 
_waivers as necessary to implement the provisions of this sectio_n; 

/2) the commissioner shall pay the federal reimbursement earned under this 
subdivision to each collpborative based on their earnings. Notwithstanding 
section 256.025, subdivision 2, payments to collaboratives for expenditures 
under this subdivision will only be made of federal earnings from services 
provided by the collaborative; 

I 3) the commissioner shall review expenditures of family services collabo­
ratives using reports specified in the agreement with the collaborative to 
ensure that the base level of expenditures is continued and new federal 
reimbursement is used to expand education, social, health, or health-related 
services to young children and their families; 
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( 4) the commissioner may reduce, suspend, or eliminate a family services 
collaborative 's obligations · to continue the base· level of exjjenditures or 
expansion of services if the commissioner determines that one or more of the 
following conditions apply: 

(i) imposition of levy limits that significantly.reduce available funds for 
social, health, or health-related services to families and child,:en; 

(ii) reduction in the net lax capacity of the taxable property eligible to be 
taxed by the lead _county or subcontractor tfzat significantly reduces available 
funds for education, social, health, or health-rel{!,ted services to families and 
children; 

(iii) reduction in the number of children under age 19 in the county, 
collaborative service delivery area, subcontractor's district, or catchment 
area wheri com'pared to the number in the base year _using the most recent data 
provided by the state demographer's office; i,r · 

(iv) terniination of thefederal ri:venue ea_'rned under the faniily seivices · 
collaborative agreement; -- · 

(5) the commissioner shall.not use the fl!deral reimbursement earned under 
this subdivision in determiniTJ.g- the alloca_tion or distribution of other funds to 
counties or collaboratives; 

(6) the commissioner .may suspend, reduce, or terminate the federal 
reimbursement · to a provider ·that does n,ot meet the reporting or ·other 
requirements· of this subdivision; '' 

(7) the commissioner shall recover from the family services collilborative 
any federal fiscal disallowances or sanctions for audit exceptions directly 
attributable to the family services collaborative 's actions in the integrated 
fund, or the proportional share if federal fiscal disallowances or sanctions are 
based on a statewide random sample; and 

(8) •the commissioner shall establish criteria for the family services 
collabOrative for the accounting and financial management system that will 
support claims for federal reiinbursement. 

Subd .. 2. [FAMILY SERVICES COLLABORATIVE RESPONSIBILI­
TIES.] The family services collaborative shall have the following authority 
and responsibilities regarding federal revenue enhancement: 

( 1) the family services collaborative ,shall be the. party with which the 
commissioner contracts. A lead county: shall be designated as the fiscal 
agency for reporting, claiming, and receiving payments; 

(2) the family services collaboratives may enter into subcontracts with other 
counties, school districts, special education cooperatives, municipalities. and 
other public and nonprofit entities for purposes of identifying and claiming 
eligible expenditures to enhance federal reimbursement, or to expand educll­
tion, social, health, or health-relatt;d services to families and children; 

( 3) the family services collaborative must continue the base level of 
expenditures JOr education, social, health,'"· or health-related services to 
families and children from any state, ·county, federal, or .other public or 
private funding source which, in the absence of the iiew federal reimbursement 
earned.under this subdivision, would have been avai[a_ble for those services'. 
except as provided in subdivision 1, clause (4). The /Jase year for purposes of 
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this subdivis{on shall be the four-quarter calendar year ending at 'Least two 
calendar quarters before ihefirst calendar quarter in which the new federal 
reimbursement is earned; 

( 4) the family services collaborative must use all new federal reimbursement 
resulting from federal revenue enhancement to 'expand expenditures for 
etJucation, social, health, or health-related services· to families and·children 
beyond the base level, except as pr'?vided in subdivision 1, clause (4): 

(5) the family services collaborative must ensure that expenditures submit­
ted for federal reimbursement are not made from federal funds or funds used 
to match other federal funds. Notwithstanding section 256B.19, subdivision 1, 
for the purposes of family services collaborative expenditures under agree­
ment. with the department, the nonfederal share of costs shall be provided by 
the _family services collaborative from sources other than federal funds or 
funds used to match other federal funds; 

(6) the family services collaborative must develop and maintain an 
accounting and financial management system adequate tO support all claims 
for federal reimbursement, including a clear audit trail and any provisions 
specified in the agreement; and 

(7) _the family services collaboraiive ·shall sUbmit an annual report to the 
commissioner as specified in the agreement. 

Subd. 3 .. [AGREEMENTS WITH FAMILY SERVICES COLLABORA­
TIVES.] At a minimum, the agreement between the commissioner. and the 
family services collaborative shall include the following provisions: 

( 1) specific documentation of the expenditures eligible for federal reim­
bursement; 

(2) the process for developing and submitting claims to the commissioner; 

( 3) specific identification of the education, social, health, or health-related 
services to families and children which are to be expanded with the federal 
·reimbursemeni; 

( 4 J reporting and review procedures ensuring that the family services 
collaborative must continue the base level of expenditures for the education1_ 

social, health, or health-related services for families and children as specified 
in subdivision 2, clause (3); 

(5) reporting and review procedures to ensure that federal revenue earned 
under this section is spent specifically to expand education, social, health, or 
health-related services for families and children as specified in subdivision 2, 
clause (4); 

(6) the period of time, notto exceed three years, governing the terms of the 
agreement and provisionS for amendments to, and renewal of the agreement; 
and. 

(7) an annual report prepared by the fQ.mily services collaborative. 

Sec. 10. (121.838] [WAIVER OF RULES.] 

(d) A family services collaborative, or any other local collaborative entity, 
including those in Becker, Cass, and Ramsey counties, is encouraged to seek 
a Waiver from any state or feder_al rule that impedes the implementation or 
effectiveness of the services provided by the collaborative. If the board or 
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commissioner who adopted the· state rule from which a waiver is requested 
approves a request for a waiver, it shall notify the family services collaborative 
and the interagency family services team of the approval. If the. request for a 
waiver is denied, the board or commis~io.ner .who adopted the rule shp,l( notify 
the family services collaborative, the interagency family services team, and· 
the appropriate policy committees ofthelegislature of the reason for denying 
the waiver. · 

(b)Afamily services cpllaborative seekingq waiverfrom a federal rule shall 
submit a request, in writing,. to the appropriate po!icy committees of the 
legislature. If the legislative col]'lmittees approve the request, they shall direct· 
the appropriate ,'state agency to make a reasonable effort to negotiate a waive~ 
of the federal rule, If the. legislative committees deny the request for a waiver, 
they shall jointly notify the family services collaborative of the reason for 
denying the waiver. · 

Sec. II. [124.651) [INTEGRATED EARLY CHILDHOOD SERVICES 
REVENUE.] . 

Subdivision I. [ELIGIBILITY.) A school district is eligible for integrated 
early childhood sen,ices revenue if the commissioner of educaiion has 
approved a plan required under subdivision 3. 

Subd. 2. [INTEGRATED EARLY CHILDHOOD SERVICES REVENUE. J 
A school district's integrated early childhood services-revenue iS equal to the 
sum of the amounts received according to sections 123.7045; 124.2615, 
subdivision 2; 124.27[1, subdivision l; and 124.2716. If a school.district 
does not submit a plan for integrated early childhood services revenue, the 

· revenue received according to sections 123. 7045; 124.2615, subdivisi.on 2; 
124.27ll, subdivision I; and 124.2716 shall be used only for the approved 
purposes as providedfor in sections 121.831; 121.882; 121.88, subdivision 
JO; andl23.702. 

Subd. 3. [INTEGRATED EARLY CHILDHOOD SERVICES PLAN.] To 
receive integrated early childhoOd services revenue, a_ school district must 
submit a plan to the commissioner of educqtion. The ·plan must specify the 
services the sch(!OL · district will provide to young children and their families 
using integrated early childhood services revenue. the plan shall include a 
description of the proposed cooperative arrangements with other school 
districts, counties, municipalities; nonprofit service providers, businesses, or· 
other community organizations to provide coordinat[!d, comprehensive ser:· 
vices; a description of proposed family outreach efforts; and proof of 
substantial community involvement in the development of the plan. The plan 
must ensure that equivalent services or_ outcomes to those required under 
sections 121 .831, 121.882, and 123.702 will be provided. 

Sec. 12. [REPORTS.] 

By December 15, 1993, the interagency family services team shall report to 
the chairs of the family services and education committees of the- legislature 
and to the legislative commission on children; youth, and families the number 
of plans approved under section 8, subdivision,5, the .amounts of the grants 
distributed, a brief description of the proposals, and the status of thefamily 
services collaboratives established under section 7, subdivision 1. 

Sec. 13. [APPROPRIATIONS.) 
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Subdivision 1. $1,500,()()() is appropriated from the general fund to the 
commissioner of education for· the purposes of section 8, subdivision 3. This 
appropriation is available until June 30, .1995. 

Subd. '2.' $1,500,000 is appropriated from the general fund to the 
commissioner of human serViCes for the purposes of se'ction 8; subdivision 3. 
This appropriation is available until June 30, 1995. 

Subd. 3. $3,500,()()() is appropriated from the .general fund to .the 
commissioner of education. for the pur'poses ·of section 8, subdivision 4. This 
appropriation is available until June 30, 1995 .. 

. . Subd. 4. $3,500,()()() is appropriated from the general. fund to the 
commissioner of human services for the purposes of section 8, subdivision 4. 
This appropriation is a.vailable until June 30, 1995. 

Subd. 5. $130,000 is appropriatedfrom the gerieralfundfor the purposes 
of section 1 to be available until June 30, 1995." 

Renumber the sections . in -sequence 

Amend the title as follows: 

Page I, line II, delete "chapter 4" and insert "chapters 121; and 124" 

And when so amended the 'bill do pass and be re-i'eferred to the Committee 
on Education. Amendments adopted. Report adopted. 

Ms. Berglin from the Committee on Health Care, to which was referred 

S.E No. 1299: A bi!i' for an act relating to occupations and professions; 
dentistry; modifying· a certain eXCeptiOn ,to the licensing requiremeilts; 
establishing faculty, resident dentist, and specialty licenses; modifying a 
certain ground for disciplinary action; amending Minnesota Statutes 1992, 
sections 150A.0l, by adding subdivisions; 150A.05, subdivision 2; 150A.06; 
by adding subdivisions; and 150A.08, .subdivision I. 

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill be amended 
as follows: · 

.Page 1, line 19 ~ delete '' a resident,•• and insert . '' an enrolled graduate 
student or student of q,rz _advanced. education program accredited by the 
America11 Dental Association Commission on Accreditation.'' 

Page · 1, delete line 20 

Page 2, line 10, strike "or the Mayo Foundation" 

Page 2, line 12; after "of" insert "a" and strike "dent_ists" and insert 
"demist.or a licensed denJal hygienist" 

Page 2, line 13, strike·"illStructors" and insert .. an instructor" 

Page 2, line. 32, strike everything after "of'' 

Page 2, line 33, strike everything before "in" and insert "X-rays or other 
diagnostic imaging moda.litif;!s -for making radiographs or ,other similar 
records'' 

Page 2, line 34, after "dentist" insert "or by a person who is credentialed 
· to use diagnostic imaging modalities or X-ray machines/or dental treatmenJ, 
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roentgenogrizms, or dental diagnostic purposes by a credentialing ag(!ni:y 
other than the board of dentistry" and reinstate the stricken "or" 

Page 2, delete lines 35 and 36 

Page 3, delete lines I and 2 , 

Page 3, line 3, strike "(8)" and insert "(7)" 

Page 3, line 21, after "J" insert "or is-a faculty member on the effective 
date of this section" 

Page 4, line 2, -delete everything after "iS" and insert "an enrolled 
graduate student or" · 

Page 4, line 3, delete "graduate" and delete "in a dental school" and 
insert ''of an accredited advanced dental education program'' 

Page 4, line 5, delete everything after "resident'-'· and insert "dentist" 

Page 4, line 6, delete "student" 

Page 4, line -7, delete "as a" 

Page 4, line 8, delete everything before "only" 

Page 4, line 31, after "/b)'' insert "Notwithstanding section 147.081, 
subdivision 3," 

Page 5, line 2, delete "a postdoctoral course" and insert "an advanced 
education program'' 

And when so amended the bill do pass. Amendments adopted. Report 
adopted. 

Ms. Berglin from the Committee on Health Care, to which was referred 

S.F. No. I 185: A bill for an act relating to juveniles; authorizing the 
commissioner of human services to pay for the cost of chemical- use 
assessments; amending Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 260.151, subdivi­
sion 1. 

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill do pass. 

Pursuant to Joint Rule 2.03, the bill was referred to the Committee on Rules 
and Administration. 

Ms. Berglin from the Committee on Health Care, to which was referred 

S.F. No. 1187: A bill for an act relating to health care; clarifying.the 
uniform anatomical gift act; retroactively. defining org3.n donation as· the 
rendition of a service; amending Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 525.9221. 

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the ,bill do pass. 
Report adopted. 

Ms. Berglin from the Committee on Health Care, to which was referred 

S.F. No. 699: A bill for an act relating to health; utilization review of health 
care; providing for chiropractic review; amending Minnesota Statutes 1992, 
section 62M.09, by adding a subdivision. 
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Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill do pass. 
Report adopted. 

Ms. Berglin from the Committee on Health Care, to which was referred 

H.F. No. 226: A bill for an act relating to health; clarifying the meaning of 
comprehensive health maintenance services; amending Minnesota Statutes 
1992, section 62D.02, subdivision 7. 

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill do pass and 
be placed on the Consent Calendar. Report adopted. 

Mr. Vickerman from the Committee on Veterans and General Legislation, to 
which was referred 

S.F. No. 1602: A bill for an act-relating to cemeteries; prohibiting relocation 
of cemeteries without the trustees' or owners· consent; proposing coding for 
new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapters 306; and 307. 

Reports the same .back with the recommendation that the bill be amended 
as follows: 

Page 1, after line 9, insert: 

"Sec. 2. (306.99] [WINTER BURIALS.] 

Each municipal, town, or other cemetery governed by this chapter or other 
law shall, so far as possible, provide for burials at all times of year including 
winter. A cemetery may make an additional charge for the actual cost of a 
burial during difficult weather.'' 

Renumber the sections in sequence 

Amend the title. as follows: 

Page 1, line 2, after the semicolon, insert "providing for burials in the 
winter season;'' 

And when so amended the bill do pass. Amendments adopted. Report 
adopted. 

Mr. Solon from the Committee on Commerce and Consumer Protection, to 
which was referred 

S.F. No. 751: A bill for an act relating to local government; regulating 
tanning•· facilities; requiring warning notices; authorizing local units of 
government to license and otherwise regulate these facilities; establishing 

·· record keeping and reporting requirements; prescribing penalties and provid­
ing remedies; proposing coding. fot new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 
461. ' 

Reports the same back with the recommendatio~ that the bill be amended 
as follows: 

Delete everything 3fter- the ~nacting clause and insert: 

"REGULATION OF TANNING FACILITIES 

Section I. (461.16] [DEFINITIONS.] 
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$ubdivision 1: [APPLICATION.] The definitions in this section apply t/J 
;;ections 461 .16 to 461 .26. 

Subd. 2. [CONSUMER.] · "Consumer" means an individual who is 
provided acc"ess "to- ci tanning facility. 

Subd. 3. [INDIVIDUAL.] "Individual" means a human being. 

Subd. 4. [OPERATOR.] "Operator" means an individual designated by 
the tanning facility ·owner or tanning equipment lessee to operate, or_ to assist 
and instruct the c'onsumer in. the operation and use of, the tanning facility or 
tanriing·eqUipment. 

Subd. 5. [PERSON.] "Person" means an-individual, corporation, part­
nership, limited fiability company, firm, assdciiltion, trust, estate, public or 
Private institutioti, group, agency, political subdivision of this state, any other .. 
S(ate, or political subdivision or agency thereof, and any legal successor, 
representative, agent, or agency of these entities. 

Subd. 6. [TANNING EQUIPMENT. J ''Tanning equipment" means ultra­
violet or other lamps and equipment containing. these l4mps intended iO 
induce skin tanning through the irradiation of any part of the living human 
body with ultraviolet radiation .. 

Subd. 7. [TANNING FACILITY,] "Tanning facility" means a location, 
place, area; structure, or business or,a part thereof which provides consumers 
access to tanning equipment. Tanning facility includes, but is not limited to, 
tanning salons, health clubs, apartments, or condominiums regardless. of 
whether a fee is charged for access to the tanning equipment. 

Subd. 8. [ULTRAVIOLET RADIATION.] "Ultraviolet radiation" means 
electromagnetic. radiation with wavelengths in air between 2QO nanometrrs __ 
and 400 nanometers. 

Sec. 2. [461.17] [REGULATIONS; APPLICABILITY; EXEMPTIONS.] 

Subdivision 1: .[REGULATIONS; APPLICABILITY.] A tanning facility in 
this state mus( be constructed, operated, and maintained a<;:cording to 
sections 461.16 to 461 .26. · 

Subd. 2. [EXEMPTIONS.] Sections 461.16 to 461.26 do not apply to: 

( a) a person who: 

( 1) uses equipm~fl;t ~hich emit~· ultraviolet radiation incidental to its normal · 
operation; and 

(2) does not use the equipment described in clause (I) to deliberately 
expose parts of the living human body to ultraviolet radiation for the purpose 
of tanning -or other treatment; 

(b) a physician licensed by the 'k,ard of medicalpr~ctice who uses, in the 
practice of medicine, medical diagnostic and therapeutic equipment that emits 
ultraviolet radiarioh; and · · 

(c) an individual who owns tanning equipfflent exclusively for personal, 
noncommercial use. · 

Sec. 3. [461.19] [STANDARDS FOR TANNING EQUIPMENT.] 
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Subdivision 1. [STANDARDS FOR ALL EQUIPMENT.] (a) The tanning 
facility owner or operator must use only tanning equipment manufactured 
according to Code of Federal Regulations, title 21, part 1040.20. The exact 
nature of compliance must' be based on the standards in effect at the time of 
manufacture as shown on the device identification label required by Code of 
Federal Regulations, title 21, part 1010.3. 

(b) Each assembly of tanning equipment must be designated for use by only 
one consumer at a time and must be equipped with a timer that complies with 
Code of Federal Regulations, title 21, part 1040.20(c)(2). The maximum timer 
interval may not exceed the manufacturer's maximum recommended exposure 
time. No timer interval may have an error exceeding plus or minus ten percent 
of the maximum ti"}Rr interval for the product. 

( c) Tanning equipment must meet the National Fire Protection Association 
National Electrical Code. 

(d) Tanning equipment must include physical barriers to protect consumers 
from injury induced by touching or breaking the lamps. 

(e) The tanning facility owner or operator shall replace tkfective or 
damaged lamps, bulbs, or filters with a type intended for use in the affected 
tanning equipment as specified on the product label and having the same 
spectral distributi(?n, 

(JI The tanning facility. owner or .operator shall replace ultraviolet lamps 
and bulbs, which are not otherwise defective or damaged, at a frequency or 
after a duration of use as may be recommended by the manufacturer of the 
lamps and bulbs. 

( g) The tanning facility owner or operator shall maintain a record of when 
the bulbs or lamps in each tanning booth or bed were replaced according to 
paragraphs ( e) and {f). 

(h). Tanning equipment must ·have a control that enables the user to 
manually terminate radiation without pulling the electrical plug or coming in 
contact with the ultraviolet lamp. 

(i) The tanning facility operator shall instruct each user on: ( I) the proper 
position to maintain relative to the tanning lamps; (2) the position of the safety 
railing, where applicable; (3) the manual switching device to terminate 
radiation; and ( 4) maximum time of exposure. 

(j) The tanning facility operator shall inspect the facility to ensure that the 
floors are dry before each individual's use. 

(k) The tanning facility operator shall monitor the use of the facility to 
ensure that the interior temperature does not exceed JOO degrees Fahrenheit. 

(l) The tanning facility operator shall comply with sanitizing procedures 
specified by the manufacturer of the tanning equipment between users. 

Subd. 2. [STANDARDS FOR STAND-UP TANNING BOOTHS.] In 
addition to the requirements in subdivision 1, tanning booths designed for 
stand-up use must comply with the following additional requirements: 

(I) booths must have phYsical barriers or other means, such as handrails 
or floor markings, to indicate the proper exposure distance between ultravi­
olet lamps and the consumer's skin; 
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/2) booths must be constructed with sufficient strength and rigidity to 
withstand the stress of use and the impact of a falling individual; 

( 3) access to booths must be of rigid construction; and 

/4) booths must be equipped with handrails and nonslipfloors. 

Sec. 4. [461.20] [PROTECTIVE GOGGLES REQUIRED.] 

(a) The tanning facility owner qr operator shall provide protective goggles 
to each conSumerfor use. with the tanning equipment. The protective goggles 
must f!teet the requirements of Code of Federal Regulations, title 21, part 
1040.20(c)(4). 

(b) Ta-nniniJfacility Owners and operators shall require that ConsU:rnerS-wear 
the protective goggles required by 'this section. The tanning facility owner o_r 
operator shall ensure that the protective goggles required by this Settion are 
proper-ly sanitized before each use· and shall not rely upon exposure to the 
ultraviolet., radia(ion produced by the tanning equipment itself to provide the 
sanitizing. 

Sec. 5, [46L21] [POSTED WARNING REQUIRED.] 

( a) The facility owner or operator shall conspicuously post the warning sign 
described in paragraph ( b) within three feet of each tanning station. ThC sign 
must be--cle_arly visible; hot obstructed by any barrier, equipment, or other 
object, and must be posted so that it can be easily viewed by the consumer 
before ~nergizing i_l:re tanning equipment. 

/b) The.warning sign required in paragraph (a) shall have dimensions not 
less than eig~t inches by.ten inches, and must have the following wording: 

"DANGER - ULTRAVIOLET RADIATION 

-Follow ins.tructions. 
· -Avoid .overexposUre. As with IUltttrGl sunlight; overexposure_ can cause 

eye and skin injury and allergic reactions. Repeated exposure mdy cause 
premature. aging of the skin and skin cancer. 

-Wea'. protective eyewear . 

. FAILURE TO USE PROTECTIVE EYEWEAR MAY RESULT 
IN SEVERE BURNS OR LONG-TERM INJURY TO THE EYES. 

-Medications or cosmetics may increase your sensitivity to the ultraviolet 
fa4iation. ·Consult a physician before using sunlamp or tanning equipment 
if you are· using medications or have a history of skin problems or belie_ve 
yourself to-be especially sensitive to sunlight.'' 

Sec. 6. [461.22] [NOTICE TO CONSUMER.] 

The-tanningfacility owner or operato_r shall provide each. consumer under 
the age of 18, ,before initial exposure at the facility, with .a .copy of the 
following warning, _.which ,must be signed, wi~,:iessed, and dated as indicated 
in the warning: 

"WARNING STATEMENT 

This statement must be read and signed by the consumer BEFORE first 
exposure -to ultraviolet radiation for tanning purposes at the below signed 
facility. 
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DANGER - ULTRAVIOLET RADIATION WARNING 

-Follow instructions. 

[37TH DAY 

-Avoid overexposure. As with natural sunlight, overexposure can cause 
eye and skin injury and allergic reactions. Repeated exposure may cause 
premature ·aging 'of the skin and skin canc(!r . 

.:. Wear protective eyewear. 

FAILURE TO USE PROTECTIVE EYEWEAR _MAY RESULT IN 
SEVERE BURNS OR LONG-TERM INJURYTO THE EYES. 

-MedicationS or cosmetics may increase your sensitivity to the ultraviolet 
radiation. Consult a physician before using sunlamp or tanning equipment 
if you are using medications or have a history of skin problems or believe 
yourself to be especially sensitive to sunlight. 

1 _have read the above warning and understand what it means, before 
undertaking any tanning equipment exposure. 

OR 

Signature of Operator 
of Tanning Facility or 
Equipment 

Signature of Consumer 

Print Name of Consllmer 

Date 

The consumer is illiterate and/or vis,ually impaired and I have read the 
warning .~tatement aloud and in full to the consumer in the presence of the 
below· signed witness. 

Sec. 7. [461.23) [RECORDS REQUIRED.] 

Signature of Operator 
of Tanning Facility or 
Equipment 

Witness 

Date" 

The tanning facility owner or operator. shall maintain a record Of each 
consumer's tqtal number of tanning visits at the facility, .and the dates and 
durations of tanning exposures for a period of three years after exposure. 

Sec. 8. (461.24) [CONSENT REQUIRED.] 

Before allowing the initial exposure at a tanning facility of a person under 
the age of 18, the owner or operator shall witness the person's parent's or 
legal guardian's signing and dating of the -warning statement required under 
section 46I .22. 
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Sec. 9, [461.25] [PENALTY.] 

Any person .,;,,ho· leases tt1nnlng f-quipment or who owns_ a tanliing }~ciifty 
(lnd wlw Operates Or permits the equi/Jment or facility tq be opei-aied in 
noncompliance with the requirement~ of ser:tions 461 .16 to 461 .24 is guilty of 
a petty misdemeanor. 

Sec. IP: [46L26] [LOCAL ORDINANCE AlJTHORIZATIORJ. 

Sections 461 .16 to 461.25 do not preempt a.local ordinance which provides· 
for .more restrict(ve re'gulation of tanning facilities than required in sections 
461.M to.461.25." 

Delete the title ancj insert: 

''A bill-for an act relating to local government; regulating tanning facilities; 
requiring warning notices; establishing record keeping requirements; prescrib­
ing penalties; ,proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes~ chapter 
461." . 

And when so amended the bill do pass. Ame_ndments adopted. Report 
adopted. -

Mri Solon from the Committee on.Commerce and Consumer Protection, to 
which- Was referred ' -• 

S.F. No. 1446: A hill for an act relating to insurance; regulating invest­
ments, assets and liijbilities, and annual statements of companies; providing 
for continuance of coverage upon liquidation; modifying the definition of 
resident for purposes of the Minnesota insura11ce guaranty association; 
regulating dividends and other distributions. of insurance holding company 
systems; regulating risk retention groups; enacting the NAIC model legisla"_ 
tion; amending Minnesota Statutes 1992, sections 60A.11, subdivision 9; 
60A.12, subdivision 3; 60A. 13, subdivisions I and 6; 60A.23, subdivision 4; 
60B.22, subdiv_ision I; 60C.03; subdivi_sion 7; 60D.20, subdivisions 2 and 4; 
60E.0l; 60E.02, subdivisions 9 and 12; 60E.03; 60E.04, subdivisions I, 2, 
3, 4, 7, 8, 11, and by adding a subdivision; 60E.05; 60E.07; 60E.08; 60E.09; . 
60E.IO; 60E.12; and 60E.13; proposing,coding for new law in Minnesota 
Statutes, chapiers 60A and 60E; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1992, sections 
60A.07, subdivision 5d; 60A.12, subdivision 10; 60B;24; and 60E.IL 

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill be amended 
as follows: --

Delete everything after the enacting clause and insert: 

"Section I. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 60A.ll, subdivision 9, is 
amended to-read: 

Subd. 9. [GENERAL CONSIDERATIONS.] The following considerations 
apply in the interpretation of this section: 

(a) This section applies to the investments of insurance companies other 
than life insurance companies;· 

· (b) The purpose of this section is to protect and further the interests of 
policyholders, claimants, creditors and the public by providing standards for 
the development and administration of programs for the investment of the 
assets of domestic companies .. These standards and the investmeitt progr3!11s 
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·developed by companies .must take into account the· safety of company's 
principal, investment yield and growth, stability in the value of .the invest­
ment_, the liquidity necessaty-·to meet the·company's expected business }Jeeds," 
and investment divefsification; · - · ' · 

(c) All financial terms relating to insurance companies have the meanings 
assigned. to them under statutory accounting methods. All financial terms 
relating to noninstirahce companies have the· meanings assigned· to them under 
generally accepted accounting principles; 

(d) Investments must be valued in accordance With the valuation prOcedures 
established by the National Association of Insurance Commissioners, unless 
the commissioner requires or finds another method of ,Yaluation reaso_nable 
under the circumstances. Another method of valuation permitted by the 
commis~_iqner. must be at least as conservative as \-those prescribed- in the 
associatio,n's m_anual. Other.,inVested assets must be vallle<f_ according to the 
procedures promulgated by the National Association of _I_nsurance Commis­
sioners', if not addressed in another section, unless the commissioner requires 
or finds another method of valuation reasonable under the circumstances; 

(e) A company may elect to hold an investment which qualifies under more 
than one subdivision, under the subdivision of its choice. Nothing herein 
prevents a company from electing to hold an investm_ent _under a subdivision 
different from :the one in which it ·previouslf held the inv.estment; and 

(f) An investment which qualifies under any provision of the law governing 
investments of insura:rice companies when acquired· will continue to be a 
qualified investment for as long as it is held by the insurance company. 

Sec. 2. Minnesota Statutes 1992, se,tion 60A.12, subdivision 3, is 
amended to read: 

Subd. 3. [VALUATION OF EVIDENCES OF INDEBTEDNESS.] All 
bonds or other evidences of debt, having a fixed term and rate, held by an 
insurance company or fraternal- benefit" society authori_zed to do business in 
this state may, if ampl)'secured and not in ·default as to principal and interest, 
be valued as follows: If purchased at par, at the par value; if purchased above 

. Or below par, on the basis of the purchase price adjusted so as to bring the 
value ·to par at maturity and so as _to yield, in'.the meantime, the effective rate 
of interest at which the_ pi.Irchase- Was made; piovided_: that the purchase priCe 
shall in no case be taken at a higher figure than the actual market value at the 
time of purchase, ""4, pFBvided, that the Eismmissisner shall ha¥e full 
diseretisn in determining the me!ood ef ealeulaling values aees,ding te the 
fe,egsing rule. If the notes or bonds secured by mortgage or trust deed· in the 
nature thereof which the federal housing administrator has insured, or made 
a C()mmitment to insure, are purchased above p:lr, they may, if not in default 
as to principal ·and interest, be valued during the first five years after purchase 
oh the basis of the purchase price adjusted in· equal annual installments to 
bring the value to par at the end of five yea)"s. 

Sec. 3. [60A.129] [LOSS RESERVE CERTIFICATION AND ANNUAL 
A{JDIT.J 

·subdivision 1. [DEFINTI10NS.] The definitions in this subdivision apply 
to this section. 

(a) "Qualified actuary," except as it relates to subdivision 2, paragraph 
(C),for companies aU.thorized to provide life insurance coverage under section · 
60A.06, subdivision 1, ciause (4), is a person who is either: 
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(1) a member in good standing of the Casualty Actuarial Society; or 

(2) a member in good standing of the American Academy of Actuaries who 
has been approved as qualified for signing casualty loss reserve opinions by 
the Casualty Practice· Council of the American Academy of Actuaries; or 

(3) a person who otherwise has competency in loss reserve eval~ation as 
demonstrated to the satisfaction of the insurance regulatory official of the 
doiniciliary ·state. In such case, at __ least 90 days prior to (he filing of its annuli/ 
stlltement, the insurer fflust request approval that the person be deemed 
qualified and that request must be approved or ·denied. The request must 
include the NAIC Biographical form and a list of all loss reserve opinions 
issued in the last three years by this person. 

(bl For purposes of subdivision 2, paragraph (c/, a qualified actuaryfor 
companies authorized to write life insurance coverage under sectiori 60A.06, 
subdivision 1, clause ( 4 ), shall be: 

( 1) a member in good standing. of the American Academy of Actuaries; 

(2/ qualified to sign statements of actuarial opinion for lifi and health 
insurante company annual statements in accordance with the American 
Academy of Actuaries qualification standards for actuaries" signing these 
statements; · · , · 

( 3) familiar with the valuation requirements applicable to life and health 
insurance co1:1panies. 

(c/ A qualified actuary as defined by this subdivision is an individual who: 

I 1 I has not been founa by the commissioner, or if so found.has subsequently 
been reinstated a!f a qualified actuary, jO.l!owing appropriate notice and 
hearing to _ha~e: · 

(i) violated ally provision of, or. any obligation imposed by,. the- state 
insurance• law or- other law in -the course of the actuary's dealings as- i1 
qualified actuary; 

(ii) been found guilty of fraudulent or dishonest practices; 

(iii) demonstrated incompetency, lack of coOperation,· or untrustworthiness 
to··act as a qualified actuary; or 

(iv) submitted to the com111_issioner cf,uring th.e past five years, pursuant to 
this chapter, an actuarial opitiion that the commissioner rejected ·because it 
did not meet the prov_isions of this chapter including standards set by the 
actuarial standards board; 

(2) has resigned or been removed as an actuary within the past five years 
as a result of acts or omissions indicated in any adverse report on examinatio_h 
or as a re~ult of failure to adhere to generally acceptable actuarial standards 
of. the Ame,ric;an Academy of Actuaries; and -

(3) has. not failed .to notify the commissioner of any action taken by any 
commissioner of any other stqte simi[ar to that under clause ( 1 J., 

(d) -''Accountant" and "independent public accountant" mean an indepl!n­
_dent certified public accountant or ·accounting firm in good standing· with-the 
American Institute of Certified Public Arcountants and in all states in which 
the accountant or firm is licensed ·to ·practice.· For Canadian and British 
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companies, the term means a Canadian-chartered or British-chartered 
accountant. 

Subd. 2. [LOSS RESERVE CERTIACATION.J (a) Each domestic com­
pany engaged in providing the types ofcoverage described in section 60A.06, 
subdivision 1, clause(]), (2), (3), (5)(b), (6), (8), (9), (10), (11), (12), (13), 
or (14), fflust· have. its loss reserves certified. by a qualified actuary .. The 
company must file ·the certification with the commissioner within 30 days of 
completion of the certification, but not later than June 1. The actuary 
providing the certification mus( not be an employee of the company. This 
subdivision does not apply to township mutual companies, or to other 
domestic insurers having less than $1,000,000 of premiums written in any 
year and fewer than 1,000 policyholders. The commissioner may allow an 
exception tO the. stand alone certification where it can be. demonstrated that a 
company in a group has a pooling or JOO percent reinsurance agreement used 
in a group which substantially affects the solvency and integrity of the reserves 
of the company, or where it is only the parent company of a group _which is 
lic.ensed to do business in Minnesota. If these circumstances exist, the 
company may file a written request with the commissioner for an exception. 
Companies writing reinsurance alone are not exempt from this requirement ... 
The certification must contain the following statement:-' 'The loss reserves and 
loss expense reserves have been examined and found to be calculated in 
accordance with generally accepted actuarial principles and practices and 
are fairly stated. '' 

(b) Each foreign company engaged in providing the types of coverage 
described in section 60A.06, subdivision 1, clause (1), (2), (3), (5)(b), (6), 
(8), (9), (10), (11), (12), (13), or (14), required by this section to file an 
annual audited financial report.- whose total net earned premium for Schedule 
P. Part 1 A to Part 1 H plus Part 1 R, ( Schedule P. Part 1 A to Part 1 H plus Part 
JR, Column 4, current year premiums earned, from the company's most 
currently filed annual statement) is equal to one-third or more of the 
company's total net earned premium (Underwriting and Investment Exhibit; 
Part 2, Column 4, total line, of the annual statement) must have a reserve 
certification by a qualified actua.ry at least every three years. In the year that 
the certification is due, the company must file the certification with the 
commissioner .within 30 days of completion of tl!e certification, _but not later 
than June 1. The actuary providing the certification must not be an employee 
of the company. Companies writing reinsurance alone are not exempt from 
this requirement. The certification must contain the following statement: "The 
loss reserves and loss expense reserves have been examined and found to be 
calculated in accordance -with generally accepted actuarial principles and 
practices and are fairly stated.'' 

( c) Each company providing life and/or health insurance coverages 
described in section 60A.O6; subdivision 1, clause (4) or (5)(a), required by 
this Section to file an audited annual finaricial ·report, WhoSe premiums and 
annuity considerations (net of reinsurance) from Accident and Health equal 
one-third or more of the company's total premiums and annuity considerations 
(net of reinsurance), as reported in the summary of operations, must have its 
aggregate reserve for accident and health policies and liability for policy and 
coittract cluims for Accident and Health certified by a qualified actuary at 
least once every three ·years. The actuary providing the .certification must not 
be an employee of the company. Companies writing- reinsurance· alone are not 
exempt from this requirement. The certification must contain the following 
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statement: "The policy and contract claims reserves for Accident and Health 
have been examined and found to be calculated in accordance with generally 
accepted actuarial principles dnd practices and are fairly stated.'' 

Subd,. 3. [ANNUAL AUDIT.] (a) Every insurance company doing business. 
in this -state, including fraternal benefit societie_s, reciprocal exchanges, 
service plan corporations licensed pursuant to chapter 62C, and legal service 
plans licensed pursuant to chapter 62G, unless exempted by the commi~isioner 
pursuant to subdivision 4, paragraph (a), or by subdivision 7, shall have an 
annual audit. of the financial activities of the most recently completrd fiscal 
year performed by an independent certified public accountant as prescribed 
by the commissioner, and shall file the report of this audit with the 
commissioner on or before June 30 for the year ending December 31. 

E~ten.sions of the June 30 filing _date may be grarited by the ·commissioner 
for 30-day periods upon a showing by the insurer and its independent certified 
public accountan.t of the reasons for requesting the extension .an_d.a determi­
nation by- the commissioner of good cause for the extension. 

The request JOr extension must be submitted in writing not less than ten days 
before the due date in sufficient detail to permit the commissioner to make an 
informed decision with respect to the requested extension. 

(b) Insurers filing audited financial reports in arwther state under the other 
state's requirements of audited financial reports which have been fotind by the 
commissioner to be · substantially similar to these requirements are exempt 
from this subdivision if a copy of the audited financial report, the evaluation 
of accountihg procedures, and systems of internal control repoft; which are 
filed with the ·other state, are filed with the commissioner in accordance with 
the filing dates specified in paragraphs (a) and (i), (Canadian insurers may 
submit accountants' reports as filed with the Canadian Dominion Department 
of Insurance); and a copy of any notification of adverse finllncial condition 
report filed with the other state is filed w_ith the commissioner· within the time 
specified in paragraph (h). 

(c)(i) The annual audited financial report shall report, in conformity with 
statutory di::counting practices required. or permitted by the commissioner of 
insurance of the ;i,tate of domicile, the financial c·ondition of the insurer as of 
the end of ~he most recent calendar year and the results of its operations, 
ch'anges i_nfinancialposition, and changes in capital and surplus for the year 
ended_. The annual audited financial report shall include a report of an 
inde/Jenden{ certified public accountant; a balance sheet feporting admitted 
assets, liabilities, _capital, and surplus; a statement of-gain or loSs from 
operations; a statement of cash flows; a $tatement of changes in capital and 
surplus; anj "notes to financial statements; and any additio.nal information 
that the commissioner may from time to time require to be disclosed. 

(ii) The note;' required under item (i), shall be those required by generally 
accepted accounting principles and shall include_ reconciliation of differences, 
if any, between the audited statUtory financial statements and the annual 
statement filed under section 60A.13, subdivision 1, with a written-descrip­
tion of the nature of these differences; and a narrative explanatio_n of all 
significant iiz.tercompany transactions and balances. 

( iii) The financial statements included in the audited financial report shall 
be prepared in a form and using language and groupings substantialiy the 
same as ·the relevant sections of the annual statement of the insurer filed with 
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the commissioner. The financial statement shall be comparative, presenting 
the amounts as of December 31 of the current year and the amounts as of the 
immediately preceding December 31. In the first year in which an inswer is 
required to file an audiied financial report, the comparative data may be 
Omitted. The amounts riiay be rounded to the nearest $1,000, dnd· all 
il1significa,'!t .a'mounts may be combined. 

(d) Each insurer required by this section to file an annual audited financial 
report must notify the commissioner in writing of the name and address of the 
certified public accountant or accounting firm retained to conducrthe annual 
audit within 60 days 4/ter becoming·subject to the annual audit requirement. 
The insurer shall obtain from the accountant a letter which states that the 
accountant is aware of the provisions that relate to accounting and financial 
matters in the insurance laws and the rules of the insurance regulatory 
authority of the state of domicile. The letter shall affirm that the opinions on 
the financial Statements will be expressed in terms of their conformity to the 
statutory accouriiing practices prescribed oi- other permitted by that insurance 
regulatory authority, unless exceptions to these practices are appropriate. The 
letter shall specify all exceptions believed to b.e appropriate. A copy of this 
letter shall be filed with the commissioner. 

( e) If an accountant who was not the accountant for the immediately 
preceding filed audited financial report i$ engaged to audit the insurer's 
financial statements, the insurer shall notify, the commissioner of this event 
within 30 days of the date the accountant is engaged. The insurer sh.all also 
furnish the commissioner with a separate letter stating whether in the 24 
months preceding _this engagement ,there were any. disagreements with the 
former accountant. on any m.atter of accounting principles· or practices, 
financial statement disclosur"e, or auditing scope or procedure, which, if not 
resolved to the satisfactiQn of the former. accountant, would have caused that 
person to make reference to the subject matte.r of the disagreement in 
connec(ion wifh the opinion. The insurer shall also in writing request the 
jOrmer accountant to furnish a letter addressed to the insurer _stating whether 
the accountant agrees with the statements contained in the insurer's letter 
and, if not, stating.the reasons for.any disagreement. The insure,: shall furnish 
this responsive letter from the former accountant to the commissioner together 
with its own. 

(f) The commissioner shall no( ,:ecogniz~ any. person or firm as an 
independent certified public accountant that_ is not in good standing with the 
AmeriCan Institute of Certified Public Accountants and in all slates in which 
(he accountant is licensed to practice, of for-a Cafl£ldian or British company, 
that is not a chartered accountant. Except as othenyise provided, a certified 
public accountant shall be recognized as independen_t aS long as Jhe person 
conforms to the standards of the pt:rson's professio_n. The commiss.fone_r, after 
notice and hearing _under chapter /4, may find that the accou·nrant is not 
independent for purposes of expressing an opinion on the financial statements 
in the annual audited financial -report. The commissioner may require the 
insurer to replace the -accountant with another whose relationship with the 
insurer is independent. 

(g) Financial stateinentsfurni_shed under ]Jaragraph (a), shall be e_xamirJ,ed 
by an independent certified public accountant. The examination of the 
insurer's financial statements shall-be conducted in accordance with gene,:ally 
accepted auditing standards and consideration should be given to other 
procedures illustrated in the -Financial Condition Examiners Handbook, 
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issued by the. National Association- of Insurance Commissioners as the 
independent certified public accountant considers· necessary. 

( h) The insurer required tofarnish the annual audited financial report shall 
require the independent certified public accountant to immediatel'y notify in 
writing an. executive -officer and all. dire.ctors of the insurer .of the final 
determination by that independent.certified public accountant that the insurer 
has materially misstated its financial conditioti as reported. to the commis­
sioner as of the balance sheet date currently under examination- or that the 
insurer does not meet the minimum capital and surplus requirement of section 
60A.07 as of that date. An executive officer or director of an insurer required 
to file an annual .audited financial report who received a notification of 
adverse financial condition from the accountant shall make a written report to 
the ·commissioner of the existence of the materially misstated financial 
condition or thefailure to meet the minimum capital and surplus requirements 
of the commissioner within three business days of the notification. If the 
accountant becomes aware of facts which might have" affected this ·report after 
the date of the audited financial _report filed under this section, th_e accounta.nt 
shall take the action prescribed by Professional Standards issued by the 

. American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. 

(i) In addition to the annual audited financial report, each insurer shall 
furnish the commissioner with a .report of the evaluation pe1formed by the 
accountant, in connection with the examination. of the accounting procedures 
of the insurer and its system of internal control. A report_ of the evaluation by 
the accountant of the accounting procedures of the insurer and its system of 
internal control, . including any remedial action taken or proposed, shall be 
filed annually by the insurer with the division within 60 days after .the filing 
of the annual audited financial repori. This report on internal control shall be 
in the form prescribed by generally accepted auditing standards. 

(j) Workpapers are the records kept by the independent certified public 
accountant of the procedures followed, tests performed, information obtained, 
and conclusions reached pertinent to the exdmination of the financial 
statements of an insurer. Workpapers maY include work programs, allillyses, 
memoranda, letters of Confirmation and representation, management letters, 
abstracts of company documents, and schedules or commentaries prepared or 
obtained by the independent certified public accountant in the course of the 
examination of the fillil"ncial statements of an 'insurer and that support the 
accountant's opinion. Every insurer required to file an audited financial 
report shall require the accountant, through the·insurer,_to make available for 
review by the examiners the workpapers prepared in the conduct of the 
examination.· The insurer shall require that the accountant retain the audit 
workpapers for a period of not less than five years after the period reported 
upon. In the conduct of the periodic review by the examiners, it shall be. 
agreed that photocopies of pertinent audit workpapers may be made and 
retained by the department of commerce. These copies shall be part of the 
commissioner's workpapers. 

(k) With the commissioner's approval,. an insurer may comply with this 
section by filing the requisite ieports that have been prepared in accordance 
with generally accepted accounting principles if·ihe notes to the financial 
statements include a reconciliation. of differences between net" income and 
capital and surplus-on the annual statement filed pursuant to section 60A.13, 
subdivision 1, llnd comparable tOtals on the auditedfillilncial statements, and 
a written description of the nature of these differences. 
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(l)(i) In the case of Canadian and British insurers, the annual audited 
financial report means the annual statement of total business on the farm filed 
by these companies with their domiciliary supervision authority and duly 
audited by an independent chartered accountant. 

(ii) For these insurers, the letter required in paragraph (d),--shall state that 
the accountant is aware of the· requirements relating to the annual audited 
statement filed with the commissioner under paragraph (a), and shall affirm 
that the opinion ·expressed is in conformity with those requirements. 

( m) The audit report of the independent certified public accountant _that 
performs the audit of an insurer's annual statement as required under 
paragraph (a), shall contain a statement as to whether anything, in connec­
tion with the audit, came to the accountant's. attention that caused the 
accountant to believe that the insurer failed to adopt and consistently apply 
the valuation procedures as required by sections 60A.122 and 60A.123. 

Subd. 4. [EXAMINATIONS.] (a) The commissioner or a designated 
representative shall determine the nature, scope, and freqltency of examina­
tions under this section conducted by examiners under section 60A.031.. These 
examinations may cover all aspects of the insurer's assets, condition, affairs, 
and operations and may include and be· supplemented by audit procedures 
pe,jarmed by independent certified public accountants. Scheduling of exam­
inations will take into account all relevant matters with respect to the insurer's 
cqndition, including results of the National Association of Insurance Com­
missioner, Insurance Regulatory Information Systems, changes in manage­
ment, results of market conduct examinations, and audited financial reports. 
The type of examinations performed by examiners under this section shall be 
Compliance examinations, targeted examinations, ·and comprehensive exam-
inations. · 

(b) Compliance examinations Will consist of a review of the accountant's 
workpapers defined under this section and a general review of the insurer's 
corporate affairs and insurance operations to determ,ine compliance with the 
Minnesota insurance laws and the rules of the· department of commerce. The 
examiners may perform alternative or additional examination procedures to 
supplement those performed by the accountant when the exllminers determine 
that the procedures are necessary to verify the financial condition of the 
insurer. 

(c) Targeted examinations may cover limited areas of the insurer's opera­
tions as the commissioner may deem appropriate. 

(d) Comprehensive examinations will be pe,jarmed when the report of the 
accountant as provided far in subdivision 3, paragraph (g), the notification 
required by subdivision 3, paragraph (h}, the results of compliance or 
targeted examinations, or other circumstances indicate in the judgment of the 
commissioner or a desig'}flted representative that a complete examination of 
the condition and aif(!-irS of the insurer is necessary . 

. (e) Upon completion of each, targeted, compliance, or comprehensive 
examination, the examine"r appointed by the commissioner shall make a full 
and true repOrt on the results of the examination. Each report shall include a 
general description of the audit-procedures performed by the examiners and 
the procedures of the accountant- that the examiners_ may have utilized to 
supplement their· examination procedures and the procedures that Were 
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performed by the registered independent certified public accountant if 
inclµded as a supplement to the examination. 

Subd. 5. [CONSOLIDATED FILING.] (a) The commissioner may allow an 
exception to the Stand Glone loss reserve certificat_ion re.Cjuired by subdivision 
2, and audited financial statements required by subdivision 3, paragraph (a), 
where it can be demonstrated that a company in a group has a pooling or JOO 
percent reinsurance agreement 1,{sed in a group whi<;h Substantially affects the 
·solvency and integrity of the reserves_ of the ·company or where it is on[j the 
parent company of a group which is licensed to do business in Minnesota. If 
theSe cin:umstances exist; then the company may file a written application to 
file loss reserve certifiCation ·and a report of an annual audit_. This application 
shall be for a specified period. 

(b) A consolidated annual audit filing shall include an organizational chart 
of: the companies together with a columnar -consolida.ted; or combining 
worksheet. Amounts shown on the audited cOnsolidated or combined financial 
statement shall be shdwn on the worksheet. Amountsfor each insurer shall be 
stated separately. Noninsurance operations may be shown on the Worksheet on 
a"combined or individual basis; Explq,nations of consolidating or eliniinating 
entries shall be,shown on the worksheet. A reconciliation of any differences 
between th_e amounts shown iii the individual insurer COiumns of the worksheet 
and comp'arable amounts shown on the annual statement of (he insurers shall 
be included on the worksheet. 

Subd. 6. [PENALTIES.] No annual statement, report, or document related 
to the busb:,ess of insurance shall be filed with the co11imissiofle'r or issued to 
the public if it is signed by anyone who is represented in the instruin'ent as an 
"actuary" or ''accountant," unless theperson is qualified as defined by this 
seciion. A violation of this subdivision is a violation of section 72A.19 and 
punishable in accordance with section 72A.25. 

· Subd. 7. [EXEMPTIONS.] (a) Upon written application of any company, 
the commissioner may grant an exemption from compliance with the provi­
sions of this sectiOn. In order to receive_ an exemption, a company must 
demonstrate to the satisfaction of the commissioner that- compliance .would 
constitute a financial hardship upon the company. An exemption may }Je 
granted at -any time and from time to time for specified periods. Within ten 
days from the denial of'an insurer's written request for_ an exemption; the 
insurer may request in writing. a hearing on its application for an exemption. 
This hearing shall be held in .accordance with chapter 14. Upon written 
application of any insurer, the commissioner _may permit an iriSure,r · to _file 
annual audited financial reports on some btisis other than a calendar.year 
basis for a specified_period. No exemption shall be granted 1,a:ttil the insurer 
presents an alternative method satisfying the purposes of this section. Within 
ten days from a denial of a written request for an exemption, the insurer may 
request in writing a hearing.on its•·application. The heari1J,g_shall be·held in 
acCordance with chapter 14. 

(b) _This section ajJjjlieS to ati insurers, unless _othehvise"indicatrd, ·required 
to file an annual audit by subdivision 3, paragraph (a), except insurers hqving 
less than $1,000,00,0 of direct written premiums in any yearandfewei- than 
1,000 policyholders in this state at the end of any year, atf exeinpt from this 

. section for that year. 

Sec. 4. -Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 60A.13, subdivision ·l, is 
amended to read: 



1890 JOURNAL OF THE 0SENATE [37TH DAY 

Subdivision I. [ANNUAL STATEMENTS REQUIRED.] Every insurance 
company, including fraternal benefit societies, and reciprocal exchanges, 
doing business in this state, shall transmit to the commissioner, annually, on 
or before March I, the appropriate verified National Association of Insurance 
Cornniissioners' annual statement blank, prepared in accordance with the 
association's instructions handbook and following· those accounting proce­
dures and praCtices prescribed by the association's _accou.ilting practices and 
procedures manual, unless the commissioner requires or finds another method 
of valuation reasonable under the circumStances. Another method of valuation 
permitted by the commissioner must be at leaSt as conservative as those 
prescribed in the association's manual. In addition, the commissioner may 
require the filing of any other information determined to be reasonably 
necessary for the continual enforcement of these laws. The statement may be 
limited to the insurer's business and condition in the United. States unless the 
commissioner finds that-the business conducted outside the United States may 
detrimentally affect the interests of policyholders in this state. The statements 
shall also contain a verified schedule showing all details required by law for . 
assessment and taxation. The statement or schedules shall be in the form and 
shall contain all matters the commissioner may prescribe, and it may be varied 
as to different types of insurers so as to elicit a true exhibit of the condition 
of each insurer. 

Sec. 5. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 60A.13, subdivision 6, is 
amended to read: 

Subd. 6. [COMPANY OR AGENT CANNOT CONTINUE BUSINESS 
UNLESS STATEMENT IS FILED.] No company shall transact any new 
business in this state after May thirty'first in any year unless it shall have 
previously transmitted its anhual statement to the commissioner and filed a 
copy of its statement with the National Association of Insurance Commis­
sioners. The commissioner may by order annually require that each insurer 
pay the required fee to the National Association of Insurance Commissioners 
for the filing of annual statements, but the fee shall not be more than 50 
percent greater than the fee set by . the National Association of Insurance 
Commissioners ea Jaauarj• -I:, -l-9&4. Failure to file the annual statement with 
the commissioner or the National Association of Insurance Commissioners is 
a violation of section 72A.06 J, subdivision 1. The fee shall be based on the 
relative premium volume of each insurer. The commissioner's order shall not 
be subject to chapter 14. 

Sec .. 6. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 60A.2:i, subdivision 4: is 
amended 'to read: 

·Subd. 4. [DIVIDENDS; LIMITATIONS.] !>le demeslie sleek 69fflJlOII)' 
~ Ele€laf@ a divid""a ei!kef lR €aslt e, s!eel<, el<€<!jll ffeffl its aeQlal -
SllfjlHl6 e0Hlfl11!ed ac •eq11ir@d by law lR i1s ........i sla!eme111; H0f ~ aoy 
5ll€ll eemJl•R)' '-"ffiffi ltas eeasea 10 <le BeW 011siness di'4<1e aoy Jl0Fff0'I ef its 
asse!S;- e1C€8fll SIIFJll11s, HRtil i! ~ ha¥e peF>eFmed e, eaeeeled its jl0licy 
ebliga~iens. _It may -deelare ~ pay, aiumaUy, semiasnuaUy 0f E}HarteFly tFeffl 
ils S11FJll11s, sash dividends ef fiet"""" ll!aR tea Jleffi8il! ef its €aflital Sleek aad 
SllfjlHl6 lR aoy yeaF aad, if !he dividenas lR aoy """ yeaF a,e less ll!aR tea 
13ereent, th@ Elif!ereRee may ee made- up iB ~, subseqmmt y-ear 0f yeafS ~ 
SllfjlHl6 aee11m11la1iens. It may pay ·SlleR aiviaend as !he di,eete•• deem 
jll'\ldea. el!! ef aoy SllfjlHIS· ,emailling after el!arging, lR aaaitien te all 
liaeilities e,;eept 11neamea JlFemi11ms, ari aHl0llf>I e<j\lal 10 !he Wfi0ie aHl0llf>I 
ef JlFemi11ms OH \IROKflired risl<& aad dee,ieling fffiffi the assets all seeHFities 
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aR<I aee011Rls ••eefvable BB whi€h 110 )laFI ef the f'AReif'al 0f intefOst has beoo 
jlllid within the preeeaing year, 0f feF wlii£h fe,oeles11re 0f suit has · been 
e0111H1oneee, 0f """" whieh judgment ebtainoa has ftlmainee fR0fO than twe 
yoo,,; unsalisl'iee aue"" wi,i£h interest has - boos !"'id. ane alse eoeueting 
all lioos. eue ane unjllli<I· ea aey ef its p,epo,ty . .Stock companieS shall follow 
the dividend limitation and reporting requiremen_tS set forfh in chapter 60D. 

Sec. 7. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 60B.22, subdivision I, is 
amended to read: · · 

Subdivision I. [LENGTH OF CONTINUED COVERAGE.] All insurance 
policies or similar co1.1traCts 'of coverage issued by- the insurer sh;ill continue 
in force: · -

(a) For a period of~ 30 days from the date of entry of the liquidation order; 

(b) Until the normal expiration of the policy or contract coverage; 

(c) Until the insured has replaced the coverage With equivalent c_overage in 
another insurer; or · 

(d) Until the liquidator has effected a transfer of the policy or contract 
obligation pursuant to section 60B.25, clause (8), whichever time .is less. 

Sec. 8. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 60C.03, subdivision 7, is 
amended to read: 

Subd. 7. [RESIDENT.] "Resident" means: 

(a) An individual person·who fixes habitation in this state without any 
intention of removing therefrorri and who, whenever absent therefrom, intends 
to return; or · · · · · 

(b) An~ other pe~son whose principal place of business i; located in this 
state at the iime o~ the insured ev~ntf 0f 

WA jl@f69B whes8 pFineipal plM<, ef eusinessis in Wiseensin, lewa, NeF!h 
l>aketa, 0F Semh. Dakota, ffl:tt·.whe.maintains substantial businer,s in MinHe--
601a. 

Sec. 9. Minnesota Statutes i992, section 60D.20., subdivision 2, is 
amended to read: ' · _., 

Subd. 2. [DIVIDENDS AND OTHER DISTRIBUTIONS.] (a) Subject to 
the limitations and requirements of this subdivision, the bodrd of directors of 
any domestic insurer within an insurance holding company system may 
authorize and cause the ,inSUrer to declare Gnd pay any dividend or 
disiribution to its· shart:holde,rs Gs_ the directors deCm prudent from the earned 
surplus of the 'insurer .. An insurer_:·s earned surplu,~. afso knOwn as unaSsigned 

. funds, shall be determined in accordance with the accounting procedures and 
practices governing preparation of its annual statement, minus 25, percent of 
unrealized capital gains. Dividends which are paidfr_om sources, other.than an 
insurer :v earned surplus or- are extraordinary dividends or distribuii_ons may 
be paid only as provided in paragraph.,· (d), (e), and (j). 

(b) The insurer shall notify the commissioner .;,ithin five busi~ess days 
following declaration of a dividend declared pursuant to paragraph ( a) and at 
l<;ast ten days pr_ior.~o_ its pay_ment._The commissioner shall promp_tly consider 
the notificationfil'ed pursuaizt to "this paragraph, taking into consideration the 
factor's described in subdivision 4. 



1892- JOURNAL OF THE SENATE [37TH DAY 

( c) The commissioner shall review at least annually the dividends paid by 
an insurer pursuant to paragraph (a) for the purpose of determining if the 
dividends are reasonable based upon ( 1) the adequacy of the level of surplus 
as regards policyholders remaining after the dividend payments, and (2) the 
quality of the insurer's elirnings and extent to which the reported earnings 
iflclude extraordinary items, such as surplus relief reinsurance transactions 
and reserve destrengthening. 

(d) No domestic insurer shall pay any extraordinary dividend or make any 
other extraordinary distribution to its shareholders until: (I) 30 days after the 
commissioner bas received notice of the declarati0n of it and has not within 
the period disapproved the payment; or (2) the commissioner has approved the 
payment within the 30-day period. 

~ ( e) For purposes of this section, an extraordinary dividend or distribu­
tion includes any dividend Or distribution of cash or other property, whose fair 
market value together wi_th, that of other dividends or distributions made 
within the preceding 12 months exceeds the greater of (I) ten percent of the 
insurer's surplus as regards policyholders as of the 31st day of December next 
preceding; or (2) the net gain from operations of the insurer, if the insurer is 
a life insure~ or the net income, if the insurer· is not a life insurer. not 
including realized capital gains, for the 12-month period ending the 31st day 
of December next preceding, but does n0t include pro rata diStributions of any 
class of the insurer's own securities. la Eleterraiaing wheERer a EHvl:Gsnd er 
aistFibaliBR is OlllfaeFEliaary, aR HlS<Hef ethef !haR a life HlS<Hef may ffiffY 
ferward ool iR€eme f£em loo f""''ieus !we caleadar y,,ars Iha! has Del already 
hsoo pai<l <>Ut as divideads. This eaHy ferwaRI i,; OBffil'lll0d by takiRg loo Bel 
iRoome ffem !he· seeeR<I aR<i thifd flreeeaiag ealeadar years, Bel iaeludiag 
reaii,ed 6aflital gaiRs, less aivideads paid iR !he seeeR<I aR<i immediate 
preeeaiag ealeadar years; 

W (f) Notwithstanding any other provision of law, an insurer may declare 
an extraordinary dividend or distribution that is -conditional upon the com­
missioner's approval, and the declaration shall confer no rights upon share­
holders until: (I) the commissioner has approved the payment of such a 
dividend or distribution; or (2) the commissioner has not disapproved the 
payment within the 30-day period referred to above. 

Sec. 10. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 60D.20, subdivision 4, is 
amended to read: 

Subd. 4. [ADEQUACY OF SURPLUS.] For purposes of this chapter, in 
determining whether an insurer's surplus as regards policyholders is reas_on­
able in relation to· the insurer's outstanding liabilities and adequate to its 
financial needs, the following factors, among others, must be considered: 

(I) the size of the insurer as measured by its assets, capital and surplus, 
reserves, premium writings, insurance in force and other appropriate criteria; 

(2) the extent to which the insurer's business is diversified among the 
several lines of insurance; 

(3) the number and size of risks insured in each line of business~ 

(4) the extent of the geographical dispersion of the insurer's insured risks; 

(5) _the nature and extent of the insurer's reinsurance program; 
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(6) the quality, diversification and liquidity of the insurer's inve·stment 
portfolio; 

(7) the recent past _and projected future trend ill the size of the insi.trer's 
investment portfolio; · · ' 

(8) the surplus as regards policyholders maintained by other comparable 
insurers; 

(9) the adequacy of the insurer's reserves; all<! 

(10) the quality and liquidity of investments in affiliates. The commi.ssioner 
may treat any such investment as a .disallowed _asset for-- purposes. of 
detennining the adequacy of surplus as regards policyholders whenever in the 
commissioner's judgment the investment so warrants; and · · 

( lJ) the quality of the insurer's eamings and the extent to which ihe 
reported earnings include extraordinary items, such as surplus relief r_einsur­
ance transaction:S. and reserve destrengthening. 

Sec. II. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 60E.0l, is amended to read: 

60E.0l [PURPOSE.] 

The purpose of sections 60E.0l t.o 60E.14 is to regulate the formation and 
operation of risk retention groups fmd purchasing groups in this state -forrried 
under the federal Liability Risk Retention Act of 1986, to the extent permitted 
by that law. · 

Sec, 12. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 60E.02, subdivision 9, .is 
amended to read: · 

Subd. 9. [PLAN OF OPERATION OR FEASIBILITY STUDY.] "Plan of 
operation" or "feasibility studl' means an analysis that presents the expected 
activities-and results of a risk retention group- including, at a minimum: 

(I) information sufficient to verify that its members are engaged in business 
or activities similClr -or related with respect to the liability to which the 
members are exposed by virtue of any related; similar or common business, 
trade, product, services, prem_ises, or Operatiolis; 

(2)for each state in which it. intends to operate, the coverages, deductibles, 
coverage limits, rates, and rating classification systems for each line of 

· insurance the group intends to offer; 

~ ( 3) historical and expected loss experience of the proposed members and 
national experience _of similar exposures to the extr:;nt that this experience is 
reasonably available; 

~ (4) pro forma.financial· statements and projections; 

fij ( 5) appropriate opinions by a qualified, independent casualty actuary; 
including a detennination of minimum pren)ium or participation levels 
required to commence operations and to prevent a hazardous _ financial 
condition; 

~ (6) iden;ification of management, underwriting and claims procedures, 
marketing methods, managerial oversighLmethods, investment policies, and 
reinsurance agreements._;·· aBQ 
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fet (7) identification of each state in which the risk retention group has 
obtained, or sought to obtain, a ch.after and license, and a description of its 
statu~ in each state; and 

/8) other matters prescribed by the commissioner for liability insurance 
companies authorized by the insurance laws of the state. 

Sec. 13. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 60E.02, subdivision 12, is 
amended to read: 

Subd. 12. [RISK RETENTION GROUP] "Risk retention group" means a 
corporation or other limited liability association fem!e<i """"' lile laws ei a 
~ Beffilu~a, ei: tee Cary•maa lsl-aBes: 

(I) whose primary activity consists of assuming and spreading all, or a 
portion, of the liability exposure of its group members; 

(2) which is organized for the primary purpose of conducting the activity 
described under clause (I); 

(3) which: 

(a) is chartered and licensed as a liability insurance . company and 
authorized to engage in tht? business of insurance under the laws of a state; or 

(b) before January I, 1985, was chartered or licensed and authorized to 
engage in the business of insurance under the laws of Bermuda or the Cayman 
Islands and, before that date, had certified to the insurance commissioner of 
at least one state that it satisfied the capitalization requirements of the state, 
e~cept that the group shall be considered to be a risk retention group only if 
it has been engaged in business continuously since that date and only for. the 
purpose of continuing to provide insurance to cover- product liability or 
completed operations liability, as such terms were defined in the Product 
Liability Risk Retention Act of 1981-before the date of the enactment of the 
Risk Retention Act of 1986; 

(4) which does not exclude a person from membership in the group solely 
to proyide for members of the group a competitive advantage over that person; 

(5) which: 

(a) has as its members only persons who have an ownership interest in the 
group and which has as its owners cinly persons who are members who are 
provided insurance by the risk retention group; or 

(b) has as its sei<! memeer ....i sole owner an organization which is ewae<I 
by~~ are pre; iaea insm=aRee ~ the-Fisk ·Fet@Htioll gFffi:!13• has as its 
members only persons who comprise the membership of the· risk. retention 
group and which has as its owners only persons who comprise the member­
ship of the risk retemion group and who are provided insurance by that group; 

(6) whose members are engaged in businesses or activities similar or related 
with respect to the liability of which the members are exposed by virtue of any 
related, .similar, or common ·business _trade, product, services, premises, or 
ope~ations; · · 

(7) whose activities do not include the provision of insurance other than: 

(a), liability insurance for assuming and spreading all or a portion of the 
liability of its group members; and 



37TH DAY] FRIDAY, APRIL 16, 1993 1895 

(b) reinsurance with respect to theliability of any other risk retention group, 
or any members of the other group, which is engaged in businesses or 
activities so that the group or member meets the requirement described in 
clause (6) from membership in the risk retention group which provides the 

. reinsurance; and · •. 

(8) the name of which includes the phrase • 'risk retention group.'' . ..- . . . /' 

Sec. 14. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 60E.03, is amended to read: 

60E.03 [RISK RETENTION GROUPS CHARTERED IN THIS STATE.] 

A risk retention group seekiHg le be ehaFl""'il .in !!tis - fflllS! shall be 
chartered and licensed as a to write only liability insurance 601Hfl""Y 
a,itlleri,aa i>y the. iesllfaeea laws ef !!tis stal<ipursimnt to sections 60E.0I to · 
60E.14 and, except as provided elsewhere in sections 60E.0I to 60K 14, must 
comply with all of the laws, rules, and requirements applicable to insurers 
chartered and licensed in this state and with section 60E.04 to the extent those 
requirements are not a limitation on l_aws. rules. or requirements of_ this state. 
Befere it may effaF illsuraeeo ill a state, a risk rel<lntiee gmup. shall alse 
~ feF a'flflFEJVal le die eemmissieasr af eemmerss a plan ef 9f'Srati0t1 eF 

a feasieilit)' sll!dy and "'"isiees ef too J>1an "" sll!dy if the gmup inlee<ls te 
effer a!l!lilieeal lillas ef liaeility iesuFORe•. 

Notwithstanding any other provision to the contrary, all risk retention .. 
groups chartered in this state shall file with the department and the National 
Association .of Insurance Commissioners (NAJC), an annual statement in a -
fwm prescribed by the NAIC, and in diskette form if required. by the· 
commissioner, and Completed in accordance with its if!Structions allµ. the 
NAIC accountiiig practices and procedures manual. , 

Before ft mlly_offer_ insurance•in a state, each ri$k reiention group·shall also 
submit for <Jpp,:oval to the· commissioner of commerce a plan of operation or 
feasibility study. The risk retention group shall submit an appropriate revision · 
in the event of any subsequent material change in any item of the plan of 
operation or feasif!ility study, within ten days of a change. The group shall rwt 
offer any additiorial kinds of liability insurance, in this state or in: any other 
state, until a revision of the plan o~ study is _approved by the commissioner: 

At the time of filing its application for charter, the risk retention group shall 
provide to the commissioner in sumflJ,ary form the following information: the 
identity of the initial members of the group, the identity of those individuals 
who organized the group or who will provide administrative -services or 
otherwise influence or control the activities of_Jhe group,- the amo_unt-and 
nature of initial capitalization; the coverages to be afforded, and the states in 
which the group intends to operate. Upon receipt of this inforin.ation, the 
commissioner shall forwdrd the information to the National Association of . 
Insurance Commissioners. 

Providing rwtification to the NAIC is in addition to and shall not be 
sufficient to _satisfy-the requirements of section 60E.04 or any other sections 
of this chapter. 

Sec.· 15. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 60E.04,- subdivision I, is 
amended to read: 

Subdivision I. [REGULATION.] Risk retention groups chartered and 
licensed in states other than this slate and seeking tO do business as a risk 
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retention group in this state must. observe and abide by the laws of this state 
as set forth in subdivisions 2 to 12. 

Sec, 16. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 60E.04," subdivision 2, is 
amended to read: 

Subd. 2. [NOTICE OF OPERATIONS AND DESIGNATION OF COM­
MISSIONER AS AGENT.] / a) Before offering insurance in this state, a risk 
retention group shall submit to the commissioner on a form prescribed by the 
NAJC: 

. (I) a statement identifying the state or states in which the risk relention 
group is chartered and licensed as a liability insurance company, date of 

. chartering, its principal place of business, and other information including 
· information on its membership, the commissioner may require to verify that 
the risk retention group is qualified under section 60E.02, _subdivision 12; 

(2) a copy of its plan of operations or a feasibility study and revisions of the 
plan or study submitted to its the state ef Elemioile in which the risk retention 
gtoupis chartered and licensed; provided, however, that the provision relating 
to the submission of a plan of operation or a feasibility study shall not apply 
With respect to a line or classification of liability insurance that was defined 
in the Product Liability Risk Retention Act of 1981 before October 27, 1986, 

.. and was offered before that date by a risk retention group that had been 
chartered and operating for not less than three years before that date; aa<i. 

~ I b) The risk retention group sholl submit a copy of any revision to its 
plan of operation _or feasibility study required by section 60£.03 at the same 
time. that the revision is submitted to the commissioner of its chartering siate. 

( c) The risk retention group shall submit a statement of registration, for 
which a filing fee shall be determined by the commissioner, that designates the 
commissioner as its agent for the pmpose of receiving service of legal 
documents or process. 

Sec. 17. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 60E.04, subdivision 3, is 
amended to read: 

Subd. 3. [FINANCIAL CONDITION.] A risk retention group doing 
business in this state. shall submit to the commissioner: 

(I) a copy of the group's financial statement.submitted to its the state ef 
EleffH:oHe in which the risk retention group is chartered and licensed~ which 
shall be certified by an independent public accountant and contain a statement 
of opinion on loss and loss adjustment expense reserves made by a member 

. of the American Academy. of Actuaries or a qualified loss reserve specialist, 
. under criteria established by the National Association of Insurance Commis-

sioners; 

(2) a copy of each examination of the risk retention group as certified by the 
commissioner or public official conducting the examination; 

(3) upon request by the commissioner, a copy of aa any information or 
· document pertaining to any outside audit performed with respect to the risk 

retention group; and 

(4) the information required to verify its continuing qualification as a risk 
retention group under section 60E.02, subdivision 12. 
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Sec. 18. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 60E.04, subdivision 4; is 
amended to read: 

Subd. 4; [TAXATION.) (a) All preffliuERs !"Ii" fer eenerages wilhiR this. 
state te ftSk Fetention g£e>lj}S are 6'lbjeet te tallalien at the saERe Fal6 ilft<I 
~ te- the_ same iaterest, -Hi\e&;- QfiQ ·J:leeahies feF_ ·aaeJ:laymeat as that 
apfllieaele t<I ether insllf@fs. Each risk :·retention group is liable for the 
payment of premium taxes and taxes on premiums of direct business for risks 
resident or located within this state, and shall report to the commissioner the 
net premiums. written for risks resident or located within this state. The risk 
retention group shall be subject to taxation, and any applicable taxation­
related fines and penalties, on the same basis as a foreign admitted insurer. 

(b) To !he -agents e,1-!<efs are u@aea, Ikey shall Fefl0Fl ilft<I pay the 
ta,,es fa, the pFemiUERS fa, RSff w!HelHliey """" i,laee4 wmi 0f 0ft belialf ef 
a Fis!<, Feleft!ien gfOOj> net el!a,terea in this Sia!&. +lie agen!S e, lwek@rs ars 
~ te th8 provisiens __ af seetiaes '3Q.t\.193 te '3QA.1Q9. To the exte.nt 
licensed agents or brokers are utilized pursuant to section 60£.12, they shall 
report to the commissioner-the premiums for direct business for risks-re{,ident 
or located within this state which the licensees have placed with or on behalf 
of a risk retention group not chartered in this state. 

(c) To the- agen!S e, h£e1-s are net lltimed e, futt te pay the-, ea€lt 
ftSk Fetenlien g£<ltif' shall pay the la>< fer RSk in-sl!fea "'4!liiR too - Eael! 
ftSk relentien gfOOj> shall Fefl0Fl all p,effliuERS !"Ii" le it fer RSk insmoo "'4!liiR 
the state ilft<I shall ae ~ te !he saERe interest, fines, ilft<I penalties fef 
non13ayment as that at313lieGble ~ fefeigR aEhnit;f:ed iRstu=eFS. To the extent th<it 
insurance agents or brokers are utilized pursuant to section 60E.12, each 
agent or broker shall keep a complete and separate record of all policies 
procured from eaCh risk _retention group, which_ shall be open to examination 
by the commissioner, as provided in section 60A.031. These records shall.for 
each policy and each kind of insurance provided, include the following: 

I 1 I the limit of liability; 

(2) the time period covered; 

I 3 I the effective date; 

/4) the name of the risk retention group which issued_the policy; 

/5) the gross premium charged; and 

/6) the amount of return premiums, if any. 

Sec. 19. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 60E.04, su_bdivision 7, is 
amended to read:-

Subd. 7. [EXAMINATION REGARDING FINANCIAL CONDITION.) A 
risk retention group must submit to an examination by the commissioner to 
determine its. financial condition if the commissioner of the jurisdiction in 
which the group is chartered and licensed has· not initiated an examination or 
does not initiate an examination within~ BHsiRess 60 days after a request by 
the commissioner of commerce. The examination must be coordinated to 
avoid unjustified repetition and conducted in an expeditious manner and in 
accordance . with the National Association" of Insurance Commissioner's 
Examiner Handbook. 
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Sec. 20. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 60E.04, subdivision 8, is 
amended to read: 

Subd. 8. [NOTICE TO PURCHASERS.] An application form for insurance 
from a risk retention group and the front and declaration pages of a policy 
issued by a risk retention group must contain in 10 point type ea lile fffmt page 
aR<I !ke iloolaraliea page, the following notice: 

NOTICE 

This policy is issued by your risk retentfon group. Your risk retention group 
may not be subject to all of the insurance laws and rules of your state. State 
insurance insolvency guaranty funds are not available for your risk retention 
group. 

Sec. 21. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 60E.04, subdivision 11, is 
amended to read: 

Subd. 11. [PROHIBITED COVERAGE.] J>le ,;.i. Feteatien g<""J' may effeF 
The_-terms of an 'i_nsurance'policy issued by a risk retention group shall not 
provide, or be construed to provide, coverage prohibited by Ike iasuraaee 
laws 0f flll@s ef this state statute or declared unlawful by the highest court of 
this the state whose law applies to the policy. 

Sec. 22. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 60E.04, is amended by adding 
a subdivision -to read: 

Subd. 13. [PENALTIES.] A risk retention group that violates any provision 
of this chapter is subject to fines and penalties including revocation of its right 
to do business i.n this stiite, applicable to licensed insurers generally. 

Sec. 23. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 60E.05, is .amended to read: 

60E.05 [COMPULSORY.ASSOCIATIONS.] 

No risk retention group shall be required or wrmitted to join or contribute 
financially to an insurance insolvency guaranty fund, or similar mechanism, 
in this state, nor shall any risk retention group, or its insureds, or claimants 
against its insureds receive a benefit from the fund for claims arising out of the 
operations of the risk retention group. · 

A mk Fetention gmar ~ partieipEKe HI this state-!s jeiBt l¼Rdern Fitieg 
assaeiations ana mandatory I~ f3081s as pro\•ided ~· o_hapters eQA ~ ;QA 
aa4 ~ When a purchasing group obtains insurance covering its members' 
risks from an insurer not authorized in this state or a risk retention group, no 
such risks, wherever resident or located, shall be covered by any insurance 
guaranty fund or similar mechanism in this state. 

When a piirChaSing group Obtains insurance Covering its members' risks 
from an authorized insllrer, only risks resident or located in this state shall be 
covered by the Minnesota guaranty association under chapter _60C . 

. Notwithstanding chapter 621, the commissioner may require or exempt a 
risk retention group from participation in· any mechanism established or 
authorized under the law of this state for the equitable apportionment among 
insurers of liability insurance losses and expenses incurred on policies written 
through this mechanism, and the risk retention group shall submit sufficient 
information to the commissioner to enable the commiSsioner to apportion on 
a nondiscriminatory basis the risk retention group's proportionate share of 
these losses and expenses: 
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Sec. 24. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 60E.07, is amended to read: 

60E.07 [PURCHASING GROUPS; EXEMPTION FROM CERTAIN 
LAWS RELATING TO THE GROUP PURCHASE OF INSURANCE,] 

A purchasing group "'""ti"g ·!he efile<ia es1alllisl!eEI 11!\Eief !he -!'eEiefal 
biaeili!y Risk Reteatiea .\el ef l98e is 8l<elllj!! freHl "RY law ef IRis -
FeJ.atiag te the ereation ef gFOOps fef the pw=shase ef insYfOnee, flFBRibit:ien ef 
gFeU¥ fHFehasiRg 0f any. law. that w0Hkl Eliserimieat:e agaifisl: a pursRasing 
g,eujl 0f its fflOfflBOFS. HI aaailieR, aa iRs,we,_ii; eJ<effl(>I freHl "RY law ef 11,is 
stats ~ flFehiBits ffB' ridieg, 0f effefing te f1£0~1iEle, te a p~rehasieg -~ 0f'• -

~ mefftber~ aElvantages based rm H1eH: less aBQ e~q~ense e;iff)eFienee Bel 
afforaoa le e!heF l"'fS0"S wilk Fe5J3eSl le-, f'0liey ferffls, ee,·e,agos, 0f 

ether mallers .. '\. jllHchasiRg gF8lljl is SHBjeel le all e!he, Bjljllieallle laws ef 11,is 
state. and its insurer or insurers are subjeCt to all applicable laws of this stGie, 
except that a purchasing group and its insurer or insurers are exeinpt, in 
regard to liability insurance for the purchasing group, from any law that 
would., 

(1) prohibit the establishment of a purchasing g;oup; 

(2) make it unlawful for an insurer to'f,rovide or offer to provide insurance 
on a basis.prOviding~ to a purchasing group or its members, advantages based 
on their loss aizd expense experience ·not afforded to other persons with 
respect to rates,, polic)Jforms, .coverages, or other inatters; 

(3) prohibit a purchasing group or its members from purchasing insurance 
on a group basis described in clause (2); 

(4) prohibita purchasing group from obtaining insurance on a group basis 
because the group haS not been in existence for a niinimum period of time or 
because any member has not belonged to the group for a minimum period of 
time; 

( 5) require thilt a -purchasing group must have a minimum number of 
members, common ownership or affiliation, or certain legal form; 

(6) require that ·Q certain _percentage of a purchasing group must Obtain 
insurance on a group basis; 

(7) otherwis'e discriminate against a purchasing group oi- any of its 
members; or 

(8) require thatany insurance policy issued to a purchasing group or any 
of its members be countersigned by an insurance agent or broker residing in 
this state. 

Sec. 25. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 60E.08, is amended to read: 

60E.08 [NOTICE AND REGISTRATION REQUIREMENTS OF PUR­
CHASING GROUPS.] 

Subdivision 1. [NOTICE TO COMMISSIONER.] A purchasing group that 
intends to do business in this state shall, prior to doing business, furnish 
notice to the commissioner on forms prescribed by the NAIC which shall: 

(I) identify the state in which the group is domiciled; 

(2) identify all other states in which the group intends to do business; 
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( 3) specify the lines and classifications of liability insurance which the 
purchasing group intends to purchase; 

~ ( 4) identify the insurance company or companies from which the group 
intends to purchase its insurance and th€? domicile of the company; 

!41 (5) specify the method by which, and the person or persons, if any, 
through ·whom. insurance will be offered to its members whose risks are 
resident or located in this state: 

(6) ids,ntify 'the principal place of business of the group; and 

~ (7) provide other information required by the commissioner to verify 
that the purchasing group is qualified under section 60E.02, subdivision 11. 

Subd. 2. [NOTICE OF CHANGE.] A purchasing group shall, within ten 
days, notify the commissioner of any changes in any _items set forth in 
subdivision 1. · 

Subd. 3. [SERVICE OF PROCESS.] The purchasing group shall register 
with and designate the commissioner or other appropriate authority as its 
agent solely for the purpose of receiving service of legal documents or process 
for which a filing fee shall be determined by the commissioner. These 
requirements do not. apply to a purchasing group that only purchases 
insurance that. was authorized under the federal Product Liability Risk 
Retention Act of 1981, and that in any state of the United States: 

(I) was domiciled before April 2, 1986, and is domiciled on and after 
October 27, 1986, in any state of the United States; 

(2) before October 27, 1986, purchased insurance from an insurance carrier 
licensed in any state, and since October 27, 1986, purchased its insurance 
from an insurance carrier licensed in any state; and 

(3) was a purchasing group under the requirements of the federal Product 
Liability Retention Act of I 98 I before October 27, I 986; aaa 

(4j <lees oot ~u,ehase insYFanee that was !let aulhaFi,ed for ~u,pases ef"" 
e1'<!mplian un<leF the a€t FOEeffed le in ffilYSS f-,1, as in sffee! befere Oelabe• 
,;/, +98(;, . 

Subd. 4. [ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.] Each purchasing group that is 
required to give notice pursuant to subdivision 1 shall also furnish information 
required by the commissioner to: 

( 1) verify that the entity qualifies as a purchasing group; 

(2) determine where the purchasing group is located; and 

(3) determine appropriate tax treatment. 

Sec. 26. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 60E.09, is amended to read: 

60E.09 [RESTRICTIONS ON INSURANCE PURCHASED BY PUR-
CHASING GROUPS.] 

A purchasing group may not purchase insurance from a risk retention group 
that is not chartered in a state or from an insurer not admitted in the state in 
which the purchasing group is located, unless the purchase is effected through 
a licensed agent or broker acting pursuant to the surplus lines laws and 
regulations of the state. 



37TH DAY] FRIDAY, APRIL I 6, 1993. . 1901 

A purchasing group which obtains liability insurance fr6m an insurer not 
admitted in this state or _a·· risk retention group shall inform· each of the 
members of th_e group which have a risk resi_dent or located in this state that 
the risk is not protected by an insurance insolvency guaranty fund in this state, 
and that the ,:,isk reten_tion group or insurer may not be subject ~fJ all insurance 
laws and 're-iultitionJi <:f'this state. 

No purchasing group may purchase insurance providing for a deductible or 
self-insured-retention.applicable to the group as·a whole, however; coverage 
may provide for a deductible.or self-insured retention applicab~e to individual 
members .. -

Purchases· of 'insurance by purchasing groups are subject to the same 
standards-_fegarding aggregate limits which are applicable to all purchases of 
group ins.urance, 

Sec. 27. [60E.095] [PURCHASING GROUP TAXATION.] 

Premium ·taxes and taxes on premiums paid for coverage of risks' resident or 
located if} _this state by a purchasing group or any members of_ihe purchasing 
groups shall be: 

(]) imposed at the same rll'te &nd subject to the" same int"ereit; fines, and 
penalties 4s that applicable tO premium taxes and taxes on preniiums paid for 
similar c:oyerage fr<!m a similar insurance source_ by other insureds; and· 

(2)paidfirst by the insurance source, and if not by the source by the agent 
or broker for the purchasing group, and if not by the agent or broker then by 
the purchasing group, and if not by the purchasing group then by each of its 
membe,:s.. 

Sec. 28. Minnesot~ Statutes 1992, section 60E.IO, is amend~d to read:. 

60E. IO .[ADMINISTRATIVE AJ\ID PROCEDURAL AUTHORITY RE' 
GARDING RISK RETENTION GROUPS AND PURCHASING GROUPS.] 

The coffirissioner of commerce ·rriay use any ·of the powers -~sta~lished 
under the insurance laws aed R::tles of this state to enforce the·Iaws ·an:a mies 
of this st.ate.se Ieng as.thes<, !"'W6fS <iffi not specifically preempted by the 
Product Liability Risk Retention .Act of 1981;. as amended by the Risk. 
Retention Amendments of 1986. This includes, but is not limited to, the 
commi_ssioner's administ:r:ative authority to inves!igate, issue -subpoenas, 
conduct depositions and hearings, issue.orders_; llflQ impose p;,nalties, and 
seek injurictive relief:With regard to an investigitiQn, administrative proceed­
ings, or litigation, the commissioner· can rely on- the ·procedurat law aed RH85-
laws of. the state. The injunctive authority of; th·e cOminissioner in regard to 
risk_·retention groups is restric_ted by the requirement that an injunction be 
issued by a court of competent jurisdiction. · 

. Sec. 29. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 60E.12,. is amended to re.ad: 

. 60E.12 [DUTY ON AGENTS OR BROKERS TO OBTAIN LICENSE.] 

A jlefSOO aetiftg, 8f eff@fiag le aa, as aa ageat .Bf bfek@f fef a fisk Felealiea 
gffiHp er purehasiitg gffHll}-;- that ooliats memBers, sells iesuraHee eoveragB, 
frllfehases eeverage ffif its ffl.Ombers leeat-ea withiB the state er other\, ioe 0006 
Business ifl this state shall, befefe eommeHeing this aeth;ity, ~- a ik,ense 
frem !he eemmissieaeF. Subdivision 1. [RISK RETENTION GROUPS.] No 
person, firm, assoc~atiof!,, or corporaiion shall act or aid in any nianner i~ 
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soliciting, negotiating, or procuring liability insurance .in .this state from a 
risk retention -group unless the -person, firm, ·association, or corporation is 
licensed as an insurance agent or broker in accordance with chapter 60K. 

_Subd. 2. [PURCHASING GROUPS.]_ (a) No person, firm, association, or 
corporation shall act or aid in any manner in soliciting,_ negotiating, o_r 
procuring liability insurance in this state for a purchasing_ group from an 
author.ized insurer or a risk retention group chartered in a state. unless the 
person, firm, association, or Corporation is licensed as an insurance agent or 
broker in acco_rdance with chapter 60K. 

(b) No person, firm, association, or co,poration shall act or aid in any 
manner in soliciting, negotiating, or procuring liability-insurance coverage in 
this state for any member, of a purchasing group under a purchasing group's 
policy unless the person, firm. association, _or ·corporation is licensed as an 
insurance agent or Qroker in accordance wit~ chapter 60K. 

(c) No pers.on, firm, association, or corporation shall act or aid in any 
manner in so#citing, negotiating, or procuring lia_bility insurance from an 
insurer not authoriz'ed to do business in this state on behalf of a purchasing 
group located in this state unless the person.firm, association, or.corporation 
is licensed as a surplus lines agent or excess line broker in accordance with 
sections 60A.195 to 60A.209. 

Subd. 3. [AGENT OR BROKER RESIDENCE REQUIREMENT.] For 
purposes of acting as an agent or broker for a risk retention group or 
purchasing -group pursuant to Subdivisions 1 a_nd 2, the requirement of 
residence in this state does not apply. 

Subd. 4. [NOTICE TO INSUREDS.] Every person, firm, association, or 
corporation licensed pursuant lo chapter 60A, on business placed with risk 
retention groups or written through a purchasing group, shall inform each 
prospective insured of the provisions of the notice required by section 60£.04, 
subdivision 8, in the case of a risk retention group and section 60£.09 in the 
case of a purchas~ng gfoup. 

Sec. 30. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 60E.13, is amended to read: 

60E.13 [BINDING EFFECT OF ORDERS ISSUED IN UNITED STATES 
DISTRICT COURT.] . . 

An order issued by any district court of the United States enjoining a risk 
retention groµp from soliciting or selling insurance, or operating, in a state, or 
in all states or·in a territory or possession of the United States, upon a finding 
that the group is- in a hazardous· fiitancial condition or financially impaired 
condition shall be enforceable in the· courts -of the state. 

Sec. 31. Minnesota· Statutes 1992, section 79.252, subdivision I, is 
amended to read: 

Subdivision I. [PURPOSE.] The purpose of the assigned risk plan is to 
provide workers' compensation coverage to employers rejected by twe · 
Ronaf:H.1iate8 a licensed insurance 60R½f1anies, company pursuant to subdivi­
sion 2. eaeh rejee1i0a ffill6I be iR wfitiRg aoo ffillSI be sbtaiRea wi!hiR ell <lays 
l,e..,.., the ,late ef appliealiBR le the assignee risk plair. In aaailieR, !he 
,ojeelieas ffill6I alse shew !he HaHI@ ef !he iasurnaee eeffljlaRy aRd !he 
Fe~resentati;,e eontaete8. 

Sec. 32. [TRANSITIONAL PROVISIONS.] 
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(a) In addition to complying with the·- reqUirements of Minnesota Statutes, 
section 60E.04, a risk retention group operating in this state before the 
effective date of this act shall, within 30 days after that date, comply with the 
provisions of Mif!,nesottl_Stqtutes, Sectidif-60£.04, su_b'ilivision 2", paragrap~ 
~/- . . 

(b) A purchasing group which was, doing busineSs in this stale be/Ore the 
enactment of this act shall, within 30 days after the effective date of this act, 
furnish notice to the commissioner pursuqnt to Minnesota Statutes, section 
60E.08, subdivision 1, _and furnish the information required pursuant IQ 
Minnesota Statutes, section 60E.08, subdivisions 2 4nd 3. 

Sec. 3:3. [REPEALER.] 

Minnesota Statutes,1992, sections 60A.07, subdivision 5d; 60A.12, subdi­
vision 10; 60A.13, subdivision 3a; 60B.24; and 60£.11, are repealed. 
Minnesota Rules, parts 2710.0100; 2710.0200; 2710.0300; 2710.1100; 
2710.1200; 2710.1300; 2710.1400; 2710.1500; 2710.1600; 2710.1700; 
2710.1800; 2710.1900; 2710.2000; 2710.2100; 27103100-; 2710.3200; and 
2710.3300, are repealed." 

Delete the title and insert: 

"'A bill for_ an act relating to insurance; regulating _investments, assets and 
liilbilities, and annual statements of companies; providing for continuance of 
coverage upon liquidation; modifying the definition of resident for purposes 
of the Minnesota insurance guaranty association; regulating dividends and 
other distributions of insurari'ce holding company systemS; regulating risk 
retention groups; enacting the NAIC model legislatiori;. amending -Minnesota 
Statutes 1992, _ sections 60A. ll, subdivision 9; 60A.12, subdivision 3; 
60A. 13, subdivisions I and 6; 60A.23, subdivision 4; 60B.22, subdivision I; 
60C.03, subdivision 7; 60D.20, subdivisions 2 and 4; 60E.OJ; 60E.02, 
subdivisions 9 .and ·]2; 60E.03; 60E.04, subdivisions. r, 2, 3, 4; 7, 8, 11, and 
by adding a subdivision; 60E.05; 60E.07; 60E.08; 60E.09; 60E.10; 60E.12; 
60E.!3; and 79.252,. subdivision I; proposing coding for new law in 
Minnesota Statutes, chapters 60A; and 60E; repealing Minnesota Statutes 
1992, sections 60A.07, subdivision 5d; 60A.12, subdivision 10; 60A.13, 
subdivision 3a; 60B.24; 60E.11; Minnesota Rules, parts 2710.0100; 
2710.0200; 2710.0300; 2710.1100; 2710.1200; · 2710.1300; 2710.1400; 
2710.1500; 2710.1600; 2710. 1700; 2710.1800; 2710.1900; 2710.2000; 
2710.2100; 2710.3100; 2710.3200; and 2710.3300." · 

And when so amended the bill do pass. Amendments adopted. Report 
adopted. 

Mr. Metzen from the Comlllittee on Governmental O~rations ·and Refonn, 
to which was referred 

H.F. No. 168: A bill for an act relating to state government; authorizing 
state agencieS to enter info contracts with regional organizat_ions; proposing 
coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 15. 

Reports the same back wit_h the ·recolllrnendation that the 'bill be ,amended 
as follows: · · · 

Page 2, line II, after the comma, insert "state funds for the service must 
first be offered to potential se_rvice providers in the area not ser-ved by an 
active. commission. If no provider agrees to provid~ the service," 
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Page 2, line 13, delete "shall'·' arid insert "may" 

Page 2, line 16, after the comma, insert "state funds for the service must 
first be _offered to potential sen~ice providers in the area. If no provider agrees 
to prov~de the service," · 

Page 2, after line 20, insert: 

''(e) This subdivision does not limit the authority of a state agency to enter 
into contractual agreements for· services with other agencies or with local 
units of government." 

And when so amended the bill do pass. Amendments adopted. Report 
adopted. 

Mr. Chmielewski from the Committee on Transportation and Public Transit, 
to which was referred 

S.E No. 95:·A bill for an act reiating to transportation; defining personal 
transportation service; allowing provision of telephone caller identification 
service for certain commercial carriers of passengers; amending Minnesota 
Statutes 1992, section 221.011, subdivision 34; proposing coding for new law 
in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 237. 

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill be amended 
as follows: 

Delete eve~ything after the enacting clause and insert: 

"Section l. [237.74] [CLASS SERVICE.] 

Subdivision 1. [DEFINITION.] For purposes of this section, "CLASS" or 
''custom local area signaling service'' mellns a custom calling telephone 
service that is enabled'through the installation or use of Signaling System 7 
and that allows a person answering a telephone call to view, retrieve, retain, 
or in any waj, have access to the telephone number, Mme, or any other 
information relating to the telephone from which the call is placed. 

Subd. 2. [CLASS; TERMS AND CONDITIONS.] By January 1, 1994, the 
commission shall determine the terms and conditions under which CLASS 
services may be provided by 'telephone companies in this state. 

Subd. 3. [CLASS; CAPABILITY AND OFFERING OF SERVICE.] Each 
telephone company that pr<ivides local telephone service to persons located in 
the counties of Anoka, Carver, Dakota, Hennepin, Ramsey, Scott, and 
Washington shall obtain the capability to offer CLASS services by January 1, 
1995, unless the commission approves an extension to a date certain." 

Delete the title and insert: 

''A bill for an act relating to transportation; allowing provision of telephone 
caller identification service; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota 
Statutes, chapter 237." 

And when so amended the bill do pass and be re-referred to the Committee 
on Jobs, Energy and Community Development. Amendments adopted. Report 
adopted. 

Mr. Chmielewski from the Committee on Transportation and Public Transit, 
to which was referred 
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S.F. No. 910: A bill for an act relating to motor carriers; defining exempt 
carriers to include certain tow.·tru_cks; amending Minnesota Statutes .1992,. 
section 221.025 . 

. Reports the sam~ ba_ck with 'the' recOmµiendati_on that the bill be amended 
as follows: 

Delete everything after the enacting clause and insert: 
.· ' . . __ ' ' ' . . . 

• "Section I. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 169.01, subdivision 52, is 
amended..to read: · : .· ' ... · · · .' . 

Subd. 52, [fOW TRUCK OR TOWING VEHICLE.] "Tow truck" or 
"towing vehicle" means a motor vehicle having a manufacturer's gtoss 
vehicle weight rating of 8,000 pounds or more, equipped with a crane and 
wi,nch·; _or an attached device used e:Xclusively to transport vehicles, and 
further equipped to control the movement of the towed or transported vehicle. 

Sec .. 2. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 221.025, is amended. to read:· 

221.025 [EXEMPTIONS.] 

The p~o_visions of _this chapter requiring a certificate_ or permit to operate as 
a motor ·Carriet do not apply to the intras1:Jlte transportation d~scribed below: 

(a): the transportation_ of students to or. from school.or school activities_ in a 
school bus inspected and certified under section 169.451; · · 

(b) the transportation of solid waste, as defined in section ll6.06, 
subdivision 22, incb,1ding_recyclable material~ and ,waste tires, except that the 
term· "hazardous waste" has the meaning· given it in section 221.011', 
subdivision 31; · · -

(c) a commuter van as defined in section 221.011, subdivision 27; 

(d) authorized emergency vehicles as defined in seciion- 169.01, subdivi­
sion 5, including ambulances-;-;_and tow trucks equipped.with proper arid legal 
warning devices· when picking· up and transporting (I) {J.isabled or wrecked 
motor vehicles ;H1G w1,.,.. sa,ryiRg ~£01"'f ;H1G l@gal warniRg OO¥ises or (2) 
vehicles towed or transported under a towing order issued by a public 
employee authorized.:(.o issue a towing orde,:; 

( e) the transportation of grain samples under conditions prescribed by the 
board; 

(!}the delivery of agricultural lime; 

(g) the transportation of dirt and sod within an area having a 50°mile radius 
from the home post office of the person performing the transportation; 

(h) the transportation of sand, gravel, bituminous asphalt mix, concrete 
ready mix, concrete blocks or tilC and the_ mor~ar mix to be used with the 
concrete bh:x;ks or tile, or cni.slied.rock to.or from the point of loading or a 
place ~f gathering ":'ithin an area having a 50-mile radius frpm that person's 
home· post office of a 50-mile ra~iiIS from the site of construction or 
maintenance of public road~ _and· st~e_ts_; 

(i) the transportation of pulpwood, cord wood,. mining timber, poles, posts, 
decorator evergreens, wood chips, sawdust, shavings, and bark from the place, 
where the products are produced to the point where they are to be used or 
shipped; 
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(i) the transportation of fresh vegetables from farms to canneries or viner 
stations, from viner stations to .canneries.- or from canneries to canneries 
during the harvesting, canning, or packing season, or transporting potatoes, 
sugar beets, wild rice, or rutabagas from the.field of production to the first 
place of delivery or unloading, including a processing plant, warehouse, or 
raikoad siding; 

(k) the transportation of property or freight; other than household goods and 
petroleum. products in bulk, entirely .within the corporate limits of a city or 
between contiguous c,iti~s except as provided in section 221.296; 

(I) the transportation of unprocessed dairy products in bulk within an area 
having a JOO-mile radius from the home post office of the person providing 
the transportation; 

(m) the transportation of agricultural, horticultural, dairy, livestock, or 
other fann products within an area having a 25-mile radius from the person's 
home post Office and the carriet may transport other commodities· within the 
25-mile radius if the destination of each haul is a farm; 

(n) passenger transportation service that is not charter service and that is 
under contract to and with operating assistance from the department or the 
regional transit board; and 

(o) the transportation of newspapers, as defined in section 331A.0l, 
subdivision 5, telephone books, handbills, circulars, or pamphlets in a vehicle 
with a gross vehicle weight of 10,000 pounds or less. 

The exemptions provided in this section apply to a person only while the 
person is exclusively engaged in exempt transportation.'' 

Amend the title as follows: 

Page I, line 4, delete "section" and insert "sections 169.01, subdivision 
52; and" 

And when so amended the bill do pass. Amendments adopted. Report 
adopted. 

Mr. Chmielewski from the Committee on Transportation and Public Transit, 
to which was referre!l 

S.F. No. 474: A bill for an .act relating to transportation; requiring 
metropolitan area highway projects' environmental impact statements. to 
address economic, social, and demographic efforts; requiring the revision of 
the state transportation plan to establish objectives and policies for the health 
of the fully developed part of the metropolitan area; prohibiting federal section 
9 money from being used for highways; re_quiring the metropolitan council's 
transportation policy plan to require comparison of highways to transit and 
effects of highways on land use and housing; providing that the transit goals 
include stabilizing and enhancing the health of the metropolitan area; 
amending Minnesota Statutes 1992, sections I 16D.04, by adding a subdivi­
sion; 174.03, subdivision la;A73.l46, subdivision 3; 473.167, subdivision l; 
473.371; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 174. 

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill be amended 
as follows: 

Delete everything after the enacting clause and insert: 
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"Section I. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 174.03, subdivision la, is 
amended to read: · 

Subd. la. [REVISION OFSTATE.TRANSPORTATION PLAN.] The 
commissioner shall revise the state transportation plan by July 1, 1993; and by 
July I of each odd-numbered year thereafter.· Before final adoption of a 
revised plan, the commissioner shall hold a hearing toreceive public comment 
on the plan. The -revised state transportation plan ~ust: 

. (1) incorporate the goals of the state transpori,ation system in section 
174.01; am! 

(2) establish objectives, policies, and strategies.for.achieving those goals; 
and 

(3) establish transpo~tation· objectives, ;olicies·: :dnd strategies for.-the 
metropolitan area, as defined in section 473.121, subdivision 2, to help 
stabilize and enhance the social and economic health of the central cities, the 
fully developed area, and the metropolitali area as a whole. 

Sec. 2: Minnesota Statutes 1992, section. 473.]46, subdivision 3, is 
amended to read: · ·· · 

Subd. 3. [TRANSPORTATION CHAPTER OF TI-\E DEVELOPMENT 
GUIDE.] The transportation chaptc;,r must include policies relating to all 
transportation forms and be. designed to promote the legislative determina­
tions, policies, and goals set forth' in section 473.371. In addition to the 
requirements of subdivision I regarding the contents of the policy plan, the 
nontransit element of the transportation chapter must _indude the following: 

(I) a_ statement of the needs and problems of the metropolitan area with 
respect to the functions covered, including• the present .and prospective 
demand for and constraints on access to regional business concentrations _and 
other major activity centers and the. constraints on and. acceptable levels of 
development and vehicular trip generation at such centers; 

(2) the objectives of and the policies fo be forwarded bY, the policy pl_an; 

(3) a general description of the physical facilities and services to be 
developed; · · 

(4) a statement as to the general location of physical facilities and service 
areas; 

(5) a general statement of timing and priorities in the development of those 
physical _facilities and service areas; 

(6) a detailed statement, updated every two years, of timing and priorities 
for improvements and expenditures needed on the metropolitan highway 
system; am! 

(7) a general statement on the level of public expenditure appropriate to the 
facilities; 

(8) procedures for determining whether the need to be met by any highway 
project that involves capacity· improvement could be met at less cost, with less 
traffic congestion, and less invironmental · impClct by _transit improvements 
within the same transportation corridor; and 
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(9) provisions for, consideration ·of the effects of highway projects in 
conjunction with land use and _housing, including low- and moderate-income 
housing, on the social and economic isolation of low-income populations from 
growing economic opportunlties in the develojJing suburban areas, within the 
area itnn:zediately affecte4· by the projeci and within the entire metropOlitan 
area-. 

The council shall develop the nontransit element in consultation with the 
transportation advisory board and shall transmit the results to the state 
department of transportation. 

Sec. 3. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 473.371, subdivision 2, is 
amellded to read: 

Subd. 2. [GOALS.] Jhe goals of sections 473.371 to 473.449 are as 
follows: 

(a) to provide, to the .greatest feasible extent, a basic level of mobility for 
all people in the met;opolitan area; 

(b) to arrange to the greatest feasible extent for the provision of a 
comprehensive set of transit and paratransit services to meet the needs of all 
people in the metropolitan area; 

' (c) to cooperate with private and public transit r.roviders to assure the most 
efficient and coordinated use of existing and planned transit resources; am! 

•· - . . . 

(d) to maintain public mobility in the event of emergencies or energy 
shortages; and 

( e) to help stabilize and enhance the social and economic health of the 
metropolitan area by ensuring to the greatest feasible extent comprehensive 
transit services including, -but _noi.:limited to, service connecting the central 
cities to areas with employment opportunities and services. 

Sec. 4. [APPLICATION.] 

Sections 2 and 3 apply in the counties ofAnoka, Carver, Dakota, Hennepin, 
Ramsey, Scou, and Washington." · . 

Delete the title and insert: 

• 'A bill for an act relating to transportation; including in state transportation 
plan and'metropolitan council development guide certain matters relating to 
metropolitan area; amending Minnesota Statutes 1992, sections 174.03, 
subdivision la; 473.146, subdivision 3; and 473.371, subdivision 2." 

And when so amended the bill do pass. Amendments adopted. Report 
adopted. 

Mr, Chmielewski from the Committee on Transportation and Public Transit, 
to which was re-referred 

S.F. No. 184: A bill for an act relating to recreational vehicles; regulating 
registration and operation of off-highway motorcycles; setting fees and 
penalties; requiring reports to the legislature; appropriating money; amending 
Minnesota Statutes 1992, sections 84.91; 84:9fl; 85.018, subdivisions 2, 3, 
and 5; 171.03; and 466.03, subdivision 16;,proposing coding for new law in 
Minnesota Statutes, chapter 84. · 
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Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill be amended 
as follows: 

Delete everything after the enacting clause and insert: . 

"Section .1. [84:93] [DEFINITIONS.] 

.Subdivision 1. [SCOPE.] The definitions in this section apply to sections 1 
to 10. 

Subd. 2. [ACCOMPANIED.] "Accompanied'.' means subject to continuous 
directioiz or control:. · · 

Subd. 3. [CITY.] .''City" me.11ns a statutory or .home rule charter city. 

Subd. 4. [COMMISSIONER.) "Commissioner" means the commissioner 
of nat1:1-ral resources. · 

Subd. 5. [DEALER.) "Dedier=· means a person engaged in the business of 
selling off-highway motorcycl~s at wholesale or retail. 

Subd. 6: [MANUFACTURER.) "Manufacturer'' means a person engaged 
in the.business of manufacturing off-highway motorcycles. 

Subd. 7. [OFF-lfIGHWAY MOTORCYCLE.) "Off-highway motorcycle" 
means a motorized, offchighway vehicle traveling on two wheels and having a 
seat or saddle designed to be straddled by the operaior and hand/.ebars for 
ste~ring·cont,:ol; including a vehicle that is registered under chapter 168 for 
highway use if it is also used for off-highway operation on trails or 
unimproved- terrain.· 

Subd, 8. [OWNER.] "Owner" means a person, other than .a person with 
a security interest, that has a _property interest in or title to an off-highway 
motorcycle and is e,:ztided to the use and possession of the motorcycle. 

Subd.· 9. [PERSON.l "Person" has the meaning give~ it in section 
336.1-201, subsection (30). 

Subd. 10. [PUBLIC ROAD RIGHT-OF-WAY.] "Public road right-of-way" 
means the entire right-of-way of a town road or a county, county state-aid, or 
trunk highway, including the traveled portions, banks, ditches, shoulders, and 
medians.: · 

Subd. 11. (REGISTER.] "Register" means the act· of assigning a. 
registration number "to an off-highway motorcycle, · 

Sec. 2. [84.931) [REGISTRATION.) 

· Subdivision 1. [GENERAL REQUIREMENTS.] Unless exempted in sub­
division 2, after January 1, J994, a person may not ope'rate and an owner 
may not give permission for another to operate an-_off-highway motorcycle on 
public lands or waters unless the vehicle has been. registered un4er this 
section. 

Subd. 2. [EXEMPTIONS.] Registration is not required for off-highway 
motorcycles: 

(J) owned and •used by the United States, the state, another state, or a 
political subdivision; -
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(2) registered in another state or country that.have not been within this state 
for more than 30 consecutive ~ys; 

(3) used exclusively in organized track racing events;. 

(4) being used on private land With the permission of the landowner; or 

(5) registered under chapter 168, when operated on forest roads to gain 
access to a_stateforest campground: 

Subd .. 3. [APPLICATION; ISSUANCE; REPORTS.] Application for reg­
istration or ·continued registration must be rriade to the.· Commissiorier or an 
authorized deputy registrar of motor vehicles on a form prescribed by the 
commissioner. The form must state the name and address of every owner of the 
off-highway motorcycle and must be signed by at least one owner. Upon 
receipt of the application and the appropriate fee, the commissioner shall 
assign a registration num_ber that must be. llffixed to the motorcycle in a 
manner prescrib,ed by the commissioner. The commissioner shall develOp a 
registration system to register vehicles under (his section. A deputy registrar 
of motor vehicles acting under section .168.33, is also a deputy registmr of 
off-highway inotorcycles. The CommisSioner of natural ,:esources in agreement 
with the commissioner of public safety may prescribe the accounting and 
procedural requireinents necessary to ensure efficient ha.ndling of registra­
tions and registration fees. Deputy registrars shall strictly comply with the 
accounting and procedural requirements. A fee of 50 cents in addition to other 
fees prescribed by law is charged for each off-highway motorcycle registered 
by a deputy registrar, and must be deposited in the treasury ofthe jurisdiction 
where the deputy is appointed, or kept if the deputy is not a public official. 

Subd. 4. [REGISTRATION CARD; REPLACEMENT FEE.] The commis­
sioner shall provide to the registrant a registration card that· includes the 
registration number, the date of registration, the make and serial number of 
the off-highway motorcycle, the owner's name and address, and additional 
information the commissioner may require. Information concerning. registra­
tions must be kept by the commissioner. Upon a satisfactory showing that the 
registration card has been lost or destroyed, the commissioner shall issue a 
replacement registration card upon payment of a fee of $4. The fees collected 
from replacement registration cards must be credited to the. off-highway 
motorcycle account. 

Subd. 5. [REPORT OF TRANSFERS; FEE.] A person who sells or 
transfers ownership of an off-highway motorcycle registered under this section 
shall report the sale or transfer to the commissioner within 15 days of the date 
of transfer. An application for transfer must be executed by the registered 
owner and the buyer on a form prescribed by the commissioner with . the 
owner's registration certificate, a Mil of sale, and a $4 fee. 

Subd. 6. [REGISTRATION FEES.] (a) The fee for registration of an 
off-highway motorcycle under this section, other than those registered by a 
dealer or manufactufer under paragraph (b) or (c), is $30for three years and 
$4 for a duplicate or transfer. 

(b) The total registration fee for off-highway motorcycles owned by a dealer 
and operatedfor demonstration or testing purposes is $50 per year. Dealer 
registra_tion$ a,:e. not transferable. 
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(c) The total registration fee for off,highway motorcycles owned ·by .a 
manufacturer and operaied for research, testing,· experimentation, or dem­
onstration purposes is '$150 per year. Manufacturer registrations are not 
transferable. 

( d) The fees collecied under this subdivision must be credited to the 
off-highway moiorcycle :iccount. 

Subd. 7. [RENEWAL.] An owner of an off:highway motorcycle must renew 
registration i,i a _manner prescribed by the commissioner upon payment of the 
appropriate registration fee in subdivision 6. 

Subd. 8. [VEHICLES OWNED BY STATE OR POLITICAL SUBDIVI­
SION.] A registration number must be issued without the payment ofa fee for 

0off-highway motorcycles owned by the state or political subdivision upon 
application. 

Subd. 9. [LICENSING BY POLITICAL SUBDIVISIONS,] A political 
subdivision- of this state may noi require licensing or registration of off.-
highway motorcycles covered by sections-I to 10. · 

Subd. 10. [REGISTRATION BY MINORS PROHIBITED.] A person 
under the age of 18 may not register an. off-highway motorcycle. 

Sec. 3. [84.932] [REQUIREMENTS OF MAIUJRS OF _OFF-HIGHWAY 
MOTORCYCLES.] . . 

Subdivision 1. [IDENTIFICATION NUMBER.] An off-highway motorcy­
cle made after.· January 1, 1994, and sold in the state, must have a 
manufacturer_'s _permanent identificatio'n ·number stamped in letters and 
numb_ers on th~ vehicle in_ the form and at a loCation, prescribed by 'the 
commissioner. · · 

Subd. 2. [REGISTRATION NUMBER.] An off-highway motorcycle made 
after January 1, 1995, and sold in the state, must be designed and made to 
provide an· area to affix the registration· number. This area must _be at a 
location and of dimensions prescribed by the. _commissioner . 

. Sec. 4'. [84.933] [RULEMAI\ING; ACCIDENT REPORT] 

( a) With a view of achieving proper use of off highway motorcycles 
consistent with° protection of the environment, the commissioner, in consul-_ 
tatiOn with the commissioners of public safety and transportation,.shall adopt 
rules under chapter 14 relating to: · 

(1) registration of off-highway motorcycles and display of registration 
numbers; 

(2) use of off-highw_dy motorcycles insofar as game and fish resources are 
{fffected; · · 

-( 3) use of off-highway motorcycles on public lands and waters under the 
jurisdiction of the commissioner,' 

(4) uniform signs to be used by the state, counties, and cities necessary or 
desirable to control, direct, or reg"ulate the operatio_n arid use of off-highway 
m</iorcycles; and 

(5) off-highway motorcycle sound levels. 
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- (b) The commissioner of public safety, in consultation with the commis­
sioner of natural resources, may adopt rules under chapter 14 regulating the 
use of off-highway motorcycles on public roads. 

( c) The operator and an officer investigating an accident of an off-highway 
motorcycle resulting in injury requiring medical attention or hospitalization to 
or death of a person or total damage to an extent of $500 or more shall 
forward within ten days a written report of the accident to the commissioner 
on a form prescribed by the commiS~ioner .. 

Sec. 5, [84.934] [EDUCATION AND TRAINING.] 

Subdivision 1. [PROGRAM ESTABLISHED.] The commissioner shall 
est.ablish a -comprehensive off-highway motorcycle environmerit and safety 
education and-trClining program, induding the preparation and dissemination. 
of vehicle information and safety advice to the public, the _training of 
off-highway motorcycle operators, and the issuance of off-highway motorcy­
cle safety certificates to operators under the age of 16 years who successfully 
complete the off-highway motorcycle environment and safety education and 
training courses. 

Subd. 2. [FEE.] For the purposes of administering the program and to 
defray a portion of the expenses· of training and certifying vehicle operators, 
the commissioner shall collect a fl!e not to exceed $5 from each person who 
receives the training. The fees must be credited -to the off-highway motorcycle 
account. 

Subd. 3. [COOPERATION AND CONSULTATION.] The commissioner 
shall cooperate with private organizations and associations, private and 
publi<;. corporations, and local governmental units in• Juriherance of the 
program established under this section. The commissioner shall consult with 
the commissioner of public safety in regard to training program sUbject _matter 
and performance testing that leads to the certification of off-road motorcycle 
operators. 

Sec. 6. [84.935] [SIGNAL FROM OFFICER TO STOP.] 

An off-highway motorcycle. operator, after having received a visual or 
audible signal from a law-enforcement officer to come "to a stop, may flOt: 

( 1) operate an off-highway motorcycle in willful or wanton disregard of the 
signal to stop; · 

(2) inte,fere with or endanger the law enforcement officer or another 
person or vehicle;.or 

·(3) iricrease speed or attempt to flee Or elude the officer. 

Sec. 7. [84.936] [YOUTHFUL OPERATORS; PRQHIBITTONS.] 

Subdivision 1. [PROHIBITTONS ON YOUTHFUL OPERATORS.] (a) 
After January 1, 1995, a person less than 16 years of age operating an 
off-highway motorcycle on · public lands or waters must .possess a valid 
off-highway motorcycle safety certificate issued by the commissioner. 

(b) Except for operation on public road rights-of-way that is permitted 
under section 9, subdivision 1, a driver's license issued by the state or another_ 
state is required to operate an off-highway motorcycle along or on a public 
road right-of-way. · 
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(c).A person under 12 years of age may not: 

(]) make a direct crossing of a public road right-of-way; 

(2) operate an off-highway motorcycle on a public road right-of-w~y in the 
state; or 

(3) operate an off-highway motorcycle on public lands or waters unless 
accompanied on anotli:er off-highway l'QOtorcycle by a person 18 years of age 
or older. 

/d) Except for public road rights-of-way of intersiate highways, a person 
less than . 16 years of age may make a direct crossing of a public road 
right-of way of a trunk, county state-aid, or county highway only if that 
person is accompanied on another off-highway motorcycle by a person 18 
years Of age or older who holds- a valid driver's license. 

(e) A person less than 16 years of age may operate an off-highway 
motorcycle ori · public road rights-of-way in accordance with section 9, · 
subdivi_sion 1, paragraph ( a), only if that "person is accompllnied on another 
off-highway motorcycle by a perso_n 18 years of age or older who holds a valid 
driver's license. 

Subd. 2. [HELMET REQUIRED.] A person less than 18 years of age may 
not operate an off-highway motorcycle on public land, public waters, or on a 
public road right-ofway unless wearing a safety he/met approved by the 
commissioner of public safety. 

Subd. 3. [PROHIBillONS ON OWNER.] An owner of an off-highway 
motorcycle ntlly norkoowingly allow it to be operated contrciry to this section . 

. Subd. L/. [EYE _PROTECTION REQUIRED.] A person may not operate an 
off-highway motorcycle without an eye-protective device. · 

Sec. 8. [84.937] [OFF-HIGHWAY MOTORCYCLE ACCOUNT; RE-
CEIPTS AND ALLOCATIONS.]- . 

Subdivision 1. [REGISTRATION REVENUE AND UNREFUNDED GAS­
OLINE TAX.] Fees from the registration of off-highway motorcycles must be 
deposited in .the· state treasury and credited to the off-highway motorcycle 
account in the natural resources fund. 

Subd. 2_. [PURPOSES.] (a) Subject to appropriation by the legislature, 
money in the off-highway motorcycle account may only be spent for: 

(])administration and implementation of sections 1 to JO; 

/2) acquisition, maintenance, and development of off-highway motorcyc/e 
trails and use areas,: and 

( 3) grants-in-_aid to counties and municipalities to construct and maintain 
off-highway m<?torcycle trails and use areas. · 

/b) The distribution of funds made availablefor grants-in-aid must be 
guided by the statewide comprehensive outdoor recreation plan. 

Sec. 9. [84.938] [OPERATION REQUIREMENTS; LOCAL REGULA-
TION.] . 

Subdivision 1. [OPERATION ON PUBLIC ROAD RIGHTS-OF-WAY.] /a) 
A person may ·not operate an off-highway motorcycle within the right-of-way 
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of a trunk, county state-aid, or county highway in this state •unless the 
right-of-way encompasses: 

(I) a trail administered by the commissioner and designated for off-highway 
motorcycle use or multiple uSe; 6r 

(2) a corridor access trail designat<:d under paragraph (b). 

(b) A road authority, as defined in section 160.02, subdivision 9, may 
designate, with the approval of the commissioner, corridor access trails On 

public road rights-of-way for gaining access to established off-highway 
motorcycle trails. 

( c J A person may not• operate an off highway motorcycle upon a trunk, 
county state-aid, or county highway in this state unless the vehicle is equipped 
with at least one headlight and ·one taillight, each of minimum candlepower 
as prescribed by rule of the commissioner, and with brakes conforming to 
standards prescribed by rule of the commissioner, all of which llre subject to 
the approval of the commissioner of public safety. 

/ d) A person may not operate an ·off highway motorcycle at any time within 
the right-of-way of an interstate highway or freeway within this state. 

Subd. 2. [CROSSING PUBLIC ROAD RIGHT-OF-WAY.] (a) A person 
operating an off-highway moiorcjlcle may make a direct crossing of-a public 
road right-of-way provided: · 

(I) the crossing is made at an angle of approximately 90 degrees to the 
direction of the road and at a place where no obstruction prevents a quick and 
sdfe crossing; · 

(2) the off-highway motorcycle is brought to a complete stop before 
crossing the shoulder or main traveled way of the _road; 

( 3) the driver yields the right-of-way to all oncoming traffic that constitutes 
an immediate hazard; · · 

( 4) in crossing a divided road, the crossing is made only at an intersection 
of the road with another public road; and 

(5) if the crossing is made between the hours of one-half hour after sunset 
to one-half hour before sunrise or in conditions of reduced visibility, only if 
both front and rear lights are on. 

(b) Chapter 169 applies to the operation of off-highway motorcycles upon 
streets and highways, except for those provisions · relating to required 
equipment and those provisions that by their nature have no application. 

Subd. 3. [EXEMPTIONS.] Subdivisions I .and 2 do not apply to ·vehicles 
registered for public road use under chapter I 68 when being operated on a 

· traveled portion of a public road.· 

Subd. 4. [OPERATION GENERALLY.] A person may not drive or operate 
an off-highway motorcycle: 

( 1) at a rate of speed · greater than reasonable or proper under the 
surrounding circumstances; 

(2) in a careless, reckless, or negligent manner so as to endanger or to 
cause injury or damage to the person or property of another; 
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(3) in a tre(!' nursery or planting _in' a· manner that·dam(lges or-destroys 
growing stock; · · 

. \ . . . '.· . . ,:- ... '.· 
(4) without a brake' operational by eiih.er hand orfoot; 

(5) at a speedex,eeding ten miles per hour on thefrozen surface of public 
Waters within 100 feet ·of (1 persOn fishing.or a fishiJJ,g shelter;. or 

. ((!)in~ ~nner thdt violate; operatio_n ;,4es ~optefiby _th~ commissioner. 

Subd. 5. [OPERATING UNDER INFLUENCE OF ALCOHOL OR CON­
TROLLED SUBSTANCE,] A person may not operate ·or be in control of an 
off:.,,highWay motorcycl_e .. ariywhere in this state or on the ice:ofany boundary 
water of this state while under the influence of alcohol or a controlled 
substance, as provided in section 169.121, and is subject to section 169.123 . 

. A conservation O.ffiper Of the department of natural _r:esources is d peace 
offi<;er Jo~ the purposes of sections 169.121 and.169.123 as applied to the 
Operlltion _Of an--off-hii;hway rizotorcycle-in a manner not_subject tO registrqtion 
under chapter 168. · · 

Subd. 6. [OPERATION PROHIBITED ON AIRPORTS.] A person may not 
drive_ or operate an 9ff-highW'ay mOtOrcycle -on an airport defined in Section 
360'.0n; subdivision 5. 

Subd. 7. [ORGANIZED CONTEST.S.J N~thingin this section or chapter 
169 prohibits the use of off-highway motorcycles within the. right-of-way of a 
state trunk, or cOU;nty state-aid highway or upon publ(c-lands or waters unde-r 

· the jurisdiction· OJ the commissioner of natural Ye sources, ih an organized 
contest _or event, · subject to the consent of the _official or board having 
juris4_ictio~ pver:_the ~ighway o_r pu,b_tic _lands or w~te,rs. 

In perhi#ting -the contest of event,· the official or board having jurisdiction 
mayprescfibe re~·trictions: conditiOris, of permit revocation· procedures, as 

· the official or' bbafd considers advisable . 

. Subd: 8. [I%EGULATIONS BY POLITICAL SUBDIVI:'>IONS.] A county, 
city, or-town,.pctiYlg".-thrDugh its-governing body, may_regulate the operation 
ofpff-highWayimotorcycles-on public (an_ds, wa,ters, and property under its 
juriSdittion otfler.·- ,thdn .public _rOad-righ(s-of-way w(thin its boundari_es,_ by 
resolution Or ordinance of the governing'1 body and by -giving apprqpriate 
·n.otice, proyided that: 

. ' . . . 

(1) the feg~l~tions must be consistent with s~ctions 1 to 10 and rules 
adop(ed under se_yion 4; · ' 

· -(2). an ordituiflce·mily not_imp()s_e a fee for the use .. OJ public land or:water 
under the jl,lrisdiction of either. the department of r,,atUral resources or another. 
agency-of the state, or for,the use of an dccess: to .it -owned by the state, d 
_couHty,_ or:a city;--ahd. 

"-:-(3) -an ordinance may not require an :off-highway 'motorcycle·, operator to 
possfs~ .ti h'J.otoh vehicle :driver's· license while· operating an off-highway 
motorcycle. 

Sec. 10. [84.939] [PENALTIES.] 

A person ,;.ho violates a provision of section 2, 3, 6, 7, or. 9 is guilty. of a 
misdemeanor. ·, 
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Sec. 11. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 85.018, subdivision 2, is 
amended to read: 

Subd. 2. [AUTHORITY OF LOCAL GOVERNMENT.] (a) A local 
government unit ·that receives state grants-in-aid for aiiy trail, with the 
concurrence of the commissioner; and the landown:er or land lessee, may: 

(I) designate the trail for use by snowmobiles or for nonmotorized use from 
December I to April I of any year; and 

(2) issue any permit required under subdivisions 3 to 5. 

(b) A local government unit that receives state. grants-in-aid under section 
84.927, sul;>division ·2,- or section 8, subdivision 2, for any trail, with the 
concurrence of the commissioner, and landowner or land lessee_, may: 

(I) designate the trail specifically for use at various times of the year by 
all-terrain vehicles or off-hig/JwaY motorcycles, for noru'notorized use such as 
ski touring, snowshoeing, and hiking, and for multiple use, bi.tt nOt for 
motorized and nonmotorized use at the same time; and · · 

(2) issue any permit required under subdivisions 3 to 5. 

(c) A local unit of government that receives state grants-in-aid for any trail, 
with the concurrence of the commissioner and landowner_ or land lessee, inay 
designate certain trails for_ joint use by snowmobiles, off-highway nwtorcy­
cles, and all-terrain vehicles. 

Sec. 12. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 85.018, subdivision 3, is 
amended to read: 

Subd. 3. [MOTORIZED USE; PERMITS., RESTRICTIONS.] Permits may 
be issued for motorized vehicles, other than those designated, to use a trail 
designated for use by snowmobiles, off-highway motorcycles, or all-te.rrain 
vehicles. Notice of the permit must be conspicuously posted, at the expense 
of the permit holder, at no less than one-half mile intervals along the trail, for 
the duration of the permit. Permits shall require that permit holders return the 
trail and any associated facility to their original condition if any damage is 
done by the permittee. Limited permits for special events such as races may 
be issued and shall require the removal of any trail markers, banners and other 
material used in connection with the special event. 

Sec. 13. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 85.018, subdivision 5, is 
amended to read: 

Subd. 5. [S~!OWMOOILE ANP ALL TERRAil>U10TOR/ZED VEHICLE 
TRAILS RESTRICTED.] (a) From December I to April I in any year no use 
of a motorized vehicle other than a snowmobile, unless authorized by permit; 
lease or easement, shall be permitted on a trail designated for use by 
snowmobiles. 

(b) From December I to April I in any year no use of a motorized vehicle 
other than an all-terrain vehicle an£i an off-highway motorcycle, unless 
authorized by permit, shall be permitted, on a trail designated for use by 
all-terrain ••ehicles and off-highway motorcycles. 

Sec. 14. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 171.03, is amended to read: 

171.03 [PERSONS EXEMPT.] 
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The. following persons, are.- exempt from license hereunder·: 

(I) a person 1n, the employ or servi2e of lheUnited ~tales federal 
government while driving or 9perating a motor,-•ehicle owned by or leased to 
!he United Slates federal ,government, except that only a nondvilian operator 
of a commercial motor vehicle owned or leased by , the United States 
Department of Defense or the Minnesota national guard is exempt fi'om the 
requ~ement to poss~ss a vflli~ collll!1ercial motdt ve~icle __ driver's. license; 

(2) any person while driving or operating any farm tractor, or implement of 
husbandry temporarily operated or moved on a highway, and for purposes of 
this section an all-terrain vebicle, as defined in section 84.92, subdivision 8, 
is 1J<3t aa Hllfllemeel'qnd an off-highway motorcycle, as defined in section 1, 
sul!division ~. are not !mpleff?~nts ·of husbandfy; · · 

, (3) a nonresident who is at least 15 years of age and who,has in immediate 
possession a valid driver's license issued to the nonresident in the home state 
or country may operate a motor vehicle in this state only as· a driver;· · 

(4) a nonresident who has in immediate possession a valid commercial 
,driver's license issued by a state in complian~ with the Commercial Motor 
Vehicle Safety Act of 1986, United States Code, title 49, sections 521, 2304, 
and 2701 to 2716, and who is operating in Minnesota the class of commercial 
motor vehicle authorized by the issuing state; , 

(5) any nonresident who is at least 18 years of age, whose home state or 
country does not require the licensing.of driyers may operate a ~otor vehicle 
as, a driver, only for a period of not more than 90 days in any calendar year if 
tlie,motor vehicle so operated is duly registered for the current calendar year 
in ,the home state oi country, of such nonresident; ,', , , 

(6) any person who becomes a resident of the state of Minnesota and, who 
hri.s in possession a· valid driver's licynse issued to the person_ under and 
pursuant to the.laws of some other state or province or by military authorities 
of tlie United States may operate a motor vehicle as a driver, only for a period 
of not more than 60 days after becoming a resident of this state without being 
required to have a' Minnesota driver's license as provided in this chapter; , 

(7} any person who becomes a resident of the state of Minnesota and who 
haS in possession a valid commercial driver's license issued by another state 
in compliance with the Co,mmercial Motor Vehicle Safety Act of 19&6, United 
States Code, title 49, sections 521, 2304, and'.1701 to 2716, fornot more than 
30 days after becoming a resident of this state; and 

(S), any person operating a snowmobile, as definedin section ,84.81. 

Sec. 15. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 466.03, subdivision 16, is 
amended to read: , 

S\lbcl. 16. Any claim against:a county, arising from the operation of an 
all-terrain vehicle or off-highway motorcycle on land administered by a county 
under chapter 280, 281, or 282, ewept that the ·county is liable for conduct 
that would entitle a trespasser to damages against a private person. 

Sec. 16. [DETERMINATION OF TAX ALLOCATION; REPORT TO 
LEGISLATURE.] 

The =commissi<;mers of IUitijral reSourceS, .rer~.n~e ,::;and transporiatiotJ. shall 
jointly determine the am'ount of unrefunded gasoline tax attributable to 
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off-highway motorcycle use in the state and shall report to the legislature by 
March 1, 1994, with an appropriate proposed revision to Minnesota Statutes, 
section 296. 16. . 

Sec. 17. [LEGISLATIVE REPORT ON REGISTRATION AND USE.] .· 

By January 1, 1995, the-commissioner of natural resources shall report to 
the legislature on the number of off-highway motorcycles registered under 
section 2 and the growth patterns of off-highway motorcycle use in the state: 

Sec. 18. [APPROPRIATION AND REIMBURSEMENT; INCREASED 
COMPLEMENT.] . . . . . . 

Subdivision I. [TO COMMlSSIONER OF NATURAL RESOURCES.] 
$ ....... is appropriated to the commissioner of natural resOurces from the 
general fund for the purposes of sections 1 to 17 and is available for the fiscal 
year ending June 30, 1994: The approved complement of the department of 
natural resources is increased by . ; .. positions. 

Subd. 2. [REIMBURSEMENT.] Amounts spent by the commissioner-of· 
natural resources from the appropriation in subdivision 1 must be reiml,mrsed. 
to the general fund. The amount .necessary to make the .reimbursement is 
appropriated from the off-highway motorcycle account in the natural .re­
sources fund to the commissioner of finance for transfer to the general fund." 

Delete the title and insert: 

"A bill for an act relating to recreational vehicles; regulating registration' 
and operation of off-highway motorcycles; setting fees and penalties; l)'quir, 
ing reports to the legislature; appropriating money; amending . Minnesota 
Statutes 1992, sections 85.018, subdivisions 2, 3, and 5; 171.03; and 466.03, 
subdivision 16; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes; chapter 
84." . 

· And when so amende.d the bill do pass and be re-referred to the Committee 
on Environment and Natural .Resources. Ms. Lesewski questioqed the 
reference thereon and, under Rule 35, the bill was referred to the Committee 
on Rules and Administration. 

Mrs. Adkins from the Committee on Metropolitan and Local Government, 
to which. was re-referred · 

S.E No. 771: A bill for an act relating to motor fuels; changing the formula 
for payments made . to producers of ethanol; increasing oxygenate level 
requirements for gasoline; authorizing the pollution control agency to contract 
to expedite permit process-; eliminating certain LGAIHACA offsets for tax · 
increment financing districts; amending Minnesota Statutes 1992, sections 
41A.09, subdivision 3; I16.07, subdivision 4a; 239.791, subdivisions I and 
2; and 273:1399, by adding a subdivision. 

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the. bill be amended 
as follows: 

Page 4, line 12, strike "'an average of'' and insert- ''.at least'' and reinstate 
the stricken "2.7" and delete "three" 

Page 4, line 24, after the period, insert "Sections 2 to Sare effective the day 
following final enactment." 
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And when so amended the bill do pass an<\ be ~-referred to the Comniittee 
on Environmen.t and Natural Resources .. , AIJ1~.ndments adopted.. Report 
adopted. · . 

Mrs .. Adkins from the·Committe."e on.MetrQpolitan.·and Local Government, 
to which was. re·.;:referred · 

S:F.' No. 1163: A .bill for an act relating to capita( improvements; 
authorizing the acquisition and betterment Of regional recreation. open space 
lands by tpe metropolitan council ,and metropolitan area local government 
units; .autliprizing the issuance of state bondS~_ ·appropria_ting money. 

Reports _the same back with the re<;ommendation that the bi!\ do pass and 
be- re-referred to the Committ~- ·on Environment and Natural Resources. 
Report adopted. 

M)cs·. Adkins from the Committee on Metropolitan and Local -Govermnent, 
to Which was referred· · -

S.F. No: 695: A bill for .an. ~ct {elating ·to metropolitan government; 
providing long-term protection of agricultural land in the metropolitan area; 
amending Minnesota . Statutes 1992, sections· 473H.01, sµbdivision 2; 
473H.02, subdivision 4; 473H.03, subgivisions 1, 4, 5, and 6; 473H.04, 
subdivisions. 1, 2, and 3; 473H.05, subdivision 1; 473H.06, subdivision 5; 
473H.07; 473H:08,subdivision 3';473H,H; and 473H.12; repealing M.inne-
sota Statutes 1992, section 473H.02, subdivision 5. . 

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill be
0

~mended. 
as follows: . 

Delete everything after the· enacting clause and insert: 

, _''Section I. Minnesota Statutes 1992: section 473H. ll, is amended td read: 

473H.U [LIMITATION ON CERTAIN PUBLIC PROJECTS:] . . ' . ,.,. ·- .. 

· Notwithstanding chapter 429, construction projects for public sanitary 
sewer systems and public water systems qen_efiting .land or buildings in. 
·agricultural preserves shall be prohiqited. New connections between land or 
buildings in agricultural preserves .and sanitary sewers or water systems shall 
be prohibited. Public sanitary sewer 0f systems, public "storm water sewer · 
systems,· publir; water systenis,· j>uf?lic roads, _and oth'erpublic improveme·nts · 
built on, adjacent to, or in the vicinity. of agricultural preserves after the , 
effective-4ate of this act are -deem'ed, -of Ilo benefit to the land and building$ in 
agricultural preserves. 

for purpose~ .of this_ section, '.:'pu,blic._ -~torm_ water· sewer Systems'' means 
any wholly or partially pipedsys/enr .which .is owned, operated, and .. 
maintained by the authori_ty,. that; is 4,es_iglled to carry storm water rµnoff, 
:Surface water, or other drainage primarily for the benefit of land which is not 

- in agricultural preserves. · 

Sec. 2. Minnesota Statutes 19n; section 473H.12, is'~ni.enaed to read: 

473H.12 [PROTECTION FOR NORMAL FARM PRACTICES.] 

Local governments and counties shall. be prohibited from enacting or 
enforcing ·ordinances or ·regulatioris Wit_hirt. :iii agricultural preserve which 

· . would, as adopted or applied, unreasona_bly restrict or r~gulate .n<;>imal farm 
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structures Or ·farm practices in· contravention of the> purpose of sections 
473H.02 to 473H. l 7 unless the restriction· or regulation bears a direct 
relationship. to an immediate and substantial threat to the public health ·and · 
safety. This section shall apply to the operation of farm vehicles and 
machinery in the. planting, ma_in(enance and harvesting of Crops arid "in· the 
care and feeding of farm animals, the type offanning, and the design of farm 
structures, exclusive of residenc~s_. 

Sec. 3. [APPLICATION.] 

This act applies in the Couniies .. of A.noka, ¢arver, Dakota, Hef!nf!pin, 
Ramsey, Scoit, and Washington.'' 

. Delete _the title and insert; 

''A bill for an act relating to metropolitan government; providing long-term 
protection of agricultural land in the metropolitan area; amending Minnesota 
Statutes 1992, sections 473H.l 1; and 473H.12." 

And when so amended the bill do pass. Amendments adopted. Report 
adopted. 

Ms. R,eichgott from the Committee:on Judjdary, to 'which was re-referred 

S.F. No; 1046: A bill for•an act relating to crimes; prohibiting persons from 
interfering with access tdIIledical_facilities; prescribing penalties; authorizing 
civil and equitable remedies; amending Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 
488A.l01; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 609. 

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill be amended· 
as follows: 

Page 2, delete lines 4 to 9 and insert: 

""(b) ''Aggrieved party'' means. a pers(Jn who_Se access to or egress Jroffl a 
medical facility is obstructed in violation• of subdivision 2, or. the medical 
facility. '' 

. Page 2, line 12, after "individual's" insert "lawful'' and after the second 
"or_'_' insert "egress" -

An_d when so amended the bill do pass. _Amendments adopted. Report 
adopted. 

Mr.'Bertram from the Committee on Agriculture and Rural Development, 
to.which was referred · 

'tl.F. No. 1178: A bill for an act relating to agriculture; declaring llamas to · 
be livestock and raising llama to be an agricultural pursuit; defining llama 
fanning as agricultural produ_ction (or purposes of the sales tax; amending 
Minnesota Statutes 1992·, sections 17A.03;- subdivision 5; 31A.02, subdivi­
sions 4 and 10; 'HB.02, subdivision 4; and 297A.0l, subdivision 13; · 
pmposing coding for uew law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 17. 

Reports the same back with the recomtuendation that the bill be amended 
as follows: · · · · 

Delete everything _after the enading, cla,lise rirn;[ insert: 
' ' . ' " . 

"SectionL [17.453] [DEFJNITIONS.]' 
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Subdivision 1. [APPLICABILITY.] The definitions in this section apply to 
sections 1 and 2. 

Subd. 2. [OWNER.] ·"Owner" means apers0n who owns or is responsible 
for the raising of ratitae. 

Subd. 3. [RATITAE.] "Ratitae" means members of the ratitae family 
(including ostrich, emu, and rhea) that are raised for the purpose of 
producing fiber, meat, or animal by-products or as breeding stock. 

Sec. 2. [17.454] [RATITAE.] 

Subdivision 1. [RATITAE ARE LIVESTOCK.] Ratitae are livestock and 
are not wild animals for purposes of hunting or wildlife laws. Ratitae and their: 
products are farm products and livestock for purposes of financial transac­
tions and collateral. 

Subd. 2. [RAISING RATITAE IS AN AGRICULTURAL PURSUIT.] 
Raising ratitae is agricultural production and an agricultural pursuit. 

Subd. 3. [SALES OF RATITAE AND MEAT PRODUCTS.] Persons 
selling or buying ratitae sold as lives(ock, sold for human consumption, or 
sold for slaughter must comply with chapters 17A, 28A, 31, 31A, and 31B. 

Subd. 4. [SLAUGHTER.] Ratitae must be slaughtered in a facility licensed 
and inspected by the Minnesota department of agriculture. 

Subd. 5. [DISEASE INSPECTION.] Ratitae are subject to chapter 35 and 
the rules of the board of animal health in the same manner as livestock and 
domestic animals, including provisions relating to importation and transporM 
tation. 

Sec. 3. [17.455] [DEFINITIONS.] 

Subdivision I. [APPLICABILITY.] The definitions in this section apply to 
sections 3 and 4. 

Subd. 2. [LLAMA.] "Llama" means a member of the genus llama that is 
raised for the purpose of producing fiber, meat, or animal by-products or as 
breeding stock. 

Subd. 3. [OWNER.] '''Owner" means a person who owns or is responsible 
for the raising of llamas. 

Sec. 4. [17.456] [LLAMA.] 

Subdivision 1. [LLAMAS ARE LIVESTOCK.] Llamas are livestock and 
are not wild animals for purposes of hunting or wildlife laws. Llamas and 
their products are farm products and livestock for purposes of financial 
transactions and collateral. 

· Subd. 2. [RAISING LLAMAS IS AN AGRICULTURAL PURSUIT.] 
Raising llamas is agricultural production and an agricultural pursuit. 

Subd. 3. [SALES OF LLAMAS AND MEAT PRODUCTS.] Persons 
selling or buying llamas sold as livestock, sold for human consumption, or 
sold for slaughter must comply with chapters 17A, 28A, 31, 31A, and 31B. 

Subd. 4. [SLAUGHTER.] Llamas must be slaughtered in a facility licensed 
and inspected by the Minnesota department of agriculture. 
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. Subd. 5. [DISEASE INSPECTION.] Llamas are subject to chapter 35 and 
the rules of the board of animal health in the same manner as livestock and 
domestic animals, including provisions relating to importation and transpor­
tation. 

Sec. 5. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 17A.03, subdivision 5, is 
amended to read: 

Subd. 5. [LIVESTOCK.] "Livestock" means cattle, sheep, swine, horses 
intended for slaughter, mules, llamas, as defined in section 17.455, subdivi­
sion 2, ratitae, as defined in section 17.453, subdivision 3, and goats. 

Sec. 6. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 31.51, subdivision 9, is amended 
to read: 

Subd. 9. "'Animal" means cattle, swine, sheep, goats, horses, mules or 
other equines, llamas as defined in section 17.455, subdivision 2, ratitae, as 
defined in section 17.453, subdivision 3. 

Sec. 7. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 3\A.02, subdivision 4, is 
amended to read: 

Subd. 4. [ANIMALS.] "Animals" means cattle, swine, sheep, goats, 
llamas, as defined in section _17.455, subdivision 2, ratitae, as defined in 
secti0n·l7.453, subdivision 3, horses, equines, and other large domesticated 
animals, not including poultry. 

Sec. 8. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 31A.02, subdivision 10, is 
amended to read: 

Subd. 10. [MEAT FOOD PRODUCT.] "Meat food product" means a 
product usable as human food and made wholly or in part from meat or a 
portion of the carcass of cattle, sheep, swine, llamas, as defined in section 
17.455, subdivision 2, ratitae, as defined in section 17.453, subdivision 3, or 
goats. ''Meat food product'' does not include products which contain meat or 
ofher portions of the carcasses of cattle, sheep, swine, llamas, ratitae, or 
goats only in a relatively small proportion or that historically have not been 
considered by consumers as products of the meat food industry, and which are 
exempted from definition as a meat food product by the commissioner under 
the conditions the commissioner prescribes to assure that the meat or other 
portions of carcasses contained in the products are not adulterated and that fhe 
products are not represented as meat food products. 

"Meat food product," as applied to products of equines, has a meaning 
comparable to that for cattle, sheep, swine, llamas, ratitae, and goats. 

Sec. 9. · Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 31B.02, subdivision 4, is 
amended to read: 

Subd. 4. [LIVESTOCK.] "Livestock" means live or dead cattle, sheep, 
swine, horses, mules, llamas, as defined in section 17.455, subdivision 2, 
ratitae, as defined in section 17.453, subdivision 3, or goats." 

Delete fhe title and insert: 

"A bill for an act relating to agriculture; declaring llamas and ratitae to be 
livestock and raising llamas and ratitae to be agricultural pursuits; amending 
Minnesota Statutes 1992, sections 17A.03, subdivision 5; 31.51, subdivision 
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9; 31A.02, subdivisions 4 and IO; and 3IB.02, subdivision 4; proposing 
coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter I 7." 

.And when so amended the bill do pass. Amendments ad.opted. Report 
adopted. · 

Mrs. Adkins from the Committee on Metropolitan and Local Government, 
to which was referred . . 

H.F. No. 1454: A bill for an act relating to the city of Hutchinson; 
pef)llitting the city to erect certain signs. 

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill do pass. 
Report adopted. 

Ms. Piper from the. Committee. on Family Services, to which was 
re-referred 

S.F. No. 190: A bill for an act relating to government data practices; 
providing that certain criminal coriviction data are public; providing that a 
record of conviction of certain crimes and other determinations disqualify an 
individual from obtaining certain human services licenses; providing for 
access to_ certain data on- day caie and foster care licensees;._·amending 
Minnesota Statutes 1992, sectio_ns 13.46, subdivision 4; 1.3.87, subdivision 2;. 
and 245A.04, subdivision 3b. 

Reports the same back wit!\ the. recommendation· .that the bill do pass. 
Report adopted. · 

· Ms. Piper from the Committee on Family Services, to which was referred 

S.F. No. 1241: A bill for an act relating to human serv_ices; establishing an 
alternative grant application process for categorical social service programs in 
Pine county. · 

Reports the same back with the recommendatiori that the bill be_ amended 
as follows: 

Delete everything after the enacting clause and insert: .. 

"Section I. [AUTHORIZATION FOR DEMONSTRATION PROJECT.) 

The commissiorJ,er of human services shall qllow Pine county.. to send q 
letter of intent in lieu . of completing a grant application to apply for 
categorical social. service, funding as part ,of a four-year intergovernmental 
agreement demonstration projei:t. The demonstration project is an alterna#ve 
meth.od of obtaining social service funding which is part of a larger project to 
simplify and consolidate social services planning i:ind reporting in .Pine 
county. The demo_nstrati9.n projec:t 'is an effo_rt "to streamline planning and 
remove administrative burdens o,i,' smaller counties. 

Sec. 2. [SOCIAL SERVICE PLAN.] 

Pine county must-· amend its -socidt service, _pl~n ~i/hin Ji-months ~f 
receivin:g fuf!ding to incorporate the r~ijuirements of the grant qpplication 
process i7:to t~e social ·seryice pl~n. · 

. . 

Sec. 3. [COMPLIANCE AND MONITORING.] 
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The commissioner may terminate ·the denwnstration project if Pine county 
is not using the categorical funding for the intended purpose. The commis­
sioner shall send Pine county a 60-day notice and.provide an opportunity for 
Pine county to appeal before terminating the project. 

Sec. 4. [REPORT.) 

The commissioner shall report to the Legislature annually beginning 
January 1, 1995. The report shall evaluate Pine county's intergovernmental 
agreements project and also the advantages of the alternative funding process 
for counties with a population under 30,000." 

And when so amended the bill do pass and be placed on the Consent 
Calendar. 

Pursuant to Joint Rule 2.03, the bill was referred to the Committee on Rules 
and Administration . . 

Mr. Moe, R.D. from the Committee on Rules and Administration, to which 
was referred 

H.F. No. 157 for comparison with companion Senate File, reports the 
following House File was found identical· and recommends the House File be 
given its second reading and substituted for its companion Senate File as 
follows: 

GENERAL ORDERS 
H.F. No. S.F. No. 

157 1279 

CONSENT CALENDAR 
H.F. No. . S:F. No. 

CALENDAR 
H.F. No. S.F. No. 

and that the above Sen.ate File be indefinitely postponed. 

Pursuant to Rule 49, this report was prepared and submitted by the 
Secretary of the Senate on behalf of the Committee on Rules and Adminis­
tration. Report adopted. 

Mr. Moe, R.D. from the Committee on Rules and Administration, to which 
wa's . referred · 

H.F. No. 1228 for comparison with companion Senate File, reports the 
following House File was found identical and recommends the House File be 
given its second reading and substituted for its . companion Senate File as 
follows: 

GENERAL ORDERS 
. H.F. No. S.F. No. 

1228 664 

CONSENT.CALENDAR 
H.F. No. S.F. No. 

CALENDAR 
H.F. No. S.F. No. 

and that the above Senate File be indefmitely postponed. 

Pursuant to Rule 49, this report was prepared and submitted by the 
Secretary of the Senate on behalf of the Committee on Rules and Adminis-
tration. Report adopted. ·· 
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Mr. Moe, R.D. from the Committee on Rules and Administration, to which 
.was referred 

H.F. No. 785 for comparison with companion Senate File, reports the 
following House Fi1e wa_s found not identical with companion Senate File as 
follows: · 

GENERAL ORDERS CONSENT CALENDAR 
H.F. No. S.F. No. H.F. No. S.F. No. 

785 662 

CALENDAR 
H.F. No. S.F. No. 

Pursuant to Rule 49, the Committee on Rules and Administration recom­
mends that H.F. No. 785 be amended as follows: 

Delete all the language after the enacting clause of H.F. No. 785 and insert 
the language after the enacting clause of S.F. No. 662, the first engrossment; 
further, delete the title of H.F. No. 785 and insert the title of S.F. No. 662, the 
first engrossment. · 

And when so amended H.F. No. 785 will be identical fo S.F. No. 662, and 
further recommends that H.F. No. 785 be given its second· reading and 
substituted for S.F. No. 662, and that the Senate File be indefinitely 
postponed. 

Pursuant to Rule 49, this report was prepared and submitted ·by the 
Secretary of the Senate on behalf of the Committee on Rules and Adminis­
tration. Amendments adopted. Report adopted. 

Ms. Piper from the Committee on Family Services, to whic_h was 
re-referred 

S.F. No. 443: A bill for an act relating to housing; establishing a human 
services enterprise zone demonstration project; appropria~ing money. 

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill be amended 
as follows: 

Page 1, line 7, delete"$ ....... " and insert "$300,000" 

Page 1, line 9, delete "human services" 

Page 1, line IO, delete "enterprise zone" and insert "collaborative .. service 
area" · 

Page 1, line 12, delete "zone" and insert "collaborative service area" 

Page 1, line 20, after "state," insert ''county," 

Page 2, line 1, delete "human s_ervice enterprise zone" and insert 
"collaborative service area" 

Page 2, line 5, after "agency" insert "and for the legislature" 

Page 2, line ~. delete "human services enterprise zone" and insert 
''collaborative service area'' 

Amend the title as follows: 

Page 1, lines 2 and 3, delete "human services enterprise zone" and insert 
"collaborative service area" 
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And when so amended the bill do pass and be re-referred to the Committee 
on Jobs, Energy and Community Development. Amendments adopted. Report 
adopted. 

SECOND READING OF SENATE BILLS 

S.F. Nos. 240, 785, 1193, 1232, 1528, 869,685, 1299, 1187, 699, 1602, 
751, 1446, 910,474,695, 1046, 1178 and 190 were read the second time. 

SECOND READING OF HOUSE BILLS 

H.F. Nos. 74,237,498,477,783,520, 1153, 1404, 945,806,670,667, 
226, 168, 1454, 157, 1228 and 785 were read the second time. 

MOfIONS AND RESOLUTIONS 

Mr. Sams moved that the name of Mr. Vickerman be added as a co-author 
to S.F. No. 699. The motion prevailed. 

Mr. Chandler moved that his name be stricken as a co-author to S.F. No. 
105_3. The motion prevailed. 

Mr. Moe, R.D. moved that his be stricken as a co-author to S.F. No. 1053. 
The motion prevµ.iled. 

Mr. Sams moved that the name of Mr. Bertram be added as a co-author to 
S.F. No. 1609. The motion prevailed. 

Mr. Hottinger moved that S.F. No. 832 be withdrawn from the Committee 
on Governmental Operations and Reform and re-referred to the Committee on 
Finance. The moti0n prevailed. 

Ms. Olson introduced-

Senate Resolution No. 36: A Senate resolution congratulating Hilltop 
Primary School for receiving the 1992-1993 MESPA School of Excellence 

,award. 

Referred io the Committee on Rules and Administration. 

Mr. Luther moved that H.F. No. 639 be withdrawn from the Committee on 
Commerce and Consumer Protection and re-referred to the Committee on 
Rules and Administration for comparison with S.F. No. 1528, now on General 

· Orders .. The motion prevailed. 

Mr. Morse moved that S.F. No. 762 be withdrawn from the Committee on 
Transportation arid Public Transit and re-referred to the Committee on 
Finance. The motion prevailed. 

INTRODUCTION AND FIRST READING OF SENATE BILLS 

The following bills were read the first time and referred to the comntittees 
indicated. 

Messrs. Murphy; Vickerman; Johnson, D.E.; Luther and Larson 
introduced-
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S.F. No. 1612: A bill for an act relating to the military; changing the 
. national guard tuition reimbursement law; amending Minnesota Statutes 

1992, section 192.501, subdivision 2. 

Referred to the Committee on Finance. 

Mr. Kroening and Ms. Johnson, J.B. introduced-

S.F. No. 1613: A bill for an act relating to the organization and operation 
of state government; appropriating money for the departments of labor and 
industry, public service, jobs and training, housing · finance, and other 
purposes with certain conditions; establishing and modifying certain pro­
grams; providing penalties; amending Minnesota Statutes 1992, sections 
16B.06, subdivision 2a; 116J.617; 116J.982; 179.02, by adding a subdivi­
sion; 239.0ll, subdivision 2; 239.10; 239.791, subdivisions 6 and 8; 
268.022, subdivision 2; 268.12, subdivision 12; 268.975, subdivisions 3, 4, 
6, 7, 8, and by adding subdivisions; 268.976, subdivision 2; 268.978, 
subdivision I; 268.98; and 462A.21, by adding subdivisions; proposing 
coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter I 16J; 116M; 239; 268; and 
462A; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1992, sections 116J.982, subdivisions 
6a, 8, and 9; 239.05, subdivision 2c; 239.52; 239.78; 268.977; and 268.978, 
subdivision 3. 

Referred to the Committee on Finance. 

MEMBERS EXCUSED 

Messrs. Beckman; Johnson, D.J.; Moe, R.D.; Neuville and Solon were 
excused from the Session of today. 

ADJOURNMENT 

Mr. Luther moved that the Senate do now adjourn.until 8:30 a.m., Monday, 
April 19, 1993. The motion prevailed. 

Patrick E. Flahaven, Secretary of the Senate 




